
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 
 
 

 

APRIL 4, 2016 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted By 

The City Manager 

 

 

 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov




 

 
 
 
 
The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver  
Troy, MI 48084 
 
 
Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 
 
In this packet, you will find the agenda for the City Council meeting. To help facilitate an 
informed discussion, the packet provides you with agenda items and additional details. The 
packet also contains recommended courses of action for your consideration and seeks to aid 
you in adopting sound policy decisions for the City of Troy. 
 
This comprehensive agenda has been put together through the collaborative efforts of 
management and staff members. We have made all attempts to obtain accurate supporting 
information. It is the result of many meetings and much deliberation, and I would like to thank 
the staff for their efforts. 
 
If you need any further information, staff is always available to provide more information and 
answer questions that may arise. You can contact me at bkischnick@troymi.gov or 
989.233.7335 with questions. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick,  
City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 



 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

April 4, 2016 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

INVOCATION: 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Legislative Update (Presented by:  State Representative Martin Howrylak) 1 

C-2 Presentation of the Avondale Youth Assistance Annual Report to Mayor Dane 
Slater and Troy City Council in Appreciation for City of Troy Supporting Avondale 
Youth Assistance (Presented by:  Board Chairperson Michael Kazyak) 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 No Public Hearings 1 



 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS 

AND BUSINESSES: 2 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 3 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

H-1 No Postponed Items 3 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 3 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 
Council Appointments – Civil Service Commission (Act 78) 3 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority,), Downtown Development Authority; b) City Council 
Nominations – Animal Control Appeal Board, Charter Revision Committee, 
Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees / Retiree Health Care Benefits 
Plan and Trust, Liquor Advisory Committee, Traffic Committee, Zoning Board of 
Appeals 4 

I-3 No Closed Session Requested 10 

I-4 Establishment of the Global Troy Advisory Committee (Introduced by:  Eleanor 
Yoon, Management Assistant) 10 

I-5 Application to De-List 3645 Crooks Road (Introduced by:  Brent Savidant, 
Planning Director) 11 

I-6 Resolution to Approve Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan and Trust and to 
Transfer Available Funding to the Trust  (Introduced by: Thomas Darling, Director 
of Financial Services) (Presented by:  Michael Van Overbeke, Special Counsel) 12 

I-7 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Construction Manager at 
Risk Services – Fire Station #4  (Introduced by:  David Roberts, Fire Chief, Steve 
Pallotta, Director of Building Operations, and MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing 
Manager) 13 



 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 13 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 13 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 13 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 14 

a) City Council Minutes-Draft – March 21, 2016 ..................................................... 14 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 14 

a) Fair Housing Month – April 2016 ........................................................................ 14 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 14 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9:  Approval to Expend Funds for 
Membership Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 – Michigan Municipal League . 14 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Asphalt Paving Materials - Hot Patch ....................................... 14 

J-5 Suggested Resolution to Schedule a Closed Session on May 9, 2016 for the 
Annual Evaluation of the City Manager 15 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 15 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 15 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time):  None Submitted 15 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 15 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 15 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 15 

N-1  No Council Referrals 15 



 

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 15 

O-1  No Council Comments Advanced 15 

P. REPORTS: 15 

P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 15 

a) Animal Control Appeal Board-Final – December 2, 2015 ................................... 15 

b) Traffic Committee-Final – January 20, 2016 ...................................................... 15 
c) Planning Commission-Final – March 8, 2016 ..................................................... 15 
d) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft – March 15, 2016 .............................................. 15 
e) Planning Commission-Draft – March 22, 2016 ................................................... 15 
f) Animal Control Appeal Board-Draft – March 23, 2016 ....................................... 15 

P-2 Department Reports: 16 

a) ICCA Annual Report ........................................................................................... 16 

P-3 Letters of Appreciation: 16 

a) To Assistant Chief Riesterer from John Runyan, Sach Waldman, Regarding 
Fire Department Participation in the Boy Scout and Cub Scout Annual First 
Aid Rally ............................................................................................................. 16 

b) To Chief Mayer from Laura Scharfenkamp Regarding Outstanding Service by 
PSA Jerilyn Sievers and Officer Adam Sinutko .................................................. 16 

c) To Chief Mayer from Daniel Cojanu, Canine Advocacy Program Director, 
Regarding Outstanding Service by Officer Kristine Shuler ................................. 16 

P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 16 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF 

THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM 

TROY BUSINESSES): 16 

R. CLOSED SESSION: 16 

R-1 No Closed Session Requested 16 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 16 

2016 SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 17 

April 18, 2016 Joint Meeting–Troy City Council/Troy Planning Commission ......... 17 
April 21, 2016 Special Study Session – Budget Discussions ................................ 17 
April 25, 2016 Special Study Session – Budget Discussions ................................ 17 



 

August 8, 2016 Joint Meeting–Troy City Council/Troy School Board .................... 17 

September 19, 2016 Joint Meeting–Troy City Council/Troy Chamber................... 17 
October 24, 2016 Joint Meeting–Troy City Council/Troy Planning Commission ... 17 

2016 SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 17 

April 18, 2016 Regular Meeting ............................................................................. 17 
May 9, 2016 Regular Meeting................................................................................ 17 

May 23, 2016 Regular Meeting.............................................................................. 17 
June 13, 2016 Regular Meeting ............................................................................ 17 
June 27, 2016 Regular Meeting ............................................................................ 17 
July 11, 2016 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 17 
July 25, 2016 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 17 

August 8, 2016 Regular Meeting ........................................................................... 17 
August 22, 2016 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 17 
September 19, 2016 Regular Meeting ................................................................... 17 

September 26, 2016 Regular Meeting ................................................................... 17 
October 10, 2016 Regular Meeting ....................................................................... 17 
October 24, 2016 Regular Meeting ....................................................................... 17 

November 14, 2016 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 17 
November 21, 2016 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 17 
December 5, 2016 Regular Meeting ...................................................................... 17 

December 19, 2016 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 17 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION:   
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
 

a) Mayor Dane Slater 
Edna Abrahim 
Ethan Baker 
Jim Campbell 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Ed Pennington  

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-04-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of ______________ at the 
Regular City Council Meeting of April 4, 2016, due to _____________. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Legislative Update (Presented by:  State Representative Martin Howrylak) 
 

C-2 Presentation of the Avondale Youth Assistance Annual Report to Mayor Dane 

Slater and Troy City Council in Appreciation for City of Troy Supporting Avondale 

Youth Assistance (Presented by:  Board Chairperson Michael Kazyak) 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 No Public Hearings 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 2 - 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 
 

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 17 – Members of 

the Public and Visitors: 

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 

 Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 
the majority consent of City Council. 

 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 

 Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes total to address Postponed, Regular Business, 
Consent Agenda or Study items or any other item on the Agenda as permitted under the 
Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items On the Agenda from Troy 
Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

 Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic not on the Agenda as 
permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items Not on the 
Agenda from Troy Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

 Any member of the public who is not a Troy resident or Troy business representative shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic on or not on the Agenda as 
permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Comments for Items On or Not On the 
Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy (Not Residents of Troy and Not From 
Troy Businesses) portion of the Agenda. 

 All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed to 
speak only if they have signed up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen 
minutes after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide his 
or her name and residency status (Troy resident, non-resident, or Troy business owner). If 
the speaker is addressing an Item (or Items) that appear on the pre-printed agenda, then the 
speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be addressed. 

 City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority vote of the City Council 
members. 

 Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

The following has been approved by Troy City Council as a statement of the rules of decorum for 
City Council meetings. The Mayor will also provide a verbal notification of these rules prior to 
Public Comment: 
 
The audience should be aware that all comments are to be directed to the Council rather than 
to City Administration or the audience. Anyone who wishes to address the Council is required 
to sign up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes of the start of the 
meeting. There are three Public Comment portions of the Agenda. For Items On the Agenda, 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 3 - 

Troy Residents and Business Owners can sign up to address Postponed, Regular Business, 
Consent Agenda, or Study items or any other item on the Agenda. Troy Residents and 
Business Owners can sign up to address all other topics under Items Not on the Agenda.  All 
Speakers who do not live in Troy or own a Troy business may sign up to speak during the 
Comments on Items On and Not On the Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy. 
Also, there is a timer on the City Council table in front of the Mayor that turns yellow when there 
is one minute of speaker time remaining, and turns red when the speaker's time is up.    
In order to make the meeting more orderly and out of respect, please do not clap during the 
meeting, and please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments about 
any one person or group.  If you do so, then there may be immediate consequences, including 
having the microphone turned off, being asked to leave the meeting, and/or the deletion of 
speaker comments for any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Speakers should also be careful to 
avoid saying anything that would subject them to civil liability, such as slander and defamation.  
 
Please avoid these consequences and voluntarily assist us in maintaining the decorum befitting 
this great City. 
 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 
 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Civil Service Commission (Act 78) 
 

a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 

b) City Council Appointments:   
 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS the appointment of the following 
person to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Civil Service Commission (Act 78) 
Appointed by Mayor 
3 Regular Members: 

1-Council; 1-Police/Fire Rep; 1-Civil Service 
6 Year Term 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 4 - 

Term Expires:  4/30/2022  

 Term currently held by: Donald McGinnis 
 

Yes: 
No: 
 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield 

Redevelopment Authority,), Downtown Development Authority; b) City Council 

Nominations – Animal Control Appeal Board, Charter Revision Committee, 

Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees / Retiree Health Care Benefits 

Plan and Trust, Liquor Advisory Committee, Traffic Committee, Zoning Board of 

Appeals 
 

a) Mayoral Nominations:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Appointed by Mayor 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 2 

Gottlieb Steven 11/24/2016 4/30/2016  

Kerwin Mary 1/16/2017 4/30/2017  

Kornacki Rosemary 10/9/2017 4/30/2017 Brownfield Redev Auth exp 4/30/2017 

Salgat Charles 5/20/2017 4/30/2018 EDC exp 4/30/2016; BRA exp 4/30/2018 

Swartz Robert 12/16/2015 4/30/2017 Brownfield exp 4/30/2017; EDC exp 
4/30/2018 

Vassallo Joseph 5/7/2017 4/30/2018  
 

 

Nominations to the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority: 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2019  

 Term currently held by: Steve Gottlieb 
   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 5 - 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Expire Notes 1 

Brennan Michael T. 9/17/2017  

Sharp John 3/28/2016 LDFA exp 6/30/16 
 

 
 

Downtown Development Authority 
Appointed by Mayor 
13 Regular Members 

4 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name 
App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 1 Notes 2 

Blair Timothy S. 6/17/2017 9/30/2019 In District  

Bostick Dennis 1/31/2015 9/30/2016 In District  

Hay David R. 8/25/2017 9/30/2019 In District  

Jonna Arkan 10/22/2014 9/30/2016 In District  

Keisling Laurence G. 5/25/2014 9/30/2016 At Large  

Kiriluk Alan M. 10/12/2014 9/30/2016 In District  

Knight Barbara 1/15/2016 9/30/2019 In District  

Macleish Daniel 5/26/2014 9/30/2016 In District  

Randol Ward Jr. 10/23/2016 9/30/2018 At Large  

Reschke Ernest C. 10/15/2016 9/30/2018 At Large  

Schroeder Douglas J. 10/23/2016 9/30/2018 At large  

Slater Dane  12/31/2099 At Large 
City Council exp 
11/9/2015; DDA; LDFA 

Vacancy   9/30/2017 At Large 
Albert Papa’s 
unexpired term. 

 

 

Nominations to the Downtown Development Authority: 
 

Term Expires:  9/30/2017  

 Term currently held by: Vacancy – Albert Papa’s unexpired 
term (resigned) 

 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 2 

Brennan Michael T. 9/17/2017  

Eisenbacher David 3/16/2018  

Huber Robert M. 6/10/2017  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 6 - 

Kaltsounis Andrew 10/15/2016 Liquor Advisory Comm. exp. 1/31/2019 

Kornacki Rosemary 10/9/2017 Brownfield exp 4/30/2017 

Petrulis Al 12/4/2017 
ACAB exp 9/30/2018; Hist Dist Comm exp 
3/1/2017; Traffic Comm. exp 1/31/2017 

Schick Michael 1/13/2017  

Swartz Robert D. 12/15/2016 
Brownfield exp 4/30/2017; EDC exp 
4/30/2018 

 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

b) City Council Nominations:  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council 
5 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res Expire Appointment Expire Notes 2 

Carolan Patrick 6/17/2015 9/30/2016  

Floch Patrick 11/18/2016 9/30/2018  

Petrulis Al 6/16/2017 9/30/2018 Traffic Comm exp 1/31/2017 

Saeger Jayne 10/15/2016 9/30/2017  

Vacancy   9/30/2017 P. Terry Knight's unexpired term 
 

 
 

Nominations to the Animal Control Appeal Board: 
 

Unexpired Term Expires: 9/30/2017  

 Term currently held by: Vacancy-P. Terry Knight term  
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 

Waters Gretchen 1/4/2018  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 7 - 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res Expire Appointment Expire Notes 3 

Bartnik Mark  04/30/2018  

Berk Robert 2/27/2015 4/30/2016 Requests Reappointment 

Bliss Daniel 11/16/2013 4/30/2015 NO Reappointment 

Howrylak Frank 2/1/2014 4/30/2017  

Kanoza Shirley 2/21/2015 4/30/2016 Requests Reappointment 

Weisgerber William 5/7/2017 4/30/2015 NO Reappointment 

Wilsher Cynthia 2/27/2016 4/30/2017  
 

 

Nominations to the Charter Revision Committee: 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2018  

 Term currently held by: Daniel Bliss 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2018  

 Term currently held by: William Weisgerber 
   

Term Expires:  4/30/2019  

 Term currently held by: Robert Berk 
   

Term Expires:  4/30/2019  

 Term currently held by: Shirley Kanoza 
 

Interested Applicants: 
No applications or resumes on file. 

 
 

Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees / Retiree Health Care Benefits 

Plan and Trust 
Appointed by Council 

7 Regular Members and 2 Ordinance Member 
3 Year Term 

Current Members: 

Last  
Name 

First 
Name 

App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 1 Notes 3 

Calice Mark 10/8/2017 12/31/2018 Council Appointed Citizen 
Requests 
Reappointment 

Darling Thomas   Chapter 10  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 8 - 

Gordon II Thomas 9/17/2015 12/31/2016 DB-Employee Rep.-Elected  

Henderson Dave  4/15/2018  
Requests 
Reappointment 

Kischnick Brian   Chapter 10  

Pallotta Steven  12/31/2017 DC Employee Rep.-Elected  

Stansbury Milt 11/2/2017 12/31/2018 DC Employee Rep.-Elected  

Vacancy   12/31/2016 
Wm. Need resigned 
9/9/2015 

 
 

 

Nominations to the Employees Retirement System Board of Trustees / Retiree Health 

Care Benefits Plan and Trust: 
 

Unexpired Term Expires:  12/31/2016  

 Term currently held by: Vacancy–W. Need resigned 
 

Interested Applicants: 
No applications or resumes on file. 

 
 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res Expire Appointment Expire Notes 3 

Comiskey Ann 3/18/2016 1/31/2018  

Ehlert Max 11/5/2016 1/31/2018  

Godlewski W. Stan 12/14/2012 1/31/2017  

Gorcyca David 12/6/2015 1/31/2017  

Hall Patrick 11/24/2017 1/31/2016 NO Reappointment 

Kaltsounis Andrew 11/24/2017 1/31/2019  

Oberski Jeff    

Payne Timothy 2/8/2014 1/31/2018  
 

 

Nominations to the Liquor Advisory Committee: 
 

Term Expires:  1/31/2019  

 Term currently held by: Patrick Hall 
 

Interested Applicants: 
No applications or resumes on file. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 9 - 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name 
App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 1 Notes 3 

Brandstetter Tim 10/17/2016 1/31/2018   

Easterbrook David 11/24/2017 1/31/2016  
NO 
Reappointment 

Huber R. Mitch 6/10/2017 1/31/2016   

Huotari William   Ex-Officio Member  

Kilmer Richard 12/12/2015 1/31/2017   

Mayer Gary   Ex-Officio Member  

Nelson William   Ex-Officio Member  

Petrulis Al 1/8/2016 1/31/2017 ACAB exp 9/30/2018  

Regan Kathleen 3/26/2017 7/31/2016 STUDENT  

Wilsher Cynthia 10/9/2016 1/31/2018   

Ziegenfelder Peter 12/9/2015 1/31/2017   
 

 

Nominations to the Traffic Committee: 
 

Term Expires:  1/31/2019  

 Term currently held by: David Easterbrook 
 

Term Expires:  1/31/2019  

 Term currently held by: R. Mitch Huber 
 

Interested Applicants: 
No applications or resumes on file. 

 
 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 1 Notes 2 Notes 3 

Clark Glenn 4/27/2017 4/30/2018    



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 10 - 

Courtney Kenneth 2/25/2015 4/30/2016   NO 
Reappointment 

Desmond Thomas 5/7/2017 4/30/2018    

Eisenbacher David 3/16/2018 4/30/2016   Requests 
Reappointment 

Kaltsounis Orestis Rusty 10/8/2017 1/31/2018 Alternate P&R BD 
exp 
9/30/2018 

Requests 
Reappointment 

Kneale A. Allen 3/9/2013 4/30/2017  ZBA exp 
4/30/2017 

 

Lambert Dave 3/10/2016 4/30/2017    

McCown Paul D. 7/10/2015 1/31/2018 Alternate   

Sanzica Philip 9/24/2014 12/31/2016 PC Rep on 
ZBA 

  

 

 

Nominations to the Zoning Board of Appeals: 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2019  

 Term currently held by: Kenneth Courtney 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2019  

 Term currently held by: David Eisenbacher 
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 2 

Frisen Sande 11/2/2017  

Sharp John 3/28/2018 EDC exp 4/30/2015; LDFA exp 6/30/2016 

Sinutko Jaime 8/5/2016  
 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-3 No Closed Session Requested 
 

I-4 Establishment of the Global Troy Advisory Committee (Introduced by:  Eleanor 
Yoon, Management Assistant) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 11 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council adopted celebrating diversity as one of the top ten strategies for 
the City government on March 9, 2015, and reaffirmed this commitment by incorporating the 
launch of the Global Troy Advisory Committee as a top ten strategy for 2016; and,  
 
WHEREAS, The Mayor and City Council has identified the creation of an inclusive community 
and strengthening community connections among diverse Troy residents as a priority; and,  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council desires to increase the City of Troy’s cultural competence 
through cultural knowledge, awareness and sensitivity, and believes that the creation of an 
advisory committee will assist in that endeavor;   
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council APPROVES the establishment of the 
Global Troy Advisory Committee (Global Troy). 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Global Troy SHALL BE ADVISORY to the City Council 
and City Administration, assisting with the promotion of cultural diversity and inclusion and 
enhancing community connections. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor with City Council approval SHALL INITIALLY 

APPOINT 11 members to Global Troy, in accordance with Chapter 6 of the City of Troy 
Charter. For the initial appointment, there shall be one City Council member, whose term shall 
coincide with the City Council term, and four members serving a three year term, three 
members serving a two year term, and three members serving a one year term, so that the 
terms will be staggered. Except for the City Council member, all subsequent appointments to 
the Committee shall be for three year terms, and each member shall be eligible for re-
appointment. All Global Troy members shall serve without compensation, and shall meet on an 
as needed basis to address specific referrals from City Council or City Administration, as well 
as independent initiatives.    
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-5 Application to De-List 3645 Crooks Road (Introduced by:  Brent Savidant, Planning 
Director) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Section 3 of Chapter 13 of the City Code 
to eliminate 3645 Crooks as an historic district; a copy of the ordinance amending Chapter 13 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting and a copy of that ordinance shall 

be RECORDED with the Oakland County Register of Deeds as required by state statute. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 12 - 

I-6 Resolution to Approve Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan and Trust and to 

Transfer Available Funding to the Trust  (Introduced by: Thomas Darling, Director 
of Financial Services) (Presented by:  Michael Van Overbeke, Special Counsel) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy highly values the contributions of the members of the Troy 
Volunteer Fire Department towards the safety and wellbeing of our community; and,  
 
WHEREAS, In recognition of the benefits provided, and to encourage participation and 
retention, the City of Troy has implemented a length of service award program or plan for the 
members of the Troy Volunteer Fire Department, setting forth plan eligibility qualifications and 
funding the annual incentive payments on a discretionary basis through resolutions which have 
been multiplied by the volunteer firefighter’s tenure of service; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Through its Voluntary Incentive Committee, members of the Troy Volunteer Fire 
Department have expressed concern about the discretionary basis of payments, and have 
requested a more definitive program, and in response City Administration engaged specialized 
legal counsel Michael Van Overbeke to assist with options and draft the required legal 
documents; and,  
 
WHEREAS, A City of Troy Incentive Plan and Irrevocable Trust for Volunteer Firefighters was 
drafted as a government trust, based on Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended, and the Public Employee Retirement System Investment Act, Public Act 314 of 
1965, as amended (MCL 38.1132 et. seq.); and this irrevocable trust was intended to qualify 
the incentive benefits provided under the length of service plan as contractual benefits 
protected and guaranteed by Article IX, Section 24 of the State of Michigan constitution; and,  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council approved the City of Troy Incentive Plan and Irrevocable Trust for 
Volunteer Firefighters on August 25, 2015, which allowed City Administration to  seek an official 
determination from the Internal Revenue Service confirming the tax exempt status of the City of 
Troy Incentive Plan and Irrevocable Trust for Volunteer Firefighters; and,   
 
WHEREAS, As a result of the review of the Internal Revenue Service, additional amendments 
were required, including but not limited to a separation of the Plan elements and the Trust 
elements; and,  
 
WHEREAS, The attached revised Plan and attached revised Trust were presented to the 
Volunteer Firefighters for their review, and after receipt of approval, these revised documents 
are now presented to the Troy City Council for its review;   
   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 
attached amended City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters and the attached City 
of Troy Incentive Trust For Volunteer Firefighters. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 13 - 

BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management to 
transfer available City reserves currently held for the benefit of the Volunteer Firefighter 
Incentive Plan (VFIP) fund to the City of Troy Incentive Trust for Volunteer Firefighters. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-7 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Construction Manager at 

Risk Services – Fire Station #4  (Introduced by:  David Roberts, Fire Chief, Steve 
Pallotta, Director of Building Operations, and MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing 
Manager) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide Construction 
Manager at Risk Services for Fire Station #4 to the highest rated proposer, The Dailey 
Company of Lake Orion, MI as a result of a best value process at a not to exceed amount of 

$540,990.00 at prices as detailed in the memo; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon consultant’s submission 
of properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-04-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 

presented with the exception of Item(s)           , which shall be CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 14 - 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-04-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) City Council Minutes-Draft – March 21, 2016  
 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   
 
a) Fair Housing Month – April 2016 
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9:  Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 – Michigan Municipal League 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-04-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES payment for annual membership 
dues to the Michigan Municipal League, for the time period of May 1, 2016 through April 30, 
2017, in the amount of $12,269. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – 

Asphalt Paving Materials - Hot Patch 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-04-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one (1) year contract to provide 
Asphalt Paving Materials- Hot Patch with an option to renew to the low bidders, Ajax Materials 
Corporation of Troy, MI as the primary supplier at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 

opened March 24, 2016, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting; to be ordered on an as needed basis and based on proximity; contracts expiring 
December 31, 2017. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City to use a 
secondary supplier, Cadillac Asphalt of Shelby Township, MI in the event that the primary 
supplier is unable to provide materials as specified under the same pricing, terms and 
conditions as originally bid; to be ordered on an as needed basis and based on proximity. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 15 - 

J-5 Suggested Resolution to Schedule a Closed Session on May 9, 2016 for the 

Annual Evaluation of the City Manager 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-04-      
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session on May 9, 2016 in the 
Council Board Room, pursuant to MCL 15.268 (a) and (h) (MCL 15.243(g)) for the evaluation of 
the City Manager. 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time):  None Submitted 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 

N-1  No Council Referrals  
 

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

O-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 

P. REPORTS: 

P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Animal Control Appeal Board-Final – December 2, 2015 
b) Traffic Committee-Final – January 20, 2016 
c) Planning Commission-Final – March 8, 2016 
d) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft – March 15, 2016 
e) Planning Commission-Draft – March 22, 2016 
f) Animal Control Appeal Board-Draft – March 23, 2016  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 16 - 

P-2 Department Reports:   
a) ICCA Annual Report 
 

P-3 Letters of Appreciation:   
a) To Assistant Chief Riesterer from John Runyan, Sach Waldman, Regarding Fire 

Department Participation in the Boy Scout and Cub Scout Annual First Aid Rally 
b) To Chief Mayer from Laura Scharfenkamp Regarding Outstanding Service by PSA 

Jerilyn Sievers and Officer Adam Sinutko 
c) To Chief Mayer from Daniel Cojanu, Canine Advocacy Program Director, Regarding 

Outstanding Service by Officer Kristine Shuler 
 

P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF 

TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  

R-1 No Closed Session Requested 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2016 
 

- 17 - 

 

 

2016 SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
April 18, 2016 ............................... Joint Meeting–Troy City Council/Troy Planning Commission 

April 21, 2016 ...................................................... Special Study Session – Budget Discussions 

April 25, 2016 ...................................................... Special Study Session – Budget Discussions 

August 8, 2016 .......................................... Joint Meeting–Troy City Council/Troy School Board 

September 19, 2016 ........................................ Joint Meeting–Troy City Council/Troy Chamber 

October 24, 2016 ......................... Joint Meeting–Troy City Council/Troy Planning Commission 
 
 
 

2016 SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
April 18, 2016 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

May 9, 2016 ..................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

May 23, 2016 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

June 13, 2016 .................................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

June 27, 2016 .................................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

July 11, 2016 .................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

July 25, 2016 .................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

August 8, 2016 ................................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

August 22, 2016 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

September 19, 2016 ........................................................................................ Regular Meeting 

September 26, 2016 ........................................................................................ Regular Meeting 

October 10, 2016 ............................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

October 24, 2016 ............................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

November 14, 2016 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

November 21, 2016 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

December 5, 2016 ........................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

December 19, 2016 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

 



AVONDALE 
YOUTH 

ASSISTANCE 
Board of  
Directors 

 

Executive Officers 
 

Michael Kazyak 
Chairperson 

Peggy McConnell 
Vice Chairperson 

Henry Knight 
Treasurer 

Joshua Boyce 
 Secretary 

 

Directors 
 

Harshitha Balaji 
Russ Barrows 
Karen Bleitz 

Lynn Douglas 
Angel Lau 

Stephanie Morita 
Dawn Polizzi 

JoAnn Roberts 
Kiara Robinson 

Gerald Sieh 
James Schwarz 
Cynthia Tischer 

Edu Usoro 
Ravi Yalamanchi 

 
Office Staff 

 

Anna Torres  
Caseworker 
Colleen Sieh 

Office Manager/Program 
Director 

A MESSAGE FROM OUR CHAIRPERSON Michael Kazyak 

AVONDALE YOUTH ASSISTANCE 

A s I start thinking about the past year, I am in awe how quickly the year went, all 
the work that was done and how much we have to be thankful for and thankful 

to.  As always, we owe a big thank you to all of our major sponsors: The City of 
Auburn Hills, The City of Rochester Hills, The City of Troy, The Township of 
Bloomfield Hills, The Avondale School District and the Auburn Hills Morning 
Optimist Club. 
 
We had success with our Back to School shopping and our annual Meijer Holiday 
Shopping.  We were grateful to our youth representatives who put together our 4th 
annual Halloween Pumpkin Party. With the generosity of Farmboy Produce we were 
able to purchase 100 pumpkins. The students from the Avondale SKILL (Successful 
Keys for Independent Learning & Living) program made 150 cookies for the trick-or-
treaters to decorate.  Our Family Education program continues to move forward with 
programs for both young and older. 
 
We had to say goodbye to another caseworker, Ragen 
Rockwell. Ragen had much to offer and was really 
entrenched in the community when she was reassigned 
to a new area.  We then received information that our 
new caseworker was new to Youth Assistance and 
with that we welcomed Anna Torres.  Anna came 
from Department of Human Services and when the 
school year started, Anna jumped in with both feet and 
has been able to take off where Ragen left off. 
      
Our summer programs help the youth of the 
community. Between the Tim Horton Camp, Summer 
KAMP (Kids Academic Mentoring Program), as well 
as all the skill building programs and various summer 
camps, we were able to help students learn, grow and 
still find time for fun.   
 
Without the dedication of all the board members and 
our Office Manager Colleen Sieh, none of this would 
be possible,  As the chairperson, I am proud of each 
and every person associated with Avondale Youth 
Assistance and the great works taking place in our 
community.   

ANNUAL REPORT 

December 2015 

AVONDALE YOUTH 
ASSISTANCE  

MISSION STATEMENT 
 

To strengthen youth and 

families and to reduce 

the incidence of 

delinquency, abuse and 

neglect through 

volunteer involvement. 

stewartc
Text Box
C-02



SPOTLIGHT ON PROGRAMS  2015 

OUR VOLUNTEERS 

CAMP 

YOUTH RECOGNITION 

PUMPKIN PARTY 
SKILL BUILDING 

ACADEMIC SUPPORT Volunteer & 
Sponsor 
Appreciation 
Dinner 

bd’s Mongolian 
Grill 

Auburn Hills 

Youth Recognition 2015 Honoree 

175 children prepared for 
Halloween fun during the 4th 
Annual Great Pumpkin Party 
thanks to the Avondale High 
School National Honor Society & 
Avondale SKILL Program student 
volunteers. 

27 students received financial 
assistance to participate in activities 
providing positive learning experiences 
including sports, school clubs & field 
trips, YMCA memberships, summer 
academic review & after-school 
activities. 

50 children attended summer camps 
including 28 campers who received full 
scholarships to Tim Horton Camp in 
Nova Scotia. Other camps attended 
were Camps Copneconic & Skyline & 
Avondale Band & Cheer. Summer Day 
Camps included Auburn Hills, 
Avondale Busy Bees, YMCA & 
basketball. 

Pumpkin 
Party 
Fun 

Summer 
KAMPers & 
Staff 

86 students in grades 1-5 attended 
AYA KAMPs (Kids Academic 
Mentoring Programs) during the 
summer & after school receiving 
academic support in reading, writing & 
math. Many adult & student volunteers 
assist the paid staff. 

Student  
Volunteers 

94 students grade six 
and beyond were 
chosen to be honored 
during the 48th Annual 
Youth Recognition 
Awards Ceremony for 
community service & 
personal achievement. 
This event is 
cosponsored by the 
Auburn Hills Morning 
Optimist Club. 

1,582 volunteer hours of time & 
talent contributed to the success of our 
programs, a true testament of the 
dedication & commitment of the 
Avondale Community to Avondale 
Youth Assistance.  



EXPENSES 

INCOME 

FINANCES 2015 

CASEWORK 

STATISTICS 

2015 

SHOPPING 

IN-KIND DONATIONS 

FAMILY EDUCATION 

Back to School Shoppers 

39 children shopped with a volunteer 
for Back to School & Holiday thanks to 
a partnership with Auburn Hills Meijer 
& Morning Optimist Club. 

$12,345 of in-kind donations helped 
make this another successful year at AYA. 
The Avondale School District provides 
space for our programs & offices and 
maintains our webpage. The City of 
Auburn Hills also provides valuable 
resources. 

39 adults attended programs providing 
families with useful information on the 
topics of strategies for struggling 
students, suicide prevention & abstinence 
along with Parent Café dialogue sessions.  



A vondale Youth Assistance (AYA) 
is a non-profit community service 

organization committed to 
strengthening youth and families and 
reducing the incidence of juvenile 
delinquency, child neglect and abuse 
through community involvement. This 
mission is accomplished through the 
longstanding relationship with the 
Avondale School District, local 
municipalities and the Oakland County 
Circuit Court-Family Division which provides a caseworker to 
offer counseling to children and their families in Avondale. A 
board of community volunteers supports this mission by 
providing programs for Avondale students that include Youth 
Recognition, honoring student volunteerism and personal 
achievements; Mentors Plus, matching youngsters with a caring 
adult; after-school and summer academic support programs and 
parent support programs. Camp and skill building scholarships 
are awarded to students experiencing financial difficulties. 
Drug test kits are available to parents free of charge in an effort 
to keep kids on the right track. 
 
AYA operates with the sponsorship of the Oakland County 
Circuit Court-Family Division, the Avondale School District, 
the cities of Auburn Hills, Rochester Hills and Troy and the 
Township of Bloomfield with principal funding supplied 
through the Oakland County Board of Commissioners and 
major funding from the other sponsors. This continuing 
financial support enables AYA to provide programs and 
services to the community. 
 
Avondale Youth Assistance does not discriminate on the basis 
of disability in admission or access to its programs, activities or 
services as required by Title II of the Americans With 
Disabilities Act of 1990. 

THANK YOU, SPONSORS! 
 

City of Auburn Hills 
Tom Tanghe, City Manager   

Kevin McDaniel, Mayor 
Council Members 

John Burmeister, Maureen Hammond,  
Robert Kittle, Henry Knight, VeRonica Mitchell, 

Cheryl Verbeke 
 

Charter Township of Bloomfield 
Leo Savoie, Supervisor  Dan Devine, Treasurer 

Janet Roncelli, City Clerk 
Trustees 

Neal J. Barnett, David B. Buckley,  
Brian Kepes, Corinne Khederian 

 

City of Rochester Hills 
Bryan Barnett, Mayor 

Council Members 
Susan Bowyer, Kevin Brown, Dale Hetrick, 

Jim Kubicina, Stephanie Morita,  
Mark Tisdel, Thomas Wiggins 

 
City of Troy 

Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
Dane Slater, Mayor  
Council Members 

Ethan Baker, Jim Campbell, Dave Henderson,  
Ellen Hodorek, Gary Mayer, Ed Pennington 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Judges of the Circuit Court - Family Division 

Honorable Mary Ellen Brennan 
Honorable Lisa Gorcyca 

Honorable Linda S. Hallmark 
Honorable Lisa Langton 

Honorable Jeff Matis 
Honorable Karen D. McDonald 

Honorable Elizabeth Pezzetti 
Honorable Joan E. Young 

 
Oakland County Court Administration 

Kevin Oeffner, Court Administrator 
David Bilson, Deputy Court Administrator 

Mary Schusterbauer, Chief of  
Oakland County Youth Assistance 

Liz Csizmadia, Supervisor, Avondale Youth 
Assistance 

 

Oakland County Commissioners 
Shelley Taub, Wade Fleming, Robert Gosselin,  

Mike Gingell, Adam Kochenderfer 
 

Avondale Schools 

Dr. James Schwarz, Superintendent 
Carmen Kennedy, Assistant Superintendent 

Frank Lams, Assistant Superintendent 
School Board Members 

Scott Bittinger, Ken Hedrick, Sean Johnson,  
Terry Lang, Sid Lockhart,  

Stephen Sucher, Cynthia Tischer 

AVONDALE YOUTH ASSISTANCE 
Avondale Meadows Learning Center 

1435 W Auburn Road 
Rochester Hills, MI 48309 

 
PHONE: 248-852-3716 

FAX: 248-852-6764 
EMAIL: avondaleyouth@gmail.com 

WEBSITE: avondaleyouthassistance.com 

Follow us on Facebook 

Check out our Website: 
www.avondaleyouthassistance.com 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  April 4, 2016 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Eleanor Yoon, Management Assistant 
    
 
Subject: Establishment of the Global Troy Advisory Committee (Introduced by: Eleanor Yoon, 

Management Assistant)  
 
 
 
Global Troy is a city-wide comprehensive initiative to create a culturally competent community, where 
every resident feels welcome and included regardless of his or her ethnic background. With the 
establishment of the Global Troy Advisory Committee, the initiative seeks to achieve cultural 
competence in six focus areas: city government, community, civic engagement, public safety, 
education and economic development.  
 
 
History 
 
On March 9, 2015, City Council adopted “Celebrate diversity” as one of the 2015 top ten strategies for 
the city. At the 2015 State of City Address, Mayor Dane Slater announced a plan to establish the 
Global Troy Advisory Committee, which focuses on creating a more inclusive city and strengthening 
community connections among diverse ethnic groups in the City of Troy. 
 
Consequently, City Council adopted “Launch the Global Troy Advisory Committee” as one of the 
2016 Strategies on March 14, 2016. On the same day, a presentation about Global Troy was made to 
City Council to educate and inform them about the idea of cultural competence and the proposed 
composition of the Global Troy Advisory Committee. 
  
The Global Troy Advisory Committee shall consist of 11 Troy residents appointed by the Mayor with 
City Council approval. For the initial appointment, there shall be one City Council member, whose 
term shall coincide with the City Council term, and four members serving a three-year term, three 
members serving a two-year term, and three members serving a one-year term, so that the terms will 
be staggered. Except for the City Council member, all subsequent appointments to the Committee 
shall be for three year terms, and each member shall be eligible for re-appointment. All Global Troy 
members shall serve without compensation, and shall meet on an as needed basis to address 
specific referrals from City Council or City Administration, as well as independent initiatives. Each 
committee member would be representative of various ethnic groups of the city and be a catalyst for 
open and dynamic multicultural exchanges. 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
I-04



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that City Council adopt the resolution approving the establishment of the Global 
Troy Advisory Committee.  
 
 
EY\AGENDA ITEMS\2016\Word Files\04.04.16 – Establishment of the Global Troy Advisory Committee 



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
Date: March 31, 2016 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
Subject: APPLICATION TO DE-LIST 3645 CROOKS ROAD 
 
Kristel Group Inc. purchased 3645 Crooks from the City of Troy on July 13, 2015. The property is 
listed as a historic property in the City’s Historic Preservation Ordinance (Chapter 13). The owner 
seeks to de-list the property to provide flexibility should they choose to renovate or sell the building.  
 
The property is zoned R-1B One Family Residential. The building was constructed as a house in 
1853 but was used as an Engineering Field Office for years. Prior to that it had been used as an 
insurance office. Alterations made to the interior and exterior of the building have significantly 
impacted its original historic character. The field office use was considered to be a legal 
nonconforming; however, the office use has been abandoned and the property may no longer be 
used as an office or any other commercial purpose. 
 
Chapter 13 specifies the process for de-listing (see attached checklist). The process is lengthy and 
involves many steps. City Council appointed a Historic District Study Committee (HDSC) on 
September 28, 2015. The HDSC reviewed the Preliminary Report at a meeting on November 13, 
2015. Following the 60-day review period the HDSC held a public hearing on February 19, 2016 and 
recommended 3-0 that the property be de-listed. On March 8, 2016 the Planning Commission 
recommended 8-1 that the property be de-listed. 

 
To de-list a property, City Council should make a finding that the subject property meets one or more of 
the following standards: 
 

1. The historic district has lost those physical characteristics that enabled establishment of the 
district. 
 

The HDSC determined that the building’s interior and exterior had been significantly altered from its 
original character. This includes vinyl siding, metal trim, asphalt shingles, aluminum gutters, 
metal storm door, vinyl replacement windows and foundation repairs using concrete blocks. 

 
2. The historic district was not significant in the way previously defined. 

 
The HDSC determined that since the alterations occurred prior to being listed as a historic property, 
it should not have been listed. Furthermore, Riley Crooks never lived in the house as he died 23 
years before it was built. 

 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
I-05



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
3. The historic district was established pursuant to defective procedures. 

 
The HDSC determined that the integrity of the property was non-compliant to historical resource 
standards and the historic character had been eliminated prior to being listed as a historic property.  
 
The Michigan State Housing Development Authority State Historic Preservation Office made a 
finding that the application did not meet any of the three requirements.  
 
City Council has final authority to approve the de-listing of 3645 Crooks Road. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Map 
2. Photos from March 2, 2016 
3. Checklist to Delist a Historic Resource  
4. Minutes from February 19, 2016 Historic District Study Committee meeting 
5. Minutes from March 8, 2016 Planning Commission Regular meeting 
6. Final Report to De-List 3645 Crooks 
7. Letter from Michigan State Housing Development Authority State Historic Preservation Office 

 
G:\Historic District Study Committee\3645 Crooks\CC Memo 04 04 2016.doc 



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

14,818

1:

Feet14,8180 7,409











CHECKLIST 
TO DELIST A HISTORIC RESOURCE 

 
The following are the steps required to delist a historic resource in Troy, as per Chapter 
13 Historic Preservation: 
 
Applicant submits a complete Application to Delist a Historic Resource to the City of 
Troy Planning Department.  
 
Historic District Study Committee (HDSC) is appointed to complete the following steps: 
 
HDSC prepares a Preliminary Report, including photo inventory that indicates one of the 
following reasons for de-listing: 

1. The historic district has lost those physical characteristics that enabled 
establishment of the district 

2. The historic district was not significant in the way previously defined 
3. The historic district was established pursuant to defective procedures 

 
Transmit the Preliminary Report to the Historic District Commission, The Michigan 
Historical Commission and the State Historic Preservation Review Board, Planning 
Commission and City Council 
 
The Planning Department shall schedule a public hearing with the HDSC not less than 
sixty (60) days after the Preliminary Report is on the City Council agenda as an 
informational item. 
 
The Planning Department shall mail the property owner via first class mail a written 
notice of the public hearing, not less than fourteen (14) days prior to the public hearing. 
 
After the public hearing, the HDSC shall prepare a Final Report with the 
recommendations of Planning Commission and transmit the Final Report to City Council 
 
City Council may consider an amendment to Chapter 13 which modifies or eliminates 
one or more of the historic districts. 
 
Council approves and property owner notified 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – DRAFT February 19, 2016 
 
 

 
1 

The Historic District Study Committee meeting began at 9:00 p.m. on February 19, 2016, in 
Conference Room C of Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Barb Chambers 
Laurie Huber 
Charles Salgat 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Mirela Pllumaj, Owner of 3645 Crooks 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Moved by: Huber 
Seconded by: Salgat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (3) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Moved by: Huber 
Seconded by: Salgat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve minutes of November 13, 2015, as presented. 
 
Yes: All present (3) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – FINAL REPORT, APPLICATION TO DE-LIST A HISTORIC 

PROPERTY – 3645 CROOKS 
 
Mr. Savidant presented the Final Report.  The only addition to the Preliminary Report was 
the addition of the letter from the State of Michigan. The Committee disagreed with the 
letter and concurred that the property had been listed in error, as its character had been 
significantly diminished before it was listed.  
 
Mr. Salgat noted, the historic significance of the home as listed on the Building-Structure 
Inventory Form was that Riley Crooks once lived on the property. However, Mr. Crooks 
died in 1830. The home was constructed around 1853. Therefore Mr. Crooks died 23 
years before the home was constructed.  
 
General discussion followed. 



HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – DRAFT February 19, 2016 
 
 

 
2 

 
The Chair opened the public hearing. Nobody spoke. The chair closed the public hearing. 
 
The Committee requested that updated photographs of the building be provided to City 
Council. 
 
The Committee agreed the building’s interior and exterior had been significantly altered 
from its original character when converted to an office use. This alteration occurred prior 
to being listed as a historic property. The integrity of the property is non-compliant to 
historical resource standards and the historic character has been eliminated. For this 
reason the Committee supports de-listing. 
 
Moved by: Huber 
Seconded by: Salgat 
 
RESOLVED, The Historic District Study Committee hereby approves the Final Report to 
De-List 3645 Crooks Road. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The Historic District Study Committee hereby recommends 
that City Council takes action to de-list 3645 Crooks Road. 
 
Moved by: Chambers 
Seconded by: Salgat 
 
 
Yes: All present (3) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 
 
Chairperson Chambers adjourned the meeting at 9:25 am. 

 
G:\Historic District Study Committee\3645 Crooks\MINUTES\HDSC Minutes 2016 02 19 Draft.docx 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 8, 2016 
  
 
 

1 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

7. APPLICATION TO DE-LIST 3645 CROOKS 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a report on the history of 3645 Crooks and the Historic District Study 
Committee’s review of the Final Report and recommendation to de-list the property. 
 
Mr. Hutson said the final report indicates the home does not meet any of the three 
requirements for de-listing historical properties; therefore he would not vote in favor of 
de-listing the home. 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-024 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby supports the de-listing of 3645 Crooks 
Road, as per the recommendation of the Historic District Study Committee. 
 
Yes: Apahidean, Crusse, Edmunds, Faison, Krent, Kuppa, Sanzica, Tagle 
No: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINAL REPORT 
APPLICATION TO DE-LIST A HISTORIC PROPERTY 

3645 CROOKS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PREPARED BY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE: 
Barb Chambers 

Laurie Huber 
Charles Salgat 

 



Final Report  Application to De-List 3645 Crooks 
 
 

1 

 

A request to remove the historic designation of the property at 4820 Livernois was received 
from the present owner, Mirela Pllumaj of Kristel Group. 
 
The following is a Final Report by the Historic District Study Committee. 
 
Description of Resource: 

3645 Crooks  
Referred to as the “Riley Crooks House”  

 

 
 
Legal Description of 3645 Crooks: 
 
(Tax ID: 88-20-20-226-038)  
 

T2N, R11E, SEC 20  

TROY HIGHLANDS NO. 1  

LOT 70 

 



Final Report  Application to De-List 3645 Crooks 
 
 

2 

 

Historical Significance (Reason for Listing): 
According to the Building-Structure Inventory Form prepared by the Historic District 
Commission on October 31, 1983:  
 

“Land taken by Riley Crooks who came into Troy 1822, and being the first Twp 
Clerk and held first town meeting. Sold to Sprague 1832-1896. Spragues lived 
64 years” 
 

Findings of Fact: 
The Building-Structure Inventory Form indicates there has been extensive renovations 
made to the original structure over time: 

 The residential building was being used as a business at the time of designation. 

 The home featured non-original siding at the time of designation. 

 The Michigan stone basement had been repaired with concrete blocks at the time of 
designation. 

 Original fireplace was removed at the time of designation. 
 
 
 
Applications of Standards: 
Chapter 13 requires that in order to eliminate a property’s historic designation, one or more 
of the following shall be shown: (1) The historic district has lost those physical 
characteristics that enabled establishment of the district; (2) The historic district was not 
significant in the way previously defined; and (3) The historic district was established 
pursuant to defective procedures.   
 
Based on research conducted, the subject parcel meets two of the standards: 
 
1. The historic district has lost those physical characteristics that enabled establishment of 

the district. 
 
The original home has been used as an office since at least 1983, the year it was 
designated as a historic building. The character of the building is that of an office. The 
interior has been dramatically altered to accommodate the office use.  
 
2. The historic district was not significant in the way previously defined. 
 
The character of the original home was negatively impacted by its use as a business prior to 
designation. It is unclear why the building was designated in 1983 given the modifications 
that had already occurred.  
 
3. The historic district was established pursuant to defective procedures. 
 
It appears the historic characteristics of the original home were already negatively altered at 
the time of designation in 1983. The home has been used for business purposes since that 
time. 



Final Report  Application to De-List 3645 Crooks 
 
 

3 

 

 
MSHDA Findings 
The Michigan State Housing Development Authority (MSHDA) reviewed the Preliminary 
Report and stated the application does not meet any of the above three standards for de-
listing. Further, MSHDA encouraged the City to make every effort to continue to protect the 
resource.  
 
 
Recommendation: 
The historic designation restricts the improvement of this residential building. The interior of 
the structure had already been gutted prior to designation as a historic property, to 
accommodate office use. This included removal of the fireplace. Modifications to the exterior 
of the building had already been made prior to designation.   
 
It is recommended that the historic district designation for 3645 Crooks be eliminated.  
 
Attachments: 

1. Map 
2. Building-Structure Inventory Form 
3. Photos of site 
4. Letter from Michigan State Housing Development Authority, dated January 16, 2016 

 
G:\Historic District Study Committee\3645 Crooks\REPORTS\Final Report HDSC 3645 Crooks.doc 



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

325

1:

Feet3250 163



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

377

1:

Feet3770 188





















































 







 

 

1 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
 
Date:  April 4, 2016 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Thomas Darling, Director of Financial Services 
  Dave Roberts, Fire Chief 
   
Subject: Resolution to Approve Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan and Trust and to Transfer 

available funding to the Trust (Introduced by:  Thomas Darling, Director of Financial 
Services, Presented by: Michael VanOverbeke, Special Counsel) 

 
 
History 
 
The Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Program (VFIP), established in the late 1970’s, has a long history 
of providing incentives to attract and maintain a volunteer firefighter force that is second to none in the 
nation. 
 
The City also has a long history of reviewing, on a periodic basis, the parameters of the program 
including the legal platform, vesting of benefits and the amount of those benefits to ascertain that the 
objectives of the program are being accomplished. 
 
In August of 2014 (Resolution# 2014-08-110), as a result of a Special Study Session and lengthy 
discussion, City Council adopted the City of Troy Incentive Plan and Irrevocable Trust for Volunteer 
Firefighters as drafted by specialized legal counsel Michael VanOverbeke. The Plan and Trust had 
been drafted as an essential government function trust, based on Section 115 of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended (MCL 38.1132 et, seq,); was intended to qualify the incentive benefits to 
volunteers under a length of service plan as contractual benefits protected and guaranteed by Article 
IX, Section 24 of the State of Michigan constitution. 
 
Based on the unique features of the Plan and Trust as drafted under Section 115 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, both the City of Troy and the Troy Volunteer Fire Department members desired 
an official determination from the Internal Revenue Service confirming the tax exempt status of the City 
of Troy Incentive Plan and Irrevocable Trust for Volunteer Firefighters. 
 
Accordingly, City Council authorized City Administration to submit the City of Troy Incentive Plan and 
Irrevocable Trust for Volunteer Firefighters to the IRS for its review and approval, and if required or 
recommended by the IRS, submit any subsequent revisions to City Council for its review at the earliest 
opportunity. 
 
Based on comments generated by the Internal Revenue Service review, certain revisions to the original 
City of Troy Incentive Plan and Irrevocable Trust for Volunteer Firefighters have been incorporated by 
specialized legal counsel Michael VanOverbeke and are presented for City Council review and 
approval. 

stewartc
Text Box
I-06



 

 

2 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
 
 
There are two significant revisions to the original submission, and several other minor modifications.  
First, the original document has been separated into two documents: the incentive “plan” and the “trust”.  
Second, both the plan and the trust had to be modified to specifically include a “risk of forfeiture,” which 
allows the City to exceed the $3,000 annual benefit limit in IRC section 457(e)(11)(B)(ii). Anything 
exceeding $3,000, without a potential risk of forfeiture, would need to be included in the volunteer’s 
gross annual income for tax purposes- and not just at the time the benefits were paid.  The current plan 
provides a 25 year volunteer firefighter retiring after July 1, 2015 with $17,025 annually. 
 
The volunteer firefighters were apprised of the necessity of this modification, and in order to provide 
additional protection, the station representatives asked for additional notification procedures to be 
added in the very unlikely event that economic conditions required the City to terminate the trust at a 
future date for all new firefighters.  This new notification procedure has been included in the revised 
documents.      
    
Other revisions to the Plan include providing additional clarity to the issue of service credit and eligibility 
for benefit payments to Deferred Former Participants. These revisions center on members who have a 
substantial break in service (typically greater than one (1) year) and subsequently return as an active 
member. 
 
We believe that the revised Plan and revised Trust documents accomplish the primary objectives as 
originally intended by: 
 

1. Recognizing the valuable contributions that the Volunteer Firefighters provide to the City’s 
essential services. 

2. Encourage participation and retention of Troy Volunteer Fire Department members. 
3. Provide an additional but not absolute layer of security of benefits to Volunteer Firefighters in 

that the assets placed in the Trust are for the sole purpose of providing benefits to Volunteer 
Firefighters in accordance with the Plan document. 

4. Allow the assets accumulated in the Trust to be invested in a manner similar to other retirement 
benefits sponsored by the City. 

 
Financial 
 
Based on the latest available investment statement (February 29, 2016), the current value of reserves 
held by the City for Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan payments is approximately $7,724,980. 
 
The City will officially transfer the reserve amounts to the trust once the final document is approved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

3 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that City Council approve the attached amended City of Troy Incentive Plan for 
Volunteer Firefighters and the attached City of Troy Incentive Trust for Volunteer Firefighters. 
 
It is also recommended that City Council direct management to transfer funds currently held by the 
City for benefit payments to Volunteer Firefighters to the City of Troy Incentive Trust for Volunteer 
Firefighters. 
 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality 
 
 
____________________________  ______________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   Date 
 
 
 
 
TD/AGENDA ITEMS\08.25.14 – Resolution to Approve Volunteer Firefighter Incentive and Year of Service Benefit Multiplier Schedule 
and Transfer Money for Benefit of Volunteer Firefighter Retirement 



         
 

CITY OF TROY 
INCENTIVE TRUST FOR VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS  

 
Chapter 1. 

 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

1:100. Establishment and Purpose. 
 
 The City of Troy Incentive Trust for Volunteer Firefighters (the “Trust”) is hereby 

established to allow the City of Troy to fund the benefits as provided pursuant to the 
provisions of the City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters, an essential 
government function.   

 
1:101. Short Title. 
 
 This Trust may be known and cited as the City of Troy Incentive Trust for Volunteer 

Firefighters (“Trust”).  
 

1:102. Definitions. 
 
 For the purposes of this Trust, the following words shall have the meanings respectively 

ascribed to them by this section: 
 
(1)  Annual Benefit Amount means the annual dollar amount of the length of service incentive 

benefits which may be payable from the Plan to eligible Former Participants, as amended 
from time to time by City Council via a budget appropriations resolution. 

 
(2) City means the City of Troy, Michigan. 
 
(3) City Council means the City Council of the City of Troy, Michigan.  
 
(4) Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  Reference to any section 

or subsection of the Code includes reference to any comparable or succeeding provision 
of any legislation which amends or replaces such section or subsection and any 
regulations thereto. 

 
(5) Contribution(s) means the payments made to the Trust by the City for the purpose of 

providing length of service based incentive benefits to Former Participants and 
beneficiaries covered by the Plan.   

 
(6) Incentive Service Credit means personal service rendered to the City as a volunteer 

firefighter and credited to a Participant in accordance with the Plan. 
 
(7) Plan means the City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters established by 

Ordinance as provided herein.  A description of the incentive benefits provided to eligible 
Former Participants, spouses and dependents under the Plan is maintained by the Plan 
Administrator.  

 
 



2 
 

(8) Plan Administrator means the person, persons, firm, corporation or insurance company or 
companies, appointed by the City to administer the Plan. The Plan Administrator shall be 
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Plan and shall carry out the directives of 
the City and the Board of Trustees. 

 
(9) Plan Beneficiary means a Participant, Former Participant, Deferred Former Participant, 

spouse, or beneficiary as defined in the Plan. 
 
(10) Trust means the City of Troy Incentive Trust for Volunteer Firefighters as established 

pursuant to the declaration of trust approved by the City Council and as may be amended 
from time to time. 

 
(11) Trustee(s) or Board means the Board of Trustees of the Trust or a member of the Board 

of Trustees of the Trust as provided for in the Trust. 
 
(12) Voluntary Incentive Committee means a committee comprised of representatives selected 

by each of the six fire stations in the City.   
 
1:103. Interpretation and law; Construction.  
  
(1) The Trust is hereby established and shall be administered consistent with applicable 

Federal and Michigan law, including, but not limited to the Public Employee Retirement 
System Investment Act, Public Act 314 of 1965, as amended (MCL §38.1132 et seq.).  

 
 (2) The Trust shall constitute a grantor governmental trust pursuant to Section 115 of the 

Code, as amended and shall be construed, enforced and administered and the validity 
thereof determined in accordance with the Code and the laws of the State of Michigan.  If 
any provision of the Trust is held to violate the Code or to be illegal or invalid for any 
other reason, that provision shall be deemed to be null and void, but the invalidation of 
that provision shall not otherwise affect the Trust.  

 
(3)  Neither the establishment of the Trust, nor any modification thereof, nor the creation of 

any fund or account, nor the payment of any benefits to the Plan, shall be construed as 
giving to any person, any legal or equitable right against the City, its elected or appointed 
officials or employees, the Trustees or any individual Trustee, except as may otherwise 
be provided in the Trust.  

 
(4) The headings and subheadings in this Trust are inserted for convenience of reference only 

and are not to be considered in the construction of any provision of the Trust.  
 
(5) Words herein in the masculine gender shall be construed to include the feminine gender 

where appropriate, and words used herein in the singular or plural shall be construed as 
being in the plural or singular where appropriate.  

 
(6) In resolving any conflict among provisions of this Trust or any uncertainty as to the 

meaning or intention of any provision of this Trust, the interpretation that causes both the 
Trust to be exempt from tax and the Trust to comply with all applicable requirements of 
the Code shall prevail over any different interpretation.  

 
 



3 
 

1:104. Notice. 
 
 Notice given to all interested parties shall, unless otherwise specified in this Trust, be 

sufficient if in writing and delivered or sent by prepaid first class mail.  Except as 
otherwise noted, the distribution or delivery of any statements or documents required 
under the Trust shall be sufficient if delivered in person or prepaid first class mail. 

 
1:105. Amendments. 
 
 The provisions of the Trust may be amended at any time by the Troy City Council in 

accordance with applicable law.  The Voluntary Incentive Committee will be notified at 
least thirty (30) days in advance that a proposed amendment or revision will be submitted 
to the Troy City Council for consideration.  The City Council shall hold a public hearing 
prior to taking any formal action to amend or terminate the Trust. 

 
Chapter 2. 

 
INCENTIVE TRUST FOR VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS 

       
1:200. Irrevocable Trust, Established. 
 
 The Trust, established by the City in accordance with Section 115 of the Code shall be an 

irrevocable grantor trust administered consistent with applicable federal and Michigan law, 
and shall constitute a governmental trust under Section 115 of the Code, as amended, 
Revenue Rulings 77-261 and 90-74, and other relevant guidance.  The Trust is intended to 
fund the City’s volunteer firefighter incentive benefits under the Plan pursuant to 
applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, the regulations promulgated under 
each, and applicable federal and Michigan law.  The Trust shall conform to all applicable 
sections of the Internal Revenue Code, the statement of purpose in this Trust, and all 
statutes, ordinances, rules, administrative regulations, arbitrators’ awards and judicial 
decisions interpreting the foregoing provisions. 

 
 The Trust shall consist of City Contributions pursuant to the provisions of a City 

administrative regulation, all investments made or held under Trust, and all income 
therefrom, both received and accrued, and any other property, which may be received or 
held by reason of this Trust.   

 
 The income accruing to the Trust shall be excluded from gross income as such trust income 

is derived from the exercise of an essential governmental function as provided for under 
Section 115(1) of the Code, as amended, Revenue Rulings 77-261 and 90-74, and other 
relevant guidance.    

 
1:201. Use of Trust Assets. 
 
(1)  The Trust assets shall not be used for or diverted to purposes other than to provide the 

benefits contemplated under the Plan or to pay for reasonable and necessary services, costs 
and expenses related to assisting the Trustees in the operation of the Trust.  Plan 
beneficiaries shall have no preferred claim on, or any beneficial ownership interest in, any 
assets of the Trust. 

 



4 
 

(2)  All income, profits, recoveries, contributions, forfeitures and any and all monies, securities 
and properties of any kind at any time received or held by the Trustees hereunder, shall 
become part of the Trust when received, and shall be held for the use and purposes hereof. 

 
(3) Any assets held by the Trust shall be subject to the claims of the City’s general creditors in 

the event of the City’s insolvency. 
 
1:202. Funding. 
 
(1)  For the purpose of creating and maintaining a fund for the payment of incentive benefits 

payable as provided in the Plan, the City will pay to the Trust an amount consistent with 
the actuarial valuations and calculations made by the Actuary for the Trust to result in a 
pre-funded plan. Such contributions shall also be made in accordance with any regulations 
of the Board of Trustees as are not inconsistent with the authority stated in the Plan or this 
Trust document, or under applicable law.  

 
(2) Subject to the tax provisions of applicable ordinances, resolutions and state law, the 

Trustees may, to the extent matters are not set forth in the Trust, in their discretion decide 
the manner and means of payments, the procedures to be followed in making the payments, 
and the forms required to accompany the payments to the Trust.  Upon determination by 
the Trustees of these matters, the Trustees shall provide written notice to the City and will 
provide for payments by the City to be made pursuant to the rules and regulations of the 
Trust. 

 
(3)  Time is of the essence in making and processing all payments to the Trust.  The parties 

recognize that the regular and timely payments of Contributions are essential to the 
operation of the Trust and the providing of benefits under the Plan. 

  
1:203. Trust Liabilities. 
 

 (1) Neither the City, nor any Trustee, Former Trustee, or Plan beneficiary shall be liable for 
any debts, liabilities or obligations of the Trust except as provided herein.  Neither the 
City, nor any Plan beneficiary shall have any right to the return of any money properly 
paid into the Trust, except as otherwise specifically provided in this Trust, or to money 
improperly paid which has already been invested or distributed.    

 
 (2) No part of the Trust or any assets payable therefrom shall be subject to alienation, sale, 

transfer, assignment, pledge, or encumbrance charge by any person.  No Plan beneficiary 
shall be entitled to receive any part of the Contributions made by the City or payments 
required to be made by the Trust, in lieu of such benefits provided under the Plan as 
determined by the Trustees in accordance with the Trust. 

 
1:204. Termination of the Trust. 
 
(1)  The Trust shall continue during such period of time as may be necessary to carry out the 

provisions of the Plan and for a period of time sufficient to wind up the affairs of the 
Trust. 

 
(2)  Provided there are no longer any Plan beneficiaries eligible for benefits or who may yet 

become eligible to receive benefits from the Plan and all benefit obligations to Plan 



5 
 

beneficiaries have been satisfied, the Trust may thereafter be terminated at any time by 
the Trustees so long as the termination is consistent with any then existing City decisions.  
It shall not be necessary for the City to execute such an agreement for the Trust to 
terminate. 

 
(3)  If the Trust terminates, the remaining funds available after providing for all the 

outstanding obligations shall be returned to the City. 
 

Chapter 3. 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
1:301. Board of Trustees. 
 
(1)  The Board of Trustees of the City of Troy Incentive Plan and Trust for Volunteer 

Firefighters shall consist of the following seven (7) members: 
 
 (a) The City Manager or his/her designee; 
 (b) The City Financial Services Director or his/her designee, who shall serve as Chair 

of the Board; 
 (c)  Two active volunteer firefighters appointed by the Voluntary Incentive Committee;  
 (d)  One member of the Troy City Council as selected by the City Council; and 

(e) One citizen of the City of Troy, appointed by the Mayor,  
(f) One retiree representative, appointed by the Voluntary Incentive Committee.   

 
(2)  The general administration, management and responsibility for the proper operation of 

the Trust and for making effective and construing the provisions of the Trust shall be 
vested in the Board of Trustees established by this Section, consistent with applicable 
state and federal laws and regulations.  The Board of Trustees shall be the investment 
fiduciary of the Trust.  A Trustee shall discharge his or her duties with the care, skill, and 
caution under the circumstances then prevailing which a prudent person, acting in a like 
capacity and familiar with those matters, would use in the conduct of an activity of like 
character and purpose. 

 
1:302. Trustees’ Terms of Office. 

 
(1) The regular terms of office of the Voluntary Incentive Committee and Citizen appointed 

Trustees shall be three years. 
 
(2) Each Trustee shall serve until the expiration of his or her term of office or until his or her 

death, incapacity, resignation or removal. 
 
(3) In the event a Voluntary Incentive Committee appointed Trustee resigns or is removed as 

a volunteer firefighter, he or she shall be considered to have resigned from the Board.  
The Board shall, by resolution, declare his or her office of Trustee vacated as of the date 
of such resolution.  Any vacancy occurring in the office of Trustee shall be filled within 
sixty (60) days following the date of the vacancy, for the unexpired portion of the term, in 
the same manner in which the office was previously filled. 

 
(4) If a Trustee as provided in 1:401(a) shall fail to attend scheduled meetings of the Board 

for three consecutive meetings, unless in each case excused for cause by the remaining 



6 
 

Trustees attending such meetings, the Trustee shall be considered to have resigned from 
the Board, and the Board shall, by resolution, declare the office of the Trustee vacated as 
of the date of adoption of such resolution.  Any vacancy occurring in the office of Trustee 
shall be filled within sixty (60) days following the date of the vacancy, for the unexpired 
portion of the term, in the same manner in which the office was previously filled. 

 
(5) A vacancy or vacancies in the office of the Trustees shall not impair the powers of the 

remaining Trustees to administer the affairs of the Trust, provided there are sufficient 
Trustees to constitute a quorum.  If a vacancy occurs on the Board of Trustees, it shall be 
filled as soon as practically possible.   

 
(6) Each successor Trustee, upon accepting such appointment, shall have and enjoy all the 

powers, both discretionary and ministerial, and shall be charged with all of the duties and 
responsibilities herein conferred upon his predecessor. 

 
1:303. Officers and Administration. 

  
 (1)  At its first meeting in the calendar year, the Trustees shall elect a chairperson pro-tem.  

 The chairperson pro-tem shall serve a term of one year or until a new chairperson pro tem 
 is elected. 

 
(2)  The Board of Trustees shall designate a member or other individual to serve as secretary 

of the Board of Trustees.  The secretary’s term shall be at the pleasure of the Board of 
Trustees. 

 
(3) The City Treasurer shall serve as the Treasurer of the Trust.  Any reimbursement for the 

City Treasurer’s service shall be in accordance with the provisions of 1:403 (5).   
 
(4)  The Board of Trustees may employ such other clerical staff or administrative staff to 

perform whatever administrative activities are required in the proper performance of the 
Trust.  In addition thereto, the Trustees may, if they desire, utilize other staff to perform 
such clerical and administrative duties as they may, in their sole discretion, determine is 
reasonably and prudently necessary to carry out the Trust’s activities and purposes.  
Under no circumstances shall said staff have control or authority with respect to the 
management of the Trust or its assets.  The said staff shall not be clothed with any type of 
authority or power which will constitute the staff as a fiduciary.  Said staff will not have 
the power or authority to act as an investment counselor or manager and will not be 
authorized to furnish investment advice.  Said staff shall also not have the power or 
authority to render the staff a fiduciary to the Trust. 

 
(5)  The Board of Trustees may request to utilize City staff for such functions as personnel 

administration, accounting, banking, purchasing, or other services necessary for the 
proper administration of the Plan or Trust. On an annual basis, the City will provide the 
Board with a cost allocation for the City employees who are qualified to perform the 
required duties.  If the parties mutually agree that these functions will be performed by 
City employees, then the City will notify the Board of the cost of performing the assigned 
duties, and such costs will be reimbursed from the assets of the Trust.  There must be 
compliance with all established City control procedures and policies related to these 
services. 

 



7 
 

(6)  The Board of Trustees shall employ an investment manager or investment managers to 
manage some or all of the assets of the Trust.  Each investment manager must be 
registered under the Investment Advisor’s Act of 1940, as amended, (15 USC 80b-1) and 
must meet any applicable state and federal requirements to act as an investment manager.  
The Trustees may, if they deem proper in their discretion, or if the circumstances require 
it, appoint such investment manager, managers, banks or insurance companies as 
fiduciaries and enter into an agreement with such institutions, naming it a fiduciary and 
conveying to such fiduciary all or a portion of the assets of the Trust, so that said 
fiduciary may handle, manage and hold those assets conveyed to it.  All assets conveyed 
to said fiduciary shall be subject to the provision of the agreement or agreements between 
the Trustees and the fiduciary. 

 
(7)  The City Attorney shall serve as legal counsel to the Board of Trustees.  Any 

reimbursement for the City Attorney’s service shall be in accordance with the provisions 
of 1:403(5).   

 
(8)  The Board of Trustees shall appoint an Actuary who shall advise the Trustees on the 

actuarial operation of the Trust.  The Trustees shall, from time to time, adopt such 
mortality and other tables of experience and a rate or rates of regular interest as are 
necessary in the operation of the Trust on an actuarial basis. 

 
1:304. Board Meetings. 
 
(1)  The Trustees shall meet at least once quarterly.  The Trustees shall determine the time for 

the regular meetings of the Trustees and the place or places where such meetings shall be 
held.  The Secretary or his or her designee shall be responsible for giving notice of the 
time and place of such meetings to the other Trustees.   

 
(2)  Notice and conduct of all meetings of the Trustees, both regular and special, shall be 

given in accordance with applicable law including the Michigan Open Meetings Act 
(MCL §15.261 et seq.). 

 
(3)  The Board of Trustees shall adopt its own rules of procedure and shall keep a record of 

its proceedings. Four (4) Trustees shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Board 
of Trustees.  Each Trustee shall be entitled to one vote on each question before the Board 
of Trustees and at least four (4) concurring votes shall be necessary for a decision of the 
Board. 

 
1:305. Compensation. 
 
All Trustees shall serve without compensation as members of the Board of Trustees.  Trustees 
may be reimbursed by the Trust for reasonable and necessary costs and expenses of the Trustees 
in performing their duties as Trustees as related to the operation of the Plan or Trust.  
 
1:306. Trustees’ Powers and Responsibilities. 
 

 The Trustees shall hold all the powers that are necessary to carry out the purposes of the Trust 
and are generally available to Trustees under the laws of the State of Michigan, except as limited 
by the Trust and by Federal law and regulations.  It is intended that the Trust shall be tax exempt 
and shall qualify under the Code and any amendments of the Code applicable to plans of this 



8 
 

type.  The Trustees shall have the continuing duty to propose to the City, amendments to the 
Trust to the extent it becomes necessary to qualify the Trust under the Code and to continue the 
tax exempt status of the Trust.  The Trustees shall take no action nor make any determination 
inconsistent with any qualification or ruling of the Internal Revenue Service, an arbitrator or the 
courts with respect to the Trust.  In the case of amendments to the Code or changes of 
regulations by the Internal Revenue Service or the Labor Department, the Trustees are 
empowered to take all necessary action authorized by the Plan and the Trust, Federal and state 
law and regulations, to continue the qualification of the Trust as a qualified Trust.  In carrying 
out the purposes of the Trust, the Trustees shall have the following powers and duties: 
 
(1)  The Trustees shall, in order to effectuate the purposes of the Trust, be bound by the terms 

of the Plan, the Trust, and any applicable administrative regulations. 
 

 (2)  Consistent with applicable state and Federal laws and regulations, the Trustees shall have 
the power to promulgate rules and regulations for the day-to-day management of the 
Trust, the investment of monies held by the Trust, to determine all questions regarding 
the interpretation of the Trust, and such other Trust related subjects as shall be deemed 
necessary and proper by the Trustees.  If any rule or regulation of the Trust or part thereof 
is found to be in conflict with any law, statute, judicial decision, arbitration decision or 
any other competent body or tribunal, such rule or regulation or part thereof shall be 
deemed void and all other rules and regulations of the Trust shall remain in effect. 

 
(3)  Whenever the signature of a Trustee is required on any document, two signatures of the 

individuals authorized by the Board of Trustees shall be required.  
 
1:307. Investment of Trust Assets. 
          
(1) The Trustees shall be authorized to invest the assets of the Trust in accordance with the 

provisions of the Public Employee Retirement System Investment Act, Public Act 314 of 
1965, as amended (MCL §38.1132 et seq.).  
 

(2) The Board shall invest and reinvest the principal and income of the Trust, without 
distinction between principal and income, in its sole discretion.  The Board in its sole 
discretion may keep such portion of the Trust in cash or cash balances as the Board may 
from time to time deem to be in the best interests of the Trust.  

 
(3) To the extent permitted by law, the Board may commingle the investment of the Trust 

with other funds that it administers. 
 
1:308. Board Liabilities.  
 
(1) The Board’s responsibilities and liabilities shall be subject to the following limitations 

and other limitations as set forth in the Trust:  
 

  (a) The Board shall have no duties other than those expressly set forth in this Trust 
and those imposed on the Board by applicable laws. 

 
 (b) The Board shall be responsible only for money and property actually received by 

the Board, and then to the extent described in this Trust.  
 



9 
 

 (c) The Board shall not be responsible for the correctness of any determination of 
payments or disbursements from the Trust. 

 
 (d) The Board shall have no liability for the acts or omissions of any predecessor or 

successor in office.  
 
 (e) The Board shall have no liability for the acts or omissions of any (a) Investment 

Manager or Managers; (b) insurance company; (c) investment fund; or (d) contractor. 
 
 (f) In the event of any suit brought against the Trustees arising out of the acts within 

the scope and powers and duties of the Trustees, or in the event of any lawsuit brought by 
the Trustees, the cost of defense or prosecution of such lawsuit shall be charged to the 
Trust, and shall be paid directly from the Trust, provided such costs are not incurred by 
reason of bad faith, gross negligence, or breach of a fiduciary obligation to the Trust or to 
the beneficiaries thereof. 

 
 (g) The Board may authorize the purchase of insurance for the Trust and for the 

Trustees to cover liability or losses occurring for any reason, including, but not limited to, 
an act or omission (errors or omissions) of a fiduciary, including the Trustees; provided 
however, that such insurance policy permits recourse by the insured against the fiduciary, 
including the Trustee or Trustees involved, in case of breach of fiduciary obligation by 
the fiduciary.  

 
1.309. Reports. 
 

 (1) The Trustees, or their respective designees, shall establish a uniform system for the 
timely transmission of required reports and contributions.   

 
 (2) The Trustees shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, proper books of accounts and 

records of and for the administration of the Trust, including the minutes of all meetings, 
make them available for inspection during reasonable business hours by the City, or any 
Plan beneficiary. 

 
 (3) The financial records of the Trust shall be subject to the annual audit of the City.  The 

Trustees shall fully comply with all applicable statutory and municipal budgetary and 
accounting procedures and provide access to or documentation of all assets and liabilities 
of the Trust and a resume of the operations of the Trust for the preceding year together 
with such other data as may be required by law or as part of the City’s annual financial 
report. 

 
  



10 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this document has been signed and sealed on behalf of the City of 
Troy by its duly authorized officers, on this ____ day of __________________, 2016. 
             
CITY OF TROY 
 
 
BY:____________________________________________ 
 
ITS:____________________________________________ 
       
 
BY:____________________________________________ 
 
ITS:____________________________________________ 



         
 

CITY OF TROY 
INCENTIVE TRUST FOR VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS  

 
Chapter 1. 

 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

1:100. Establishment and Purpose. 
 
 The City of Troy Incentive Trust for Volunteer Firefighters (the “Trust”) is hereby 

established to allow the City of Troy to fund the benefits as provided pursuant to the 
provisions of the City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters, an essential 
government function.   

 
1:101. Short Title. 
 
 This Trust may be known and cited as the City of Troy Incentive Trust for Volunteer 

Firefighters (“Trust”).  
 

1:102. Definitions. 
 
 For the purposes of this Trust, the following words shall have the meanings respectively 

ascribed to them by this section: 
 
(1)  Annual Benefit Amount means the annual dollar amount of the length of service incentive 

benefits which may be payable from the Plan to eligible Former Participants, as amended 
from time to time by City Council via a budget appropriations resolution. 

 
(2) City means the City of Troy, Michigan. 
 
(3) City Council means the City Council of the City of Troy, Michigan.  
 
(4) Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  Reference to any section 

or subsection of the Code includes reference to any comparable or succeeding provision 
of any legislation which amends or replaces such section or subsection and any 
regulations thereto. 

 
(5) Contribution(s) means the payments made to the Trust by the City for the purpose of 

providing length of service based incentive benefits to Former Participants and 
beneficiaries covered by the Plan.   

 
(6) Incentive Service Credit means personal service rendered to the City as a volunteer 

firefighter and credited to a Participant in accordance with the Plan. 
    
 
(7) Plan means the City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters established by 

Ordinance as provided herein.  A description of the incentive benefits provided to eligible 
Former Participants, spouses and dependents under the Plan is maintained by the Plan 
Administrator.  

 

Deleted:  PLAN AND

Deleted: This City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer 
Firefighters (the “Plan”) is hereby restated, as amended, for the 
purpose of providing length of service incentive benefits for the 
City of Troy volunteer firefighters.  

Deleted: required 

Deleted: Plan 

Deleted: Plan and 

Deleted: Plan and 

Deleted: Plan and 

Deleted:  Plan and

Deleted: payment required to be

Deleted: (6) Former Participant means an individual who is 
(a) an active volunteer firefighter, who upon attaining eligibility, 
elected to commence receipt of incentive benefits and is therefore 
no longer entitled to further benefit accruals under the provisions 
of this Plan; (b) a former volunteer firefighter, who upon 
termination of volunteer service was eligible for, and elected to 
commence receipt, of incentive benefits from the Plan; or (c) a 
Former Vested Participant, who upon attaining eligibility, elected 
to commence receipt of incentive benefits from the Plan;

Moved down [1]:   ¶
¶
(7

Moved (insertion) [1]

Deleted: ¶
(8) Participant means an individual who is an active volunteer 
firefighter entitled to benefit accruals under the provisions of the 
Plan and who has not elected to commence receipt of benefits 
under the terms of the Plan.   ¶
¶
(9

Deleted:  and Trust

Deleted: Retired Volunteer Firefighters



2 
 

(8) Plan Administrator means the person, persons, firm, corporation or insurance company or 
companies, appointed by the City to administer the Plan. The Plan Administrator shall be 
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Plan and shall carry out the directives of 
the City and the Board of Trustees. 

 
(9) Plan Beneficiary means a Participant, Former Participant, Deferred Former Participant, 

spouse, or beneficiary as defined in the Plan. 
 
(10) Trust means the City of Troy Incentive Trust for Volunteer Firefighters as established 

pursuant to the declaration of trust approved by the City Council and as may be amended 
from time to time. 

 
(11) Trustee(s) or Board means the Board of Trustees of the Trust or a member of the Board 

of Trustees of the Trust as provided for in the Trust. 
 
(12) Voluntary Incentive Committee means a committee comprised of representatives selected 

by each of the six fire stations in the City.   
 
1:103. Interpretation and law; Construction.  
  
(1) The Trust is hereby established and shall be administered consistent with applicable 

Federal and Michigan law, including, but not limited to the Public Employee Retirement 
System Investment Act, Public Act 314 of 1965, as amended (MCL §38.1132 et seq.).  

 
 (2) The Trust shall constitute a grantor governmental trust pursuant to Section 115 of the 

Code, as amended and shall be construed, enforced and administered and the validity 
thereof determined in accordance with the Code and the laws of the State of Michigan.  If 
any provision of the Trust is held to violate the Code or to be illegal or invalid for any 
other reason, that provision shall be deemed to be null and void, but the invalidation of 
that provision shall not otherwise affect the Trust.  

 
(3)  Neither the establishment of the Trust, nor any modification thereof, nor the creation of 

any fund or account, nor the payment of any benefits to the Plan, shall be construed as 
giving to any person, any legal or equitable right against the City, its elected or appointed 
officials or employees, the Trustees or any individual Trustee, except as may otherwise 
be provided in the Trust.  

 
(4) The headings and subheadings in this Trust are inserted for convenience of reference only 

and are not to be considered in the construction of any provision of the Trust.  
 
(5) Words herein in the masculine gender shall be construed to include the feminine gender 

where appropriate, and words used herein in the singular or plural shall be construed as 
being in the plural or singular where appropriate.  

 
(6) In resolving any conflict among provisions of this Trust or any uncertainty as to the 

meaning or intention of any provision of this Trust, the interpretation that causes both the 
Trust to be exempt from tax and the Trust to comply with all applicable requirements of 
the Code shall prevail over any different interpretation.  

 
 

Deleted: 10

Deleted: (11) Spouse means a Participant’s, Former 
Participant’s or Vested Former Participant’s spouse by legal 
marriage who is the Participant’s spouse on the earlier of the date 
the Participant terminates  from volunteering with the City or 
elects to commence receipt of incentive benefits from the Plan. ¶
¶
(12

Deleted: declaration of trust of the 

Deleted: Plan and 

Deleted: provided for in Chapter 3 of this Plan and Trust

Deleted: 13

Deleted: this

Deleted: (14) Vested Former Participant means a former 
volunteer firefighter and Participant who has ten (10) or more 
years of incentive service as a volunteer firefighter for the City, 
but has not reached the requisite age requirement for 
commencement of benefits from the Plan.¶
¶
(15

Deleted: Plan

Deleted: .),. 

Deleted:  Plan or

Deleted: Plan or 

Deleted: The City intends the incentive benefits provided by 
this Plan to be considered a contractual benefit protected and 
guaranteed by Article IX, Section 24 of the State of Michigan 
Constitution.¶
¶
(4)

Deleted:  the Plan or

Deleted:  person covered under the Plan, or any other

Deleted: this Plan and

Deleted: 5

Deleted:  Plan and

Deleted: Plan or 

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 7

Deleted: Plan and 

Deleted:  Plan and

Deleted: ¶
(8) This Plan and Trust shall be binding upon all Participants, 
Former Participants and Vested Former Participants under the Plan, 
or their applicable heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns. 



3 
 

1:104. Notice. 
 
 Notice given to all interested parties shall, unless otherwise specified in this Trust, be 

sufficient if in writing and delivered or sent by prepaid first class mail.  Except as 
otherwise noted, the distribution or delivery of any statements or documents required 
under the Trust shall be sufficient if delivered in person or prepaid first class mail.  The 
City Council shall hold a public hearing prior to taking any formal action to amend or 
terminate the Trust.   

 
1:105. Amendments. 
 
 The provisions of the Trust may be amended at any time by the Troy City Council in 

accordance with applicable law.  The Voluntary Incentive Committee will be notified at 
least thirty (30) days in advance that a proposed amendment or revision will be submitted 
to the Troy City Council for consideration. 

 
Chapter 2. 

 
INCENTIVE TRUST FOR VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS 

       
1:200. Irrevocable Trust, Established. 
 
 The Trust, established by the City in accordance with Section 115 of the Code shall be an 

irrevocable grantor trust administered consistent with applicable federal and Michigan law, 
and shall constitute a governmental trust under Section 115 of the Code, as amended, 
Revenue Rulings 77-261 and 90-74, and other relevant guidance.  The Trust is intended to 
fund the City’s volunteer firefighter incentive benefits under the Plan pursuant to 
applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, the regulations promulgated under 
each, and applicable federal and Michigan law.  The Trust shall conform to all applicable 
sections of the Internal Revenue Code, the statement of purpose in this Trust, and all 
statutes, ordinances, rules, administrative regulations, arbitrators’ awards and judicial 
decisions interpreting the foregoing provisions. 

 
 The Trust shall consist of City Contributions pursuant to the provisions of a City 

administrative regulation, all investments made or held under Trust, and all income 
therefrom, both received and accrued, and any other property, which may be received or 
held by reason of this Trust.   

 
 The income accruing to the Trust shall be excluded from gross income as such trust income 

is derived from the exercise of an essential governmental function as provided for under 
Section 115(1) of the Code, as amended, Revenue Rulings 77-261 and 90-74, and other 
relevant guidance.    

 
1:201. Use of Trust Assets. 
 
(1)  The Trust assets shall not be used for or diverted to purposes other than to provide the 

benefits contemplated under the Plan or to pay for reasonable and necessary services, costs 
and expenses related to assisting the Trustees in the operation of the Trust.  Plan 
beneficiaries shall have no preferred claim on, or any beneficial ownership interest in, any 
assets of the Trust. 

Deleted: Administrative Regulations.¶
¶

The provisions of this Plan are subject to relevant provisions of 
any administrative regulations that the City may have for volunteer 
firefighters and any volunteer  service contracts between the City 
and an individual Participant, if any. The provisions of any 
administrative regulations or service contracts for volunteer 
firefighters  relative to incentive benefits are controlling in the event 
of a conflict between the terms of the administrative regulations or 
applicable  service contract and the Plan. ¶
¶
¶
¶
1:105.

Deleted: Plan

Deleted: Plan and 

Deleted: 106. Reporting and Disclosure.¶
¶

The Plan Administrator shall complete and provide to 
Participants, Former Participants,  Vested Former Participants, 
Spouses and Dependents and to the appropriate government 
agencies any reports as may be required by the Code, applicable 
federal, state or local law. ¶
¶
1:107

Deleted: Plan or the 

Deleted: anytime

Deleted: INCENTIVE PLAN FOR VOLUNTEER 
FIREFIGHTERS¶
¶
1:200. Participation.¶
¶
(1) Each active volunteer firefighter of the City shall be a 
Participant in the Plan.¶
¶
(2) Participation shall terminate upon the earlier of termination of 
duties as a volunteer firefighter or commencement of incentive 
benefits under the provisions of this Plan.¶
¶
1:201. Service Credit.¶
¶
(1) A Participant shall be credited with one month of service credit 
for each complete ¶

calendar month the Participant is a volunteer firefighter and meets 
or exceeds the attendance requirements as indentified in the Troy 
Fire Department Policy Directive 103.07.  Service shall be totaled in 
years and months.¶
¶
(2) Service credit shall be forfeited five years after the date an 
individual ceases to be an active volunteer firefighter and a 
Participant in the Plan unless the individual is a Former 

Participant, a Vested Former Participant  or returns to active duty 
as a volunteer firefighter for ten consecutive years¶
¶
¶
1:202. Benefits.¶
¶
(1) An eligible Participant or Vested Former Participant, upon 
written application filed with the Board of Trustees, shall be paid 
incentive benefits pursuant to the provisions of this Plan.  The 
incentive benefits due an eligible Participant or Vested Former 
Participant shall be determined at the time he or she terminates 
participation, as provided in the Plan.¶ ... [1]

Deleted: 300

Deleted: contractual obligation to provide

Deleted: 301

Deleted: Plan Participants, Former Participants, Vested Former 
Participants and their respective beneficiairies



4 
 

 
(2)  All income, profits, recoveries, contributions, forfeitures and any and all monies, securities 

and properties of any kind at any time received or held by the Trustees hereunder, shall 
become part of the Trust when received, and shall be held for the use and purposes hereof. 

 
(3) Any assets held by the Trust shall be subject to the claims of the City’s general creditors in 

the event of the City’s insolvency. 
 
1:202. Funding. 
 
(1)  For the purpose of creating and maintaining a fund for the payment of incentive benefits 

payable as provided in the Plan, the City will pay to the Trust an amount consistent with 
the actuarial valuations and calculations made by the Actuary for the Trust to result in a 
pre-funded plan. Such contributions shall also be made in accordance with any regulations 
of the Board of Trustees as are not inconsistent with the authority stated in the Plan or this 
Trust document, or under applicable law.  

 
(2) Subject to the tax provisions of applicable ordinances, resolutions and state law, the 

Trustees may, to the extent matters are not set forth in the Trust, in their discretion decide 
the manner and means of payments, the procedures to be followed in making the payments, 
and the forms required to accompany the payments to the Trust.  Upon determination by 
the Trustees of these matters, the Trustees shall provide written notice to the City and will 
provide for payments by the City to be made pursuant to the rules and regulations of the 
Trust. 

 
(3)  Time is of the essence in making and processing all payments to the Trust.  The parties 

recognize that the regular and timely payments of Contributions are essential to the 
operation of the Trust and the providing of benefits under the Plan. 

  
1:203. Trust Liabilities. 
 

 (1) Neither the City, nor any Trustee, Former Trustee, or Plan beneficiary shall be liable for 
any debts, liabilities or obligations of the Trust except as provided herein.  Neither the 
City, nor any Plan beneficiary shall have any right to the return of any money properly 
paid into the Trust, except as otherwise specifically provided in this Trust, or to money 
improperly paid which has already been invested or distributed.    

 
 (2) No part of the Trust or any assets payable therefrom shall be subject to alienation, sale, 

transfer, assignment, pledge, or encumbrance charge by any person.  No Plan beneficiary 
shall be entitled to receive any part of the Contributions made by the City or payments 
required to be made by the Trust, in lieu of such benefits provided under the Plan as 
determined by the Trustees in accordance with the Trust. 

 
1:204. Termination of the Trust. 
 
(1)  The Trust shall continue during such period of time as may be necessary to carry out the 

provisions of the Plan and for a period of time sufficient to wind up the affairs of the 
Trust. 

 

Deleted: anytime

Deleted: 302

Deleted: 303

Deleted: Participant

Deleted: Vested Former Participant 

Deleted: Trustee

Deleted: Participant, Former Participant or  Vested Former 
Participant

Deleted: No Participant, Former Participant or Vested Former 
Participant

Deleted: 304

Deleted:  In the event of termination or partial termination of 
the Plan, a Participant’s vested interest is a contractual obligation 
under Article IX, Section 24 of the State of Michigan 
Constitution. 



5 
 

(2)  Provided there are no longer any Plan beneficiaries eligible for benefits or who may yet 
become eligible to receive benefits from the Plan and all benefit obligations to Plan 
beneficiaries have been satisfied, the Trust may thereafter be terminated at any time by 
the Trustees so long as the termination is consistent with any then existing City decisions.  
It shall not be necessary for the City to execute such an agreement for the Trust to 
terminate. 

 
(3)  If the Trust terminates, the remaining funds available after providing for all the 

outstanding obligations shall be returned to the City. 
 

Chapter 3. 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
1:301. Board of Trustees. 
 
(1)  The Board of Trustees of the City of Troy Incentive Plan and Trust for Volunteer 

Firefighters shall consist of the following seven (7) members: 
 
 (a) The City Manager or his/her designee; 
 (b) The City Financial Services Director or his/her designee, who shall serve as Chair 

of the Board; 
 (c)  Two active volunteer firefighters appointed by the Voluntary Incentive Committee;  
 (d)  One member of the Troy City Council as selected by the City Council; and 

(e) One citizen of the City of Troy, appointed by the Mayor,  
(f) One retiree representative, appointed by the Voluntary Incentive Committee.   

 
(2)  The general administration, management and responsibility for the proper operation of 

the Trust and for making effective and construing the provisions of the Trust shall be 
vested in the Board of Trustees established by this Section, consistent with applicable 
state and federal laws and regulations.  The Board of Trustees shall be the investment 
fiduciary of the Trust.  A Trustee shall discharge his or her duties with the care, skill, and 
caution under the circumstances then prevailing which a prudent person, acting in a like 
capacity and familiar with those matters, would use in the conduct of an activity of like 
character and purpose. 

 
1:302. Trustees’ Terms of Office. 

 
(1) The regular terms of office of the Voluntary Incentive Committee and Citizen appointed 

Trustees shall be three years. 
 
(2) Each Trustee shall serve until the expiration of his or her term of office or until his or her 

death, incapacity, resignation or removal. 
 
(3) In the event a Voluntary Incentive Committee appointed Trustee resigns or is removed as 

a volunteer firefighter, he or she shall be considered to have resigned from the Board.  
The Board shall, by resolution, declare his or her office of Trustee vacated as of the date 
of such resolution.  Any vacancy occurring in the office of Trustee shall be filled within 
sixty (60) days following the date of the vacancy, for the unexpired portion of the term, in 
the same manner in which the office was previously filled. 

 

Deleted: Participants (including those not yet vested), Former 
Participants or Vested Former Participants

Deleted: Participants, Former Participants, Vested Former 
Participants, and their respective

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 401

Deleted: six

Deleted: Plan

Deleted: 402

Deleted: Participant elected

Deleted: Participant elected



6 
 

(4) If a Trustee as provided in 1:401(a) shall fail to attend scheduled meetings of the Board 
for three consecutive meetings, unless in each case excused for cause by the remaining 
Trustees attending such meetings, the Trustee shall be considered to have resigned from 
the Board, and the Board shall, by resolution, declare the office of the Trustee vacated as 
of the date of adoption of such resolution.  Any vacancy occurring in the office of Trustee 
shall be filled within sixty (60) days following the date of the vacancy, for the unexpired 
portion of the term, in the same manner in which the office was previously filled. 

 
(5) A vacancy or vacancies in the office of the Trustees shall not impair the powers of the 

remaining Trustees to administer the affairs of the Trust, provided there are sufficient 
Trustees to constitute a quorum.  If a vacancy occurs on the Board of Trustees, it shall be 
filled as soon as practically possible.   

 
(6) Each successor Trustee, upon accepting such appointment, shall have and enjoy all the 

powers, both discretionary and ministerial, and shall be charged with all of the duties and 
responsibilities herein conferred upon his predecessor. 

 
1:303. Officers and Administration. 

  
 (1)  At its first meeting in the calendar year, the Trustees shall elect a chairperson pro-tem.  

 The chairperson pro-tem shall serve a term of one year or until a new chairperson pro tem 
 is elected. 

 
(2)  The Board of Trustees shall designate a member or other individual to serve as secretary 

of the Board of Trustees.  The secretary’s term shall be at the pleasure of the Board of 
Trustees. 

 
(3) The City Treasurer shall serve as the Treasurer of the Trust.  Any reimbursement for the 

City Treasurer’s service shall be in accordance with the provisions of 1:403 (5).   
 
(4)  The Board of Trustees may employ such other clerical staff or administrative staff to 

perform whatever administrative activities are required in the proper performance of the 
Trust.  In addition thereto, the Trustees may, if they desire, utilize other staff to perform 
such clerical and administrative duties as they may, in their sole discretion, determine is 
reasonably and prudently necessary to carry out the Trust’s activities and purposes.  
Under no circumstances shall said staff have control or authority with respect to the 
management of the Trust or its assets.  The said staff shall not be clothed with any type of 
authority or power which will constitute the staff as a fiduciary.  Said staff will not have 
the power or authority to act as an investment counselor or manager and will not be 
authorized to furnish investment advice.  Said staff shall also not have the power or 
authority to render the staff a fiduciary to the Trust. 

 
(5)  The Board of Trustees may request to utilize City staff for such functions as personnel 

administration, accounting, banking, purchasing, or other services necessary for the 
proper administration of the Plan or Trust. On an annual basis, the City will provide the 
Board with a cost allocation for the City employees who are qualified to perform the 
required duties.  If the parties mutually agree that these functions will be performed by 
City employees, then the City will notify the Board of the cost of performing the assigned 
duties, and such costs will be reimbursed from the assets of the Trust.  There must be 

Deleted: 403

Deleted: and a 

Deleted: chairperson pro-tem.  The chairperson and 
chairperson pro-tem shall serve a term of one ¶

year or until a new chairperson and chairperson pro-tem are 
elected.¶

Deleted: and



7 
 

compliance with all established City control procedures and policies related to these 
services. 

 
(6)  The Board of Trustees shall employ an investment manager or investment managers to 

manage some or all of the assets of the Trust.  Each investment manager must be 
registered under the Investment Advisor’s Act of 1940, as amended, (15 USC 80b-1) and 
must meet any applicable state and federal requirements to act as an investment manager.  
The Trustees may, if they deem proper in their discretion, or if the circumstances require 
it, appoint such investment manager, managers, banks or insurance companies as 
fiduciaries and enter into an agreement with such institutions, naming it a fiduciary and 
conveying to such fiduciary all or a portion of the assets of the Trust, so that said 
fiduciary may handle, manage and hold those assets conveyed to it.  All assets conveyed 
to said fiduciary shall be subject to the provision of the agreement or agreements between 
the Trustees and the fiduciary. 

 
(7)  The City Attorney shall serve as legal counsel to the Board of Trustees.  Any 

reimbursement for the City Attorney’s service shall be in accordance with the provisions 
of 1:403(5).   

 
(8)  The Board of Trustees shall appoint an Actuary who shall advise the Trustees on the 

actuarial operation of the Trust.  The Trustees shall, from time to time, adopt such 
mortality and other tables of experience and a rate or rates of regular interest as are 
necessary in the operation of the Trust on an actuarial basis. 

 
1:304. Board Meetings. 
 
(1)  The Trustees shall meet at least once quarterly.  The Trustees shall determine the time for 

the regular meetings of the Trustees and the place or places where such meetings shall be 
held.  The Secretary or his or her designee shall be responsible for giving notice of the 
time and place of such meetings to the other Trustees.   

 
(2)  Notice and conduct of all meetings of the Trustees, both regular and special, shall be 

given in accordance with applicable law including the Michigan Open Meetings Act 
(MCL §15.261 et seq.). 

 
(3)  The Board of Trustees shall adopt its own rules of procedure and shall keep a record of 

its proceedings. Four (4) Trustees shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Board 
of Trustees.  Each Trustee shall be entitled to one vote on each question before the Board 
of Trustees and at least four (4) concurring votes shall be necessary for a decision of the 
Board. 

 
1:305. Compensation. 
 
All Trustees shall serve without compensation as members of the Board of Trustees.  Trustees 
may be reimbursed by the Trust for reasonable and necessary costs and expenses of the Trustees 
in performing their duties as Trustees as related to the operation of the Plan or Trust.  
 
1:306. Trustees’ Powers and Responsibilities. 
 

Deleted: Plan and 

Deleted: Plan and 

Deleted: 404

Deleted: Three (3

Deleted: three (3

Deleted: 405

Deleted: and

Deleted: 406



8 
 

 The Trustees shall hold all the powers that are necessary to carry out the purposes of the Trust 
and are generally available to Trustees under the laws of the State of Michigan, except as limited 
by the Trust and by Federal law and regulations.  It is intended that the Trust shall be tax exempt 
and shall qualify under the Code and any amendments of the Code applicable to plans of this 
type.  The Trustees shall have the continuing duty to propose to the City, amendments to the 
Trust to the extent it becomes necessary to qualify the Trust under the Code and to continue the 
tax exempt status of the Trust.  The Trustees shall take no action nor make any determination 
inconsistent with any qualification or ruling of the Internal Revenue Service, an arbitrator or the 
courts with respect to the Trust.  In the case of amendments to the Code or changes of 
regulations by the Internal Revenue Service or the Labor Department, the Trustees are 
empowered to take all necessary action authorized by the Plan and the Trust, Federal and state 
law and regulations, to continue the qualification of the Trust as a qualified Trust.  In carrying 
out the purposes of the Trust, the Trustees shall have the following powers and duties: 
 
(1)  The Trustees shall, in order to effectuate the purposes of the Trust, be bound by the terms 

of the Plan, the Trust, and any applicable administrative regulations. 
 

 (2)  Consistent with applicable state and Federal laws and regulations, the Trustees shall have 
the power to promulgate rules and regulations for the day-to-day management of the 
Trust, the investment of monies held by the Trust, to determine all questions regarding 
the interpretation of the Trust, and such other Trust related subjects as shall be deemed 
necessary and proper by the Trustees.  If any rule or regulation of the Trust or part thereof 
is found to be in conflict with any law, statute, judicial decision, arbitration decision or 
any other competent body or tribunal, such rule or regulation or part thereof shall be 
deemed void and all other rules and regulations of the Trust shall remain in effect. 

 
(3)  Whenever the signature of a Trustee is required on any document, two signatures of the 

individuals authorized by the Board of Trustees shall be required.  
 
1:307. Investment of Trust Assets. 
          
(1) The Trustees shall be authorized to invest the assets of the Trust in accordance with the 

provisions of the Public Employee Retirement System Investment Act, Public Act 314 of 
1965, as amended (MCL §38.1132 et seq.).  
 

(2) The Board shall invest and reinvest the principal and income of the Trust, without 
distinction between principal and income, in its sole discretion.  The Board in its sole 
discretion may keep such portion of the Trust in cash or cash balances as the Board may 
from time to time deem to be in the best interests of the Trust.  

 
(3) To the extent permitted by law, the Board may commingle the investment of the Trust 

with other funds that it administers. 
 
1:308. Board Liabilities.  
 
(1) The Board’s responsibilities and liabilities shall be subject to the following limitations 

and other limitations as set forth in the Trust:  
 

  (a) The Board shall have no duties other than those expressly set forth in this Trust 
and those imposed on the Board by applicable laws. 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: this Plan

Deleted: said Plan

Deleted: 407

Deleted: (1)

Deleted: 408

Deleted: (1



9 
 

 
 (b) The Board shall be responsible only for money and property actually received by 

the Board, and then to the extent described in this Trust.  
 
 (c) The Board shall not be responsible for the correctness of any determination of 

payments or disbursements from the Trust. 
 
 (d) The Board shall have no liability for the acts or omissions of any predecessor or 

successor in office.  
 
 (e) The Board shall have no liability for the acts or omissions of any (a) Investment 

Manager or Managers; (b) insurance company; (c) investment fund; or (d) contractor. 
 
 (f) In the event of any suit brought against the Trustees arising out of the acts within 

the scope and powers and duties of the Trustees, or in the event of any lawsuit brought by 
the Trustees, the cost of defense or prosecution of such lawsuit shall be charged to the 
Trust, and shall be paid directly from the Trust, provided such costs are not incurred by 
reason of bad faith, gross negligence, or breach of a fiduciary obligation to the Trust or to 
the beneficiaries thereof. 

 
 (g) The Board may authorize the purchase of insurance for the Trust and for the 

Trustees to cover liability or losses occurring for any reason, including, but not limited to, 
an act or omission (errors or omissions) of a fiduciary, including the Trustees; provided 
however, that such insurance policy permits recourse by the insured against the fiduciary, 
including the Trustee or Trustees involved, in case of breach of fiduciary obligation by 
the fiduciary.  

 
1.309. Reports. 
 

 (1) The Trustees, or their respective designees, shall establish a uniform system for the 
timely transmission of required reports and contributions.   

 
 (2) The Trustees shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, proper books of accounts and 

records of and for the administration of the Trust, including the minutes of all meetings, 
make them available for inspection during reasonable business hours by the City, or any 
Plan beneficiary. 

 
 (3) The financial records of the Trust shall be subject to the annual audit of the City.  The 

Trustees shall fully comply with all applicable statutory and municipal budgetary and 
accounting procedures and provide access to or documentation of all assets and liabilities 
of the Trust and a resume of the operations of the Trust for the preceding year together 
with such other data as may be required by law or as part of the City’s annual financial 
report. 

 
  

Deleted: (2

Deleted: (3

Deleted: (4

Deleted: (5

Deleted: (6

Deleted: (7

Deleted: 409

Deleted: Participant, Former Participant or Vested Former 
Participant covered by the Trust



10 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this document has been signed and sealed on behalf of the City of 
Troy by its duly authorized officers, on this ____ day of __________________, 2015. 
             
CITY OF TROY 
 
 
BY:____________________________________________ 
 
ITS:____________________________________________ 
       
 
BY:____________________________________________ 
 
ITS:____________________________________________ 

Deleted: 2014



Page 3: [1] Deleted   Aaron Castle   12/9/2015 10:30:00 AM 

INCENTIVE PLAN FOR VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS 
 
1:200. Participation. 
 
(1) Each active volunteer firefighter of the City shall be a Participant in the Plan. 
 
(2) Participation shall terminate upon the earlier of termination of duties as a volunteer 

firefighter or commencement of incentive benefits under the provisions of this Plan. 
 
1:201. Service Credit. 
 
(1) A Participant shall be credited with one month of service credit for each complete   
 calendar month the Participant is a volunteer firefighter and meets or exceeds the 

attendance requirements as indentified in the Troy Fire Department Policy Directive 
103.07.  Service shall be totaled in years and months. 

 
(2) Service credit shall be forfeited five years after the date an individual ceases to be an 
 active volunteer firefighter and a Participant in the Plan unless the individual is a Former 
 Participant, a Vested Former Participant  or returns to active duty as a volunteer 
 firefighter for ten consecutive years 
 
 
1:202. Benefits. 
 
(1) An eligible Participant or Vested Former Participant, upon written application filed with 

the Board of Trustees, shall be paid incentive benefits pursuant to the provisions of this 
Plan.  The incentive benefits due an eligible Participant or Vested Former Participant 
shall be determined at the time he or she terminates participation, as provided in the Plan. 

 
(2) A Participant shall be eligible for incentive benefit payments upon his termination of 

Participation in the Plan and satisfaction of  the following eligibility criteria as may be 
amended from time to time by resolution of City Council: 

 
  (a) Ten (10) years of service and age fifty-five (55); 

(b) Twenty-five (25) or more years of service and has attained fifty (50) years 
of age; or 

  (c) A Participant having attained thirty (30) years of service regardless of age. 
  (d) For Vested Former Participants, Ten (10) years of service and age   
   sixty (60).  
 
(3) Incentive benefits shall be made in monthly installments on the last day of each month 

during the life of the Former Participant. 
 
(4) The amount of each annual incentive benefit shall be equal to Six Hundred Forty Two 

dollars ($642.00) multiplied by the years of credited service.  The annual benefit amount 



may be indexed for inflation and/or amended from time to time by a City Council budget 
appropriations resolution. 

 
(5) Prior to the date of his first incentive benefits, but not thereafter, an eligible Former 

Participant  may elect to receive his incentive benefits payable throughout his life, or 
receive his incentive benefits in a reduced amount payable throughout his life, and 
nominate a beneficiary, in accordance with the provisions of the Options as set forth 
below: 

 
Option A: 100% Joint and Survivor: Upon the death of a Former Participant, who 

elected Option A, his reduced incentive payment shall be continued 
throughout the life of and paid to such person having an insurable interest 
in his life, as he shall have nominated; or 

 
Option B: 50% Joint and Survivor: Upon the death of a Former Participant, who 

elected Option B, one-half of his reduced incentive benefits shall be 
continued throughout the life of and paid to such person, having an 
insurable interest in his life, as he shall have  nominated. 

 
Option C: 100 % Joint and Survivor Pension w/ Pop-up (Pop-up Option A): Upon 

the death of a Former Participant who elected Option C, his reduced 
incentive benefits shall be continued  through the life and paid to such 
person having an insurable interest in his life, as he shall have nominated.  
If the selected beneficiary predeceases the Former Participant, the 
incentive benefits shall revert to a straight-life payment payable 
throughout the remainder of the Former Participant’s life. 

 
Option D: 50% Modified Joint and Survivor Pension with Pop-up (Pop-up Option B): 

Upon the death of a Former Participant who elected Option D, one-half of 
his reduced incentive benefits shall be continued throughout the life of and 
paid to such person having an insurable interest in his life, as he shall have 
nominated. If the selected beneficiary predeceases the Former Participant, 
the incentive benefits shall revert to a straight-life payment payable 
throughout the remainder of the Former Participant’s  life. 

 
(6) In the event a Participant dies who has ten or more years of incentive service, his Spouse 

shall receive an incentive benefit computed in the same manner in all respects as if the 
Participant had terminated Participation on the day preceding his death, elected Option A, 
and nominated his Spouse as beneficiary. 

 
1:203. Miscellaneous. 
 
(1) Each Participant, Former Participant and Vested Former Participant shall be deemed to 

have assented to the terms and conditions of the Plan. An individual may not sell, assign 
or hypothecate, in any manner, all or any part of the individual’s potential payments 
under the Plan. 



 
(2) Nothing in this Plan shall in any way affect the rights of the City or a Participant to 
 terminate 
 the volunteer firefighter relationship between them. 
 

Chapter 3. 
 

 



 

 

 
CITY OF TROY 

INCENTIVE PLAN FOR VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS  
 

Chapter 1. 
 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
1:100. Establishment and Purpose. 
 
 This City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters is hereby restated, as amended, 

for the purpose of providing length of service incentive benefits for the City of Troy 
volunteer firefighters. 

 
1:101. Short Title. 
 
 This Plan may be known and cited as the City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer 

Firefighters (“Plan”).  
 

1:102. Definitions. 
 
 For the purposes of this Plan, the following words shall have the meanings respectively 

ascribed to them by this section: 
 
(1)  Annual Benefit Amount means the annual dollar amount of the length of service incentive 

benefits which may be payable from the Plan to eligible Former Participants, as amended 
from time to time by City Council via a budget appropriations resolution. 

 
(2) Break in service shall mean an unapproved leave of absence or termination of service as a 

volunteer firefighter lasting more than one (1) year. 
 
(3) City means the City of Troy, Michigan. 
 
(4) City Council means the City Council of the City of Troy, Michigan.  
 
(5) Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  Reference to any section 

or subsection of the Code includes reference to any comparable or succeeding provision 
of any legislation which amends or replaces such section or subsection and any 
regulations thereto. 

 
(6) Contribution(s) means the payments made to the Trust by the City for the purpose of 

providing length of service based incentive benefits to Former Participants and 
beneficiaries covered by the Plan. 

 
(7) Deferred Former Participant means a former volunteer firefighter and Former Participant 

who has ten (10) or more years of incentive service as a volunteer firefighter for the City, 
but has not reached the requisite age requirement for commencement of benefits from the 
Plan. 

 
 



 

2 
 

(8) Eligible Former Participant means an individual who is (a) an active volunteer 
firefighter, who upon attaining eligibility, elected to commence receipt of incentive 
benefits and is therefore no longer entitled to further benefit accruals under the provisions 
of this Plan; (b) a former volunteer firefighter, who upon termination of volunteer service 
was eligible for, and elected to commence receipt, of incentive benefits from the Plan; (c) 
a former volunteer firefighter, who is eligible for incentive benefits from the Plan but has 
not yet elected to commence receipt of incentive benefits from the Plan; or (d) a Deferred 
Former Participant.  

 
(9) Incentive Service Credit means personal service rendered to the City as a volunteer 

firefighter and credited to a Participant in accordance with the Plan. 
 
(10) Ineligible Former Participant shall mean an individual who ceases to be an active 

volunteer firefighter prior to attainment of eligibility for incentive benefits under the 
provisions of this Plan. 

 
(11) Participant means an individual who is an active volunteer firefighter eligible for benefit 

accruals under the provisions of the Plan and who has not elected to commence receipt of 
benefits under the terms of the Plan.    

 
(12) Plan means the City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters established by 

Ordinance as provided herein.  A description of the incentive benefits provided to 
Eligible Former Participants, spouses and dependents under the Plan is maintained by the 
Plan Administrator.  

 
(13) Plan Administrator means the person, persons, firm, corporation or insurance company or 

companies, appointed by the City to administer the Plan. The Plan Administrator shall be 
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Plan and shall carry out the directives of 
the City and the Board of Trustees. 

 
(14) Service shall mean personal service rendered to the City of Troy as a volunteer firefighter. 
 
(15) Spouse means a Participant’s or Eligible Former Participant’s spouse by legal marriage 

who is the Participant’s or Eligible Former Participant’s spouse on the earlier of the date 
the Participant terminates from volunteering with the City or elects to commence receipt 
of incentive benefits from the Plan.  

 
(16) Trust means the City of Troy Incentive Trust for Volunteer Firefighters as established 

pursuant to the declaration of trust approved by the City Council and as may be amended 
from time to time. 

 
(17) Trustee(s) or Board means the Board of Trustees of the Trust or a member of the Board 

of Trustees of the Trust as provided for in the Trust. 
 
(18) Voluntary Incentive Committee means a committee comprised of representatives selected 

by each of the six fire stations in the City.   
 
 
 



 

3 
 

1:103. Interpretation and law; Construction.  
  
(1) The Plan is hereby established and shall be administered consistent with applicable 

Federal and Michigan law, including, but not limited to the Public Employee Retirement 
System Investment Act, Public Act 314 of 1965, as amended (MCL §38.1132 et seq.).  

 
(2) The establishment of this Plan, any modification thereof, the creation of any fund or 

account, or the payment of any benefits, shall not be construed as giving to any person 
covered under the Plan, or any other person, any legal or equitable right against the City, 
its elected or appointed officials or employees, the Trustees or any individual Trustee, 
except as may otherwise be provided in this Plan document.  

 
(3) The headings and subheadings in this Plan are inserted for convenience of reference only 

and are not to be considered in the construction of any provision of the Plan.  
 
(4) Words herein in the masculine gender shall be construed to include the feminine gender 

where appropriate, and words used herein in the singular or plural shall be construed as 
being in the plural or singular where appropriate.  

 
(5) In resolving any conflict among provisions of this Plan or any uncertainty as to the 

meaning or intention of any provision of this Plan, the interpretation that causes both the 
Trust to be exempt from tax and the Trust to comply with all applicable requirements of 
the Code shall prevail over any different interpretation.  

      
(6) This Plan shall be binding upon all Participants and Eligible Former Participants under 

the Plan, or their applicable heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.  
 
1:104. Administrative Regulations. 
 
 The provisions of this Plan are subject to relevant provisions of any administrative 

regulations that the City may have for volunteer firefighters and any volunteer service 
contracts between the City and an individual Participant, if any. The provisions of any 
administrative regulations or service contracts for volunteer firefighters relative to 
incentive benefits are controlling in the event of a conflict between the terms of the 
administrative regulations or applicable service contract and the Plan.  

 
1:105. Notice. 
 
 Notice given to all interested parties shall, unless otherwise specified in this Plan, be 

sufficient if in writing and delivered or sent by prepaid first class mail.  Except as 
otherwise noted, the distribution or delivery of any statements or documents required 
under the Plan shall be sufficient if delivered in person or prepaid first class mail. 

 
1:106. Reporting and Disclosure. 
 
 The Plan Administrator shall complete and provide to Participants, Eligible Former 

Participants, Spouses and Dependents, and to the appropriate government agencies any 
reports as may be required by the Code, applicable federal, state or local law.  

 



 

4 
 

1:107. Amendment and Termination. 
 
(1) The provisions of the Plan may be amended at any time by the City Council in 

accordance with applicable law.  The Voluntary Incentive Committee will be notified at 
least thirty (30) days in advance that a proposed amendment or revision will be submitted 
to the City Council for consideration.  The City Council shall hold a public hearing prior 
to any action to reduce Plan benefits or terminate the Plan. 

 
(2) The City reserves the right to modify or terminate the Plan and/or the benefits payable 

under the Plan at any time in its sole discretion after the requisite public hearing.  Such a 
termination shall not affect the amount of any incentive payments made prior to the 
effective date of termination of the Plan or incentive payments otherwise payable at the 
time of such termination for which assets remain in the Trust.  The Voluntary Incentive 
Committee will be notified at least ninety (90) days in advance that a proposed Plan 
termination will be submitted to the City Council for consideration. 

 
Chapter 2. 

INCENTIVE PLAN FOR VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS 
 
1:200. Participation. 
 
(1) Except as otherwise provided herein, each active volunteer firefighter of the City shall be 

a Participant in the Plan. 
 
(2) Participation shall terminate upon the earlier of termination of duties as a volunteer 

firefighter or commencement of incentive benefits under the provisions of this Plan. 
 
1:201. Service Credit. 
 
(1) A Participant shall be credited with one month of incentive service credit for each 

complete calendar month the Participant is an active volunteer firefighter and meets or 
exceeds the attendance requirements as identified in the Troy Fire Department Policy 
Directive 103.07.  Service shall be totaled in years and months. 

 
(2) Should any Participant cease to be an active volunteer firefighter prior to attaining ten 

(10) or more years of continuous service as a volunteer firefighter, he or she shall 
immediately cease to be a Participant in this Plan and all incentive service credit shall be 
forfeited, unless otherwise provided herein. 

 
(3) Incentive service credit shall be restored to an Ineligible Former Participant upon 

returning to active duty as a volunteer firefighter within five (5) years from the date he or 
she ceased to be an active volunteer firefighter, and so long as he/she remains an active 
volunteer firefighter and a Participant in the Plan for five (5) consecutive years after 
returning to active service.  In the event an Ineligible Former Participant returns to 
service as an active volunteer firefighter after a break in service lasting five (5) or more 
years, incentive service credit shall be restored upon remaining an active volunteer 
firefighter and a Participant in the Plan for ten (10) consecutive years after returning to 
service. 

 



 

5 
 

(4) In the event a Deferred Former Participant returns to service as an active volunteer 
firefighter, prior incentive service credit shall not be combined with new incentive 
service credit until after returning for five (5) consecutive years of active service as a 
volunteer firefighter.  Payments will be in accordance with Section 1:202.  

 
1:202. Benefits. 
 
(1) An eligible Participant or Eligible Former Participant, upon written application filed with 

the Board of Trustees and the receipt of approval, shall be paid incentive benefits 
pursuant to the provisions of this Plan.  The incentive benefits due an eligible Participant 
or Eligible Former Participant shall be determined at the time he or she terminates 
participation, as provided in the Plan.  Credited service under Section 1.201 shall be 
combined for benefit eligibility purposes only after a Participant’s return to active service 
as a volunteer firefighter for five (5) consecutive years. 

 
(2) Except as otherwise set forth in the Plan, a Participant shall be eligible for incentive 

benefit payments upon his termination of Participation in the Plan and satisfaction of the 
following eligibility criteria as may be amended from time to time by resolution of City 
Council: 

 
(a) Ten (10) years of incentive service credit with at least five consecutive 

years as a participant after returning (if applicable), and is at least age 
fifty-five (55); 

(b) Twenty-five (25) or more years of incentive service credit as a volunteer 
firefighter with at least five consecutive years as a participant after 
returning (if applicable) and has attained fifty (50) years of age; or 

(c) A Participant having attained thirty (30) years of incentive service credit 
as a volunteer firefighter regardless of age, with at least five consecutive 
years as a participant after returning (if applicable). 

 
(3) Eligible Former Participants with ten (10) or more years of service as a volunteer 

firefighter, but who separated from volunteer service prior to meeting the foregoing age 
requirements, are eligible to commence receipt of incentive benefit payments from the 
Plan upon attainment of age sixty (60).  

 
(4) Incentive benefits shall be made in monthly installments on the last day of each month 

during the life of the Eligible Former Participant. 
 
(5) The amount of each annual incentive benefit shall be equal to Six Hundred Eighty one 

dollars ($681.00) multiplied by the years of incentive service credit.  The annual benefit 
amount may be indexed for inflation and/or amended from time to time by a City Council 
budget appropriations resolution.  In the event a Deferred Former Participant separates 
from service as an active volunteer firefighter prior to attaining immediate eligibility for 
incentive benefit payments under this Plan, he or she shall be entitled to an annual 
incentive benefit calculated in accordance with the provisions of this Plan in effect at the 
time of said Deferred Former Participant’s separation from service as an active volunteer 
firefighter. 

 



 

6 
 

(6) In the event a Participant has one or more breaks in service, incentive benefits payable 
under this Plan shall be calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Plan in effect 
at the time of each separation of service as an active volunteer firefighter. 

 
(7) Prior to the date of the first incentive benefit payment, but not thereafter, a Participant or 

an Eligible Former Participant  may elect to receive his incentive benefits payable 
throughout his life, or receive his incentive benefits in a reduced amount payable 
throughout his life, and nominate a beneficiary, in accordance with one of the Options as 
set forth below: 

 
Option A: 100% Joint and Survivor: Upon the death of an Eligible Former 

Participant, who elected Option A, his reduced incentive payment shall be 
continued throughout the life of and paid to such person having an 
insurable interest in his life, as he shall have nominated; or 

 
Option B: 50% Joint and Survivor: Upon the death of an Eligible Former Participant, 

who elected Option B, one-half of his reduced incentive benefits shall be 
continued throughout the life of and paid to such person, having an 
insurable interest in his life, as he shall have  nominated. 

 
Option C: 100 % Joint and Survivor Pension w/ Pop-up (Pop-up Option A): Upon 

the death of an Eligible Former Participant who elected Option C, his 
reduced incentive benefits shall be continued through the life and paid to 
such person having an insurable interest in his life, as he shall have 
nominated.  If the selected beneficiary predeceases the Eligible Former 
Participant, the incentive benefits shall revert to a straight-life payment 
payable throughout the remainder of the Eligible Former Participant’s life. 

 
Option D: 50% Modified Joint and Survivor Pension with Pop-up (Pop-up Option B): 

Upon the death of an Eligible Former Participant who elected Option D, 
one-half of his reduced incentive benefits shall be continued throughout the 
life of and paid to such person having an insurable interest in his life, as he 
shall have nominated. If the selected beneficiary predeceases the Eligible 
Former Participant, the incentive benefits shall revert to a straight-life 
payment payable throughout the remainder of the Eligible Former 
Participant’s life. 

 
(8) In the event a Participant dies who has ten or more years of incentive service, his Spouse 

shall receive an incentive benefit computed in the same manner in all respects as if the 
Participant had terminated Participation on the day preceding his death, elected Option A, 
and nominated his Spouse as beneficiary.  In the event there is no surviving Spouse and 
the Participant is survived by one or more legally recognized children, a lump sum equal 
to 60% of the actuarial present value of the accrued annual incentive benefit shall be 
payable to the Participant’s designated legal representative or his/her estate if no legal 
representative has been designated. 

 
 
 
 



 

7 
 

1:203. Miscellaneous. 
 
(1) Each Participant and Eligible Former Participant shall be deemed to have assented to the 

terms and conditions of the Plan. An individual may not sell, assign or hypothecate, in 
any manner, all or any part of the individual’s potential payments under the Plan. 
 

(2) Nothing in this Plan shall in any way affect the rights of the City or a Participant to 
 terminate the volunteer firefighter relationship between them. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this document has been signed and sealed on behalf of the City of 
Troy by its duly authorized officers, on this ____ day of __________________, 2016. 
             
CITY OF TROY 
 
BY:____________________________________________ 

 
ITS:____________________________________________ 

       
BY:____________________________________________ 

 
ITS:____________________________________________ 



 

 

 
CITY OF TROY 

INCENTIVE PLAN FOR VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS  
 

Chapter 1. 
 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
1:100. Establishment and Purpose. 
 
 This City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters is hereby restated, as amended, 

for the purpose of providing length of service incentive benefits for the City of Troy 
volunteer firefighters. 

 
1:101. Short Title. 
 
 This Plan may be known and cited as the City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer 

Firefighters (“Plan”).  
 

1:102. Definitions. 
 
 For the purposes of this Plan, the following words shall have the meanings respectively 

ascribed to them by this section: 
 
(1)  Annual Benefit Amount means the annual dollar amount of the length of service incentive 

benefits which may be payable from the Plan to eligible Former Participants, as amended 
from time to time by City Council via a budget appropriations resolution. 

 
(2) Break in service shall mean an unapproved leave of absence or termination of service as a 

volunteer firefighter lasting more than one (1) year. 
 
(3) City means the City of Troy, Michigan. 
 
(4) City Council means the City Council of the City of Troy, Michigan.  
 
(5) Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  Reference to any section 

or subsection of the Code includes reference to any comparable or succeeding provision 
of any legislation which amends or replaces such section or subsection and any 
regulations thereto. 

 
(6) Contribution(s) means the payments made to the Trust by the City for the purpose of 

providing length of service based incentive benefits to Former Participants and 
beneficiaries covered by the Plan. 

 
(7) Deferred Former Participant means a former volunteer firefighter and Former Participant 

who has ten (10) or more years of incentive service as a volunteer firefighter for the City, 
but has not reached the requisite age requirement for commencement of benefits from the 
Plan. 

 
 

Deleted:  AND TRUST

Deleted: (the “Plan”) 

Deleted:   The City of Troy Incentive Trust for Volunteer 
Firefighters (the “Trust”) is hereby established to allow the City 
of Troy to fund the required benefits as provided pursuant to the 
Plan provisions, an essential government function.  

Deleted: and Trust 

Deleted: and Trust 

Deleted:  and Trust

Deleted:  and Trust

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 4

Deleted: 5

Deleted: payment required to be

Deleted: (6)



 

2 
 

(8) Eligible Former Participant means an individual who is (a) an active volunteer 
firefighter, who upon attaining eligibility, elected to commence receipt of incentive 
benefits and is therefore no longer entitled to further benefit accruals under the provisions 
of this Plan; (b) a former volunteer firefighter, who upon termination of volunteer service 
was eligible for, and elected to commence receipt, of incentive benefits from the Plan; (c) 
a former volunteer firefighter, who is eligible for incentive benefits from the Plan but has 
not yet elected to commence receipt of incentive benefits from the Plan; or (d) a Deferred 
Former Participant.  

 
(9) Incentive Service Credit means personal service rendered to the City as a volunteer 

firefighter and credited to a Participant in accordance with the Plan. 
 
(10) Ineligible Former Participant shall mean an individual who ceases to be an active 

volunteer firefighter prior to attainment of eligibility for incentive benefits under the 
provisions of this Plan. 

 
(11) Participant means an individual who is an active volunteer firefighter eligible for benefit 

accruals under the provisions of the Plan and who has not elected to commence receipt of 
benefits under the terms of the Plan.    

 
(12) Plan means the City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters established by 

Ordinance as provided herein.  A description of the incentive benefits provided to 
Eligible Former Participants, spouses and dependents under the Plan is maintained by the 
Plan Administrator.  

 
(13) Plan Administrator means the person, persons, firm, corporation or insurance company or 

companies, appointed by the City to administer the Plan. The Plan Administrator shall be 
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Plan and shall carry out the directives of 
the City and the Board of Trustees. 

 
(14) Service shall mean personal service rendered to the City of Troy as a volunteer firefighter. 
 
(15) Spouse means a Participant’s or Eligible Former Participant’s spouse by legal marriage 

who is the Participant’s or Eligible Former Participant’s spouse on the earlier of the date 
the Participant terminates from volunteering with the City or elects to commence receipt 
of incentive benefits from the Plan.  

 
(16) Trust means the City of Troy Incentive Trust for Volunteer Firefighters as established 

pursuant to the declaration of trust approved by the City Council and as may be amended 
from time to time. 

 
(17) Trustee(s) or Board means the Board of Trustees of the Trust or a member of the Board 

of Trustees of the Trust as provided for in the Trust. 
 
(18) Voluntary Incentive Committee means a committee comprised of representatives selected 

by each of the six fire stations in the City.   
 
 
 

Deleted: or 

Deleted: Vested Participant

Deleted: upon attaining eligibility,

Deleted: 7

Deleted: (8

Deleted: entitled to

Deleted: 9

Deleted:  and Trust

Deleted: Retired Volunteer Firefighters

Deleted: 10

Deleted: 11

Deleted: , Former Participant’s

Deleted: Vested

Deleted: 12

Deleted: declaration of trust of the 

Deleted: Plan and 

Deleted: provided for in Chapter 3 of this Plan and Trust

Deleted: 13

Deleted: this

Deleted: (14) Vested Former Participant means a former 
volunteer firefighter and Participant who has ten (10) or more 
years of incentive service as a volunteer firefighter for the City, 
but has not reached the requisite age requirement for 
commencement of benefits from the Plan.¶
¶
(15



 

3 
 

1:103. Interpretation and law; Construction.  
  
(1) The Plan is hereby established and shall be administered consistent with applicable 

Federal and Michigan law, including, but not limited to the Public Employee Retirement 
System Investment Act, Public Act 314 of 1965, as amended (MCL §38.1132 et seq.).  

 
(2) The establishment of this Plan, any modification thereof, the creation of any fund or 

account, or the payment of any benefits, shall not be construed as giving to any person 
covered under the Plan, or any other person, any legal or equitable right against the City, 
its elected or appointed officials or employees, the Trustees or any individual Trustee, 
except as may otherwise be provided in this Plan document.  

 
(3) The headings and subheadings in this Plan are inserted for convenience of reference only 

and are not to be considered in the construction of any provision of the Plan.  
 
(4) Words herein in the masculine gender shall be construed to include the feminine gender 

where appropriate, and words used herein in the singular or plural shall be construed as 
being in the plural or singular where appropriate.  

 
(5) In resolving any conflict among provisions of this Plan or any uncertainty as to the 

meaning or intention of any provision of this Plan, the interpretation that causes both the 
Trust to be exempt from tax and the Trust to comply with all applicable requirements of 
the Code shall prevail over any different interpretation.  

      
(6) This Plan shall be binding upon all Participants and Eligible Former Participants under 

the Plan, or their applicable heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.  
 
1:104. Administrative Regulations. 
 
 The provisions of this Plan are subject to relevant provisions of any administrative 

regulations that the City may have for volunteer firefighters and any volunteer service 
contracts between the City and an individual Participant, if any. The provisions of any 
administrative regulations or service contracts for volunteer firefighters relative to 
incentive benefits are controlling in the event of a conflict between the terms of the 
administrative regulations or applicable service contract and the Plan.  

 
1:105. Notice. 
 
 Notice given to all interested parties shall, unless otherwise specified in this Plan, be 

sufficient if in writing and delivered or sent by prepaid first class mail.  Except as 
otherwise noted, the distribution or delivery of any statements or documents required 
under the Plan shall be sufficient if delivered in person or prepaid first class mail. 

 
1:106. Reporting and Disclosure. 
 
 The Plan Administrator shall complete and provide to Participants, Eligible Former 

Participants, Spouses and Dependents, and to the appropriate government agencies any 
reports as may be required by the Code, applicable federal, state or local law.  

 

Deleted: .),.

Deleted: Trust shall constitute a grantor governmental trust 
pursuant to Section 115 of the Code, as amended and shall be 
construed, enforced and administered and the validity thereof 
determined in accordance with the Code and the laws of the State 
of Michigan.  If any provision of the Plan or Trust is held to 
violate the Code or to be illegal or invalid for any other reason, 
that provision shall be deemed to be null and void, but the 
invalidation of that provision shall not otherwise affect the Plan or 
Trust. ¶

Moved down [1]: ¶
(3)

Deleted: The City intends the incentive benefits provided by 
this Plan to be considered a contractual benefit protected and 
guaranteed by Article IX, Section 24 of the State of Michigan 
Constitution.¶
¶
(4)  Neither the 

Deleted: the

Deleted:  or the Trust, nor

Deleted: nor 

Deleted: nor

Deleted: and Trust

Deleted: 5

Deleted:  and Trust

Deleted:  or Trust

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 7

Deleted: and Trust 

Deleted:  and Trust

Deleted: 8

Deleted: and Trust 

Deleted: , Former Participants

Deleted: Vested

Deleted: and Trust 

Deleted: Former Participants,  Vested



 

4 
 

1:107. Amendment and Termination. 
 
(1) The provisions of the Plan may be amended at any time by the Troy City Council in 

accordance with applicable law.  The Voluntary Incentive Committee will be notified at 
least thirty (30) days in advance that a proposed amendment or revision will be submitted 
to the Troy City Council for consideration.  The City Council shall hold a public hearing 
prior to any action to reduce Plan benefits or terminate the Plan.  

 
(2) The City reserves the right to modify or terminate the Plan and/or the benefits payable 

under the Plan at any time in its sole discretion after the requisite public hearing.  Such a 
termination shall not affect the amount of any incentive payments made prior to the 
effective date of termination of the Plan or incentive payments otherwise payable at the 
time of such termination for which assets remain in the Trust.  The Voluntary Incentive 
Committee will be notified at least ninety (90) days in advance that a proposed Plan 
termination will be submitted to the Troy City Council for consideration. 

 
Chapter 2. 

INCENTIVE PLAN FOR VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS 
 
1:200. Participation. 
 
(1) Except as otherwise provided herein, each active volunteer firefighter of the City shall be 

a Participant in the Plan. 
 
(2) Participation shall terminate upon the earlier of termination of duties as a volunteer 

firefighter or commencement of incentive benefits under the provisions of this Plan. 
 
1:201. Service Credit. 
 
(1) A Participant shall be credited with one month of incentive service credit for each 

complete calendar month the Participant is an active volunteer firefighter and meets or 
exceeds the attendance requirements as identified in the Troy Fire Department Policy 
Directive 103.07.  Service shall be totaled in years and months. 

 
(2) Should any Participant cease to be an active volunteer firefighter prior to attaining ten 

(10) or more years of continuous service as a volunteer firefighter, he or she shall 
immediately cease to be a Participant in this Plan and all incentive service credit shall be 
forfeited, unless otherwise provided herein. 

 
(3) Incentive service credit shall be restored to an Ineligible Former Participant upon 

returning to active duty as a volunteer firefighter within five (5) years from the date he or 
she ceased to be an active volunteer firefighter, and so long as he/she remains an active 
volunteer firefighter and a Participant in the Plan for five (5) consecutive years after 
returning to active service.  In the event an Ineligible Former Participant returns to 
service as an active volunteer firefighter after a break in service lasting five (5) or more 
years, incentive service credit shall be restored upon remaining an active volunteer 
firefighter and a Participant in the Plan for ten (10) consecutive years after returning to 
service. 

 

Deleted: Amendments

Deleted: or the Trust 

Deleted: anytime

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Font color: Red

Formatted: Strikethrough

Deleted: (1)

Deleted: a

Deleted: indentified

Moved (insertion) [1]

Deleted: after

Deleted: an individual ceases to be an 

Deleted: unless 

Deleted: individual is a

Deleted: , a Vested Former Participant  or

Deleted: duty as a 



 

5 
 

 
(4) In the event a Deferred Former Participant returns to service as an active volunteer 

firefighter, prior incentive service credit shall not be combined with new incentive 
service credit until after returning for five (5) consecutive years of active service as a 
volunteer firefighter.  Payments will be in accordance with Section 1:202.  

 
1:202. Benefits. 
 
(1) An eligible Participant or Eligible Former Participant, upon written application filed with 

the Board of Trustees and the receipt of approval, shall be paid incentive benefits 
pursuant to the provisions of this Plan.  The incentive benefits due an eligible Participant 
or Eligible Former Participant shall be determined at the time he or she terminates 
participation, as provided in the Plan.  Credited service under Section 1.201 shall be 
combined for benefit eligibility purposes only after a Participant’s return to active service 
as a volunteer firefighter for five (5) consecutive years. 

 
(2) Except as otherwise set forth in the Plan, a Participant shall be eligible for incentive 

benefit payments upon his termination of Participation in the Plan and satisfaction of the 
following eligibility criteria as may be amended from time to time by resolution of City 
Council: 

 
(a) Ten (10) years of incentive service credit with at least five consecutive 

years as a participant after returning (if applicable), and is at least age 
fifty-five (55); 

(b) Twenty-five (25) or more years of incentive service credit as a volunteer 
firefighter with at least five consecutive years as a participant after 
returning (if applicable) and has attained fifty (50) years of age; or 

(c) A Participant having attained thirty (30) years of incentive service credit 
as a volunteer firefighter regardless of age, with at least five consecutive 
years as a participant after returning (if applicable). 

 
(3) Eligible Former Participants with ten (10) or more years of service credit as a volunteer 

firefighter, but who separated from volunteer service prior to meeting the foregoing age 
requirements, are eligible to commence receipt of incentive benefit payments from the 
Plan upon attainment of age sixty (60).  

 
(4) Incentive benefits shall be made in monthly installments on the last day of each month 

during the life of the Eligible Former Participant. 
 
(5) The amount of each annual incentive benefit shall be equal to Six Hundred Forty Two 

dollars ($642.00) multiplied by the years of incentive service credit.  The annual benefit 
amount may be indexed for inflation and/or amended from time to time by a City Council 
budget appropriations resolution.  In the event a Deferred Former Participant separates 
from service as an active volunteer firefighter prior to attaining immediate eligibility for 
incentive benefit payments under this Plan, he or she shall be entitled to an annual 
incentive benefit calculated in accordance with the provisions of this Plan in effect at the 
time of said Deferred Former Participant’s separation from service as an active volunteer 
firefighter. 

 

Deleted: Vested

Deleted: Vested

Deleted: (2)

Deleted: .

Deleted: (d) For Vested

Deleted: ,

Deleted: and

Deleted: 3

Deleted: 4

Deleted: credited



 

6 
 

(6) In the event a Participant has one or more breaks in service, incentive benefits payable 
under this Plan shall be calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Plan in effect 
at the time of each separation of service as an active volunteer firefighter. 

 
(7) Prior to the date of the first incentive benefit payment, but not thereafter, a Participant or 

an Eligible Former Participant  may elect to receive his incentive benefits payable 
throughout his life, or receive his incentive benefits in a reduced amount payable 
throughout his life, and nominate a beneficiary, in accordance with one of the Options as 
set forth below: 

 
Option A: 100% Joint and Survivor: Upon the death of an Eligible Former 

Participant, who elected Option A, his reduced incentive payment shall be 
continued throughout the life of and paid to such person having an 
insurable interest in his life, as he shall have nominated; or 

 
Option B: 50% Joint and Survivor: Upon the death of an Eligible Former Participant, 

who elected Option B, one-half of his reduced incentive benefits shall be 
continued throughout the life of and paid to such person, having an 
insurable interest in his life, as he shall have  nominated. 

 
Option C: 100 % Joint and Survivor Pension w/ Pop-up (Pop-up Option A): Upon 

the death of an Eligible Former Participant who elected Option C, his 
reduced incentive benefits shall be continued through the life and paid to 
such person having an insurable interest in his life, as he shall have 
nominated.  If the selected beneficiary predeceases the Eligible Former 
Participant, the incentive benefits shall revert to a straight-life payment 
payable throughout the remainder of the Eligible Former Participant’s life. 

 
Option D: 50% Modified Joint and Survivor Pension with Pop-up (Pop-up Option B): 

Upon the death of an Eligible Former Participant who elected Option D, 
one-half of his reduced incentive benefits shall be continued throughout the 
life of and paid to such person having an insurable interest in his life, as he 
shall have nominated. If the selected beneficiary predeceases the Eligible 
Former Participant, the incentive benefits shall revert to a straight-life 
payment payable throughout the remainder of the Eligible Former 
Participant’s life. 

 
(8) In the event a Participant dies who has ten or more years of incentive service, his Spouse 

shall receive an incentive benefit computed in the same manner in all respects as if the 
Participant had terminated Participation on the day preceding his death, elected Option A, 
and nominated his Spouse as beneficiary.  In the event there is no surviving Spouse and 
the Participant is survived by one or more legally recognized children, a lump sum equal 
to 60% of the actuarial present value of the accrued annual incentive benefit shall be 
payable to the Participant’s designated legal representative or his/her estate if no legal 
representative has been designated.   

 
1:203. Miscellaneous. 
 

Deleted: (5

Deleted: his

Deleted: benefits

Deleted: the provisions

Deleted: a

Deleted: a

Deleted: a

Deleted: a

Deleted: 6

Formatted: Font color: Red



 

7 
 

(1) Each Participant and Eligible Former Participant shall be deemed to have assented to the 
terms and conditions of the Plan. An individual may not sell, assign or hypothecate, in 
any manner, all or any part of the individual’s potential payments under the Plan. 
 

(2) Nothing in this Plan shall in any way affect the rights of the City or a Participant to 
 terminate the volunteer firefighter relationship between them. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this document has been signed and sealed on behalf of the City of 
Troy by its duly authorized officers, on this ____ day of __________________, 2015. 
             
CITY OF TROY 
 
BY:____________________________________________ 

 
ITS:____________________________________________ 

       
BY:____________________________________________ 

 
ITS:____________________________________________ 

Deleted: , Former Participant

Deleted: Vested

Deleted: the volunteer firefighter relationship between them.¶
¶
Chapter 3.¶
¶
INCENTIVE TRUST FOR VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS¶

¶
1:300. Irrevocable Trust, Established.¶
¶

The Trust, established by the City in accordance with Section 115 
of the Code shall be an irrevocable grantor trust administered 
consistent with applicable federal and Michigan law, and shall 
constitute a governmental trust under Section 115 of the Code, as 
amended, Revenue Rulings 77-261 and 90-74, and other relevant 
guidance.  The Trust is intended to fund the City’s contractual 
obligation to provide incentive benefits under the Plan pursuant to 
applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, the regulations 
promulgated under each, and applicable federal and Michigan law.  
The Trust shall conform to all applicable sections of the Internal 
Revenue Code, the statement of purpose in this Trust, and all 
statutes, ordinances, rules, administrative regulations, arbitrators’ 
awards and judicial decisions interpreting the foregoing provisions.¶
¶

The Trust shall consist of City Contributions pursuant to the 
provisions of a City administrative regulation, all investments made 
or held under Trust, and all income therefrom, both received and 
accrued, and any other property, which may be received or held by 
reason of this Trust.  ¶
¶

The income accruing to the Trust shall be excluded from gross 
income as such trust income is derived from the exercise of an 
essential governmental function as provided for under Section 
115(1) of the Code, as amended, Revenue Rulings 77-261 and 90-
74, and other relevant guidance.   ¶
¶
1:301. Use of Trust Assets.¶
¶
(1) The Trust assets shall not be used for or diverted to purposes 
other than to provide the benefits contemplated under the Plan or to 
pay for reasonable and necessary services, costs and expenses 
related to assisting the Trustees in the operation of the Trust.  Plan 
Participants, Former Participants, Vested Former Participants and 
their respective beneficiairies shall have no preferred claim on, or 
any beneficial ownership interest in, any assets of the Trust.¶
¶
(2) All income, profits, recoveries, contributions, forfeitures and 
any and all monies, securities and properties of any kind at anytime 
received or held by the Trustees hereunder, shall become part of the 
Trust when received, and shall be held for the use and purposes 
hereof.¶
¶
1:302. Funding.¶
¶
(1) For the purpose of creating and maintaining a fund for the 
payment of incentive benefits payable as provided in the Plan, the 
City will pay to the Trust an amount consistent with the actuarial 
valuations and calculations made by the Actuary for the Trust to 
result in a pre-funded plan. Such contributions shall also be made in 
accordance with any regulations of the Board of Trustees as are not 
inconsistent with the authority stated in the Plan or this Trust 
document, or under applicable law. ¶
¶
(2) Subject to the tax provisions of applicable ordinances, 
resolutions and state law, the Trustees may, to the extent matters are 
not set forth in the Trust, in their discretion decide the manner and 
means of payments, the procedures to be followed in making the 
payments, and the forms required to accompany the payments to the 
Trust.  Upon determination by the Trustees of these matters, the 
Trustees shall provide written notice to the City and will provide for ... [1]

Deleted: 2014



Page 7: [1] Deleted   Aaron Castle   12/9/2015 10:32:00 AM 

 the volunteer firefighter relationship between them. 
 

Chapter 3. 
 

INCENTIVE TRUST FOR VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS 
       
1:300. Irrevocable Trust, Established. 
 
 The Trust, established by the City in accordance with Section 115 of the Code shall be an 

irrevocable grantor trust administered consistent with applicable federal and Michigan law, 
and shall constitute a governmental trust under Section 115 of the Code, as amended, 
Revenue Rulings 77-261 and 90-74, and other relevant guidance.  The Trust is intended to 
fund the City’s contractual obligation to provide incentive benefits under the Plan pursuant 
to applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, the regulations promulgated under 
each, and applicable federal and Michigan law.  The Trust shall conform to all applicable 
sections of the Internal Revenue Code, the statement of purpose in this Trust, and all 
statutes, ordinances, rules, administrative regulations, arbitrators’ awards and judicial 
decisions interpreting the foregoing provisions. 

 
 The Trust shall consist of City Contributions pursuant to the provisions of a City 

administrative regulation, all investments made or held under Trust, and all income 
therefrom, both received and accrued, and any other property, which may be received or 
held by reason of this Trust.   

 
 The income accruing to the Trust shall be excluded from gross income as such trust income 

is derived from the exercise of an essential governmental function as provided for under 
Section 115(1) of the Code, as amended, Revenue Rulings 77-261 and 90-74, and other 
relevant guidance.    

 
1:301. Use of Trust Assets. 
 
(1)  The Trust assets shall not be used for or diverted to purposes other than to provide the 

benefits contemplated under the Plan or to pay for reasonable and necessary services, costs 
and expenses related to assisting the Trustees in the operation of the Trust.  Plan 
Participants, Former Participants, Vested Former Participants and their respective 
beneficiairies shall have no preferred claim on, or any beneficial ownership interest in, any 
assets of the Trust. 

 
(2)  All income, profits, recoveries, contributions, forfeitures and any and all monies, securities 

and properties of any kind at anytime received or held by the Trustees hereunder, shall 
become part of the Trust when received, and shall be held for the use and purposes hereof. 

 
1:302. Funding. 
 



(1)  For the purpose of creating and maintaining a fund for the payment of incentive benefits 
payable as provided in the Plan, the City will pay to the Trust an amount consistent with 
the actuarial valuations and calculations made by the Actuary for the Trust to result in a 
pre-funded plan. Such contributions shall also be made in accordance with any regulations 
of the Board of Trustees as are not inconsistent with the authority stated in the Plan or this 
Trust document, or under applicable law.  

 
(2) Subject to the tax provisions of applicable ordinances, resolutions and state law, the 

Trustees may, to the extent matters are not set forth in the Trust, in their discretion decide 
the manner and means of payments, the procedures to be followed in making the payments, 
and the forms required to accompany the payments to the Trust.  Upon determination by 
the Trustees of these matters, the Trustees shall provide written notice to the City and will 
provide for payments by the City to be made pursuant to the rules and regulations of the 
Trust. 

 
(3)  Time is of the essence in making and processing all payments to the Trust.  The parties 

recognize that the regular and timely payments of Contributions are essential to the 
operation of the Trust and the providing of benefits under the Plan. 

  
1:303. Trust Liabilities. 
 

 (1) Neither the City, nor any Participant, Former Trustee, Vested Former Participant or 
Trustee shall be liable for any debts, liabilities or obligations of the Trust except as 
provided herein.  Neither the City, nor any Participant, Former Participant or  Vested 
Former Participant shall have any right to the return of any money properly paid into the 
Trust, except as otherwise specifically provided in this Trust, or to money improperly 
paid which has already been invested or distributed.    

 
 (2) No part of the Trust or any assets payable therefrom shall be subject to alienation, sale, 

transfer, assignment, pledge, or encumbrance charge by any person.  No Participant, 
Former Participant or Vested Former Participant shall be entitled to receive any part of 
the Contributions made by the City or payments required to be made by the Trust, in lieu 
of such benefits provided under the Plan as determined by the Trustees in accordance 
with the Trust. 

 
1:304. Termination of the Trust. 
 
(1)  The Trust shall continue during such period of time as may be necessary to carry out the 

provisions of the Plan and for a period of time sufficient to wind up the affairs of the 
Trust. In the event of termination or partial termination of the Plan, a Participant’s vested 
interest is a contractual obligation under Article IX, Section 24 of the State of Michigan 
Constitution.  

 
(2)  Provided there are no longer any Participants (including those not yet vested), Former 

Participants or Vested Former Participants eligible for benefits or who may yet become 
eligible to receive benefits from the Plan and all benefit obligations to Participants, 



Former Participants, Vested Former Participants, and their respective beneficiaries have 
been satisfied, the Trust may thereafter be terminated at any time by the Trustees so long 
as the termination is consistent with any then existing City decisions.  It shall not be 
necessary for the City to execute such an agreement for the Trust to terminate. 

 
(3)  If the Trust terminates, the remaining funds available after providing for all the 

outstanding obligations shall be returned to the City. 
 

Chapter 4. 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
1:401. Board of Trustees. 
 
(1)  The Board of Trustees of the City of Troy Incentive Plan and Trust for Volunteer 

Firefighters shall consist of the following six (7) members: 
 
 (a) The City Manager or his/her designee; 
 (b) The City Financial Services Director or his/her designee, who shall serve as Chair 

of the Board; 
 (c)  Two active volunteer firefighters appointed by the Voluntary Incentive Committee;  
 (d)  One member of the Troy City Council as selected by the City Council; and 

(e) One citizen of the City of Troy, appointed by the Mayor,  
(f) One retiree representative, appointed by the Voluntary Incentive Committee.   

 
(2)  The general administration, management and responsibility for the proper operation of 

the Plan and for making effective and construing the provisions of the Trust shall be 
vested in the Board of Trustees established by this Section, consistent with applicable 
state and federal laws and regulations.  The Board of Trustees shall be the investment 
fiduciary of the Trust.  A Trustee shall discharge his or her duties with the care, skill, and 
caution under the circumstances then prevailing which a prudent person, acting in a like 
capacity and familiar with those matters, would use in the conduct of an activity of like 
character and purpose. 

 
1:402. Trustees’ Terms of Office. 

 
(1) The regular terms of office of the Participant elected and Citizen Appointed  Trustees 

shall be three years. 
 
(2) Each Trustee shall serve until the expiration of his or her term of office or until his or her 

death, incapacity, resignation or removal. 
 
(3) In the event a Participant elected Trustee resigns or is removed as a volunteer firefighter, 

he or she shall be considered to have resigned from the Board.  The Board shall, by 
resolution, declare his or her office of Trustee vacated as of the date of such resolution.  
Any vacancy occurring in the office of Trustee shall be filled within sixty (60) days 



following the date of the vacancy, for the unexpired portion of the term, in the same 
manner in which the office was previously filled. 

 
(4) If a Trustee as provided in 1:401(a) shall fail to attend scheduled meetings of the Board 

for three consecutive meetings, unless in each case excused for cause by the remaining 
Trustees attending such meetings, the Trustee shall be considered to have resigned from 
the Board, and the Board shall, by resolution, declare the office of the Trustee vacated as 
of the date of adoption of such resolution.  Any vacancy occurring in the office of Trustee 
shall be filled within sixty (60) days following the date of the vacancy, for the unexpired 
portion of the term, in the same manner in which the office was previously filled. 

 
(5) A vacancy or vacancies in the office of the Trustees shall not impair the powers of the 

remaining Trustees to administer the affairs of the Trust, provided there are sufficient 
Trustees to constitute a quorum.  If a vacancy occurs on the Board of Trustees, it shall be 
filled as soon as practically possible.   

 
(6) Each successor Trustee, upon accepting such appointment, shall have and enjoy all the 

powers, both discretionary and ministerial, and shall be charged with all of the duties and 
responsibilities herein conferred upon his predecessor. 

 
1:403. Officers and Administration. 

  
 (1)  At its first meeting in the calendar year, the Trustees shall elect a chairperson and a   
  chairperson pro-tem.  The chairperson and chairperson pro-tem shall serve a term of one   
  year or until a new chairperson and chairperson pro-tem are elected. 

 
(2)  The Board of Trustees shall designate a member or other individual to serve as secretary 

of the Board of Trustees.  The secretary’s term shall be at the pleasure of the Board of 
Trustees. 

 
(3) The City Treasurer shall serve as the Treasurer of the Trust.  Any reimbursement for the 

City Treasurer’s service shall be in accordance with the provisions of 1:403 (5).   
 
(4)  The Board of Trustees may employ such other clerical staff or administrative staff to 

perform whatever administrative activities are required in the proper performance of the 
Trust.  In addition thereto, the Trustees may, if they desire, utilize other staff to perform 
such clerical and administrative duties as they may, in their sole discretion, determine is 
reasonably and prudently necessary to carry out the Trust’s activities and purposes.  
Under no circumstances shall said staff have control or authority with respect to the 
management of the Trust or its assets.  The said staff shall not be clothed with any type of 
authority or power which will constitute the staff as a fiduciary.  Said staff will not have 
the power or authority to act as an investment counselor or manager and will not be 
authorized to furnish investment advice.  Said staff shall also not have the power or 
authority to render the staff a fiduciary to the Trust. 

 



(5)  The Board of Trustees may request to utilize City staff for such functions as personnel 
administration, accounting, banking, purchasing, or other services necessary for the 
proper administration of the Plan and Trust. On an annual basis, the City will provide the 
Board with a cost allocation for the City employees who are qualified to perform the 
required duties.  If the parties mutually agree that these functions will be performed by 
City employees, then the City will notify the Board of the cost of performing the assigned 
duties, and such costs will be reimbursed from the assets of the Trust.  There must be 
compliance with all established City control procedures and policies related to these 
services. 

 
(6)  The Board of Trustees shall employ an investment manager or investment managers to 

manage some or all of the assets of the Trust.  Each investment manager must be 
registered under the Investment Advisor’s Act of 1940, as amended, (15 USC 80b-1) and 
must meet any applicable state and federal requirements to act as an investment manager.  
The Trustees may, if they deem proper in their discretion, or if the circumstances require 
it, appoint such investment manager, managers, banks or insurance companies as 
fiduciaries and enter into an agreement with such institutions, naming it a fiduciary and 
conveying to such fiduciary all or a portion of the assets of the Trust, so that said 
fiduciary may handle, manage and hold those assets conveyed to it.  All assets conveyed 
to said fiduciary shall be subject to the provision of the agreement or agreements between 
the Trustees and the fiduciary. 

 
(7)  The City Attorney shall serve as legal counsel to the Board of Trustees.  Any 

reimbursement for the City Attorney’s service shall be in accordance with the provisions 
of 1:403 (5).   

 
(8)  The Board of Trustees shall appoint an Actuary who shall advise the Trustees on the 

actuarial operation of the Plan and Trust.  The Trustees shall, from time to time, adopt 
such mortality and other tables of experience and a rate or rates of regular interest as are 
necessary in the operation of the Plan and Trust on an actuarial basis. 

 
1:404. Board Meetings. 
 
(1)  The Trustees shall meet at least once quarterly.  The Trustees shall determine the time for 

the regular meetings of the Trustees and the place or places where such meetings shall be 
held.  The Secretary or his or her designee shall be responsible for giving notice of the 
time and place of such meetings to the other Trustees.   

 
(2)  Notice and conduct of all meetings of the Trustees, both regular and special, shall be 

given in accordance with applicable law including the Michigan Open Meetings Act 
(MCL §15.261 et seq.). 

 
(3)  The Board of Trustees shall adopt its own rules of procedure and shall keep a record of 

its proceedings. Three (3) Trustees shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Board 
of Trustees.  Each Trustee shall be entitled to one vote on each question before the Board 



of Trustees and at least three (3) concurring votes shall be necessary for a decision of the 
Board. 

 
1:405. Compensation. 
 
All Trustees shall serve without compensation as members of the Board of Trustees.  Trustees 
may be reimbursed by the Trust for reasonable and necessary costs and expenses of the Trustees 
in performing their duties as Trustees as related to the operation of the Plan and Trust.  
 
1:406. Trustees’ Powers and Responsibilities. 
 

 The Trustees shall hold all the powers that are necessary to carry out the purposes of the Trust 
and are generally available to Trustees under the laws of the State of Michigan, except as limited 
by the Trust and by Federal law and regulations.  It is intended that the Trust shall be tax exempt 
and shall qualify under the Code and any amendments of the Code applicable to plans of this 
type.  The Trustees shall have the continuing duty to propose, to the City, amendments to this 
Plan to the extent it becomes necessary to qualify said Plan under the Code and to continue the 
tax exempt status of the Trust.  The Trustees shall take no action nor make any determination 
inconsistent with any qualification or ruling of the Internal Revenue Service, an arbitrator or the 
courts with respect to the Trust.  In the case of amendments to the Code or changes of 
regulations by the Internal Revenue Service or the Labor Department, the Trustees are 
empowered to take all necessary action authorized by the Plan and the Trust, Federal and state 
law and regulations, to continue the qualification of the Trust as a qualified Trust.  In carrying 
out the purposes of the Trust, the Trustees shall have the following powers and duties: 
 
(1)  The Trustees shall, in order to effectuate the purposes of the Trust, be bound by the terms 

of the Plan and any applicable administrative regulations. 
 

 (2)  Consistent with applicable state and Federal laws and regulations, the Trustees shall have 
the power to promulgate rules and regulations for the day-to-day management of the 
Trust, the investment of monies held by the Trust, to determine all questions regarding 
the interpretation of the Trust, and such other Trust related subjects as shall be deemed 
necessary and proper by the Trustees.  If any rule or regulation of the Trust or part thereof 
is found to be in conflict with any law, statute, judicial decision, arbitration decision or 
any other competent body or tribunal, such rule or regulation or part thereof shall be 
deemed void and all other rules and regulations of the Trust shall remain in effect. 

 
(3)  Whenever the signature of a Trustee is required on any document, two signatures of the 

individuals authorized by the Board of Trustees shall be required.  
 
1:407. Investment of Trust Assets. 
          

 (1) The Trustees shall be authorized to invest the assets of the Trust in accordance with the 
provisions of the Public Employee Retirement System Investment Act, Public Act 314 of 
1965, as amended (MCL §38.1132 et seq.). 

Section Break (Next Page)



 
(2) The Board shall invest and reinvest the principal and income of the Trust, without 

distinction between principal and income, in its sole discretion.  The Board in its sole 
discretion may keep such portion of the Trust in cash or cash balances as the Board may 
from time to time deem to be in the best interests of the Trust.  

 
(3) To the extent permitted by law, the Board may commingle the investment of the Trust 

with other funds that it administers. 
 
1:408. Board Liabilities.  
 
 The Board’s responsibilities and liabilities shall be subject to the following limitations 

and other limitations as set forth in the Trust:  
 

 (1) The Board shall have no duties other than those expressly set forth in this Trust and those 
imposed on the Board by applicable laws. 

 
(2) The Board shall be responsible only for money and property actually received by the 

Board, and then to the extent described in this Trust.  
 
(3) The Board shall not be responsible for the correctness of any determination of payments 

or disbursements from the Trust. 
 
(4) The Board shall have no liability for the acts or omissions of any predecessor or 

successor in office.  
 
(5) The Board shall have no liability for the acts or omissions of any (a) Investment Manager 

or Managers; (b) insurance company; (c) investment fund; or (d) contractor. 
 
(6) In the event of any suit brought against the Trustees arising out of the acts within the 

scope and powers and duties of the Trustees, or in the event of any lawsuit brought by the 
Trustees, the cost of defense or prosecution of such lawsuit shall be charged to the Trust, 
and shall be paid directly from the Trust, provided such costs are not incurred by reason 
of bad faith, gross negligence, or breach of a fiduciary obligation to the Trust or to the 
beneficiaries thereof. 

 
(7) The Board may authorize the purchase of insurance for the Trust and for the Trustees to 

cover liability or losses occurring for any reason, including, but not limited to, an act or 
omission (errors or omissions) of a fiduciary, including the Trustees; provided however, 
that such insurance policy permits recourse by the insured against the fiduciary, including 
the Trustee or Trustees involved, in case of breach of fiduciary obligation by the 
fiduciary.  

 
1.409. Reports. 
 



 (1) The Trustees, or their respective designees, shall establish a uniform system for the 
timely transmission of required reports and contributions.   

 
 (2) The Trustees shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, proper books of accounts and 

records of and for the administration of the Trust, including the minutes of all meetings, 
make them available for inspection during reasonable business hours by the City, or any 
Participant, Former Participant or Vested Former Participant covered by the Trust. 

 
 (3) The financial records of the Trust shall be subject to the annual audit of the City.  The 

Trustees shall fully comply with all applicable statutory and municipal budgetary and 
accounting procedures and provide access to or documentation of all assets and liabilities 
of the Trust and a resume of the operations of the Trust for the preceding year together 
with such other data as may be required by law or as part of the City’s annual financial 
report. 

 
 
 
 

 



 

 

1 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Date:  March 29, 2016 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Steve Pallotta, Director of Building Operations 
  David Roberts, Fire Chief 
   
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Construction Manager at Risk 

Services - Fire Station #4  (Introduced by David Roberts, Fire Chief, Steve Pallotta, 
Director of Building Operations and MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager) 

 
 
History 
Fire Station #4 was originally constructed in 1968. The station was remodeled in 1988 to include an 
additional apparatus bay and a small addition to the day room. Since this time, the station has taken on 
newer and larger apparatus; more volunteer firefighters; and the building has experienced foundation 
settling which has led to water leaks and structural deterioration. 
 
This is the only station in the city that does not have drive-through apparatus bays which allow for the 
large vehicles to be pulled in and out of the building. Instead, the trucks must be pulled out but then 
backed in. The apparatus bays and overhead doors are substandard in size thereby making the task of 
backing apparatus at increased risk of damage to the vehicles and the building.   
 
February of 2013, a needs assessment study was performed by Redstone Architects, Inc., of Bloomfield 
Hills, MI, to identify current site and building conditions, and to determine the feasibility for a new fire 
station on the site. The study revealed that additional property would be needed to accommodate a new 
fire station in order to meet the future needs of the fire department while keeping the current fire station 
operational during construction. 
 
March 29, 2014, as part of the combined City Council-City Staff Retreat, City Council members and staff 
toured Station #4 to witness first-hand, many of the short-comings with the current facility.  For the 2014-
2015 budget, the replacement of Fire Station #4 was identified as one of the City’s and Council’s budget 
priorities. 
 
November of 2014, negotiations began to purchase the property immediately east of Fire Station #4 in  
order to expand the site to accommodate a new fire station.  After reviewing the necessary property 
appraisal  
and similar sales in that area, the property was purchased on March 27, 2015, for the sum of 
$175,000.00. 
 
December 7, 2015 City Council approved a contract to provide Architectural/Engineering Services for 
Fire Station #4 to Redstone Architects, Inc. of Bloomfield Hills, MI in the amount of $201,042.00; 
(Resolution #2015-12-158). 
 
As detailed in the Tentative Project Timeline, the next step in the process was to conduct a Request for 
Proposal process to hire a company to provide Construction Manager at Risk services. 

stewartc
Text Box
I-07



 

 

2 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

Purchasing 

 January 20, 2016 a Request for Proposal was issued and posted on the Michigan Inter-governmental 
Trade Network (MITN) website: www.mitn.info.  471 firms were notified of this bid opportunity. 

 January 28, 2016 a Mandatory Pre-Proposal meeting was held at Station #4.  The Request for 
Proposal document and the project timeline was reviewed.  Clarifications were discussed and 
questions answered which necessitated the issuance of an Addendum summarizing the meeting.   

 Eight (8) companies attended the Pre-Proposal meeting as listed below: 
 
   George W. Auch Company   Pontiac, MI 
   Frank Rewold & Sons, Inc.   Rochester, MI 
   Clark Construction Company   Lansing/Southfield, MI 
   Braun Construction Group   Farmington, MI 
   The Dailey Company    Lake Orion, MI 
   MICCO Construction, LLC   Pontiac, MI 
   O’Brien Construction Company, Inc.  Troy, MI 
   Tooles Contracting Group, LLC  Detroit, MI 
    

 On February 4, 2016 an on-site visit was also conducted. 

 February 18, 2016, a bid opening was conducted and Proposals were received as required by City 
Charter and Code for the Construction Manager at Risk Services for Fire Station #4.  Below is a 
summary of potential firms. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Five (5) Proposal responses were received as detailed: 
   George W. Auch Company   Pontiac, MI 

   Clark Construction Company   Lansing/Southfield, MI 
   The Dailey Company    Lake Orion, MI 
   MICCO Construction, LLC   Pontiac, MI 
   O’Brien Construction Company, Inc.  Troy, MI 
    

Qualifying conditions of the Construction Management at Risk Company was: 
o Years of construction Management Experience 
o Construction Management Services on three (3) successful construction projects within 

the last five (5) years.   
o Construction Management Services for a Fire Station project of comparable size, scope 

and complexity over the last ten (10) years. 
o Each firm submitting a proposal was required to provide evidence of a robust Quality 

Assurance/Quality control program that has been in place for a minimum of five (5) years 
and was required to have a proactive Safety Program in place. 

Companies notified via MITN 471 

Troy Companies notified via MITN 15 

Troy Companies - Active email Notification 15 

Troy Companies - Active Free 0 

Companies that viewed the bid  36 

Troy Companies that viewed the bid 0 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the 
procurement process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more 
transparent for vendors to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual 
dues receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant 
access to Bids, RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and 
check the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not 
renew their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be 
notified of solicitations or access any bid information. 

 

http://www.mitn.info/


 

 

3 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Purchasing (continued) 

o Must have experience in providing pre-construction services to owners and have 
previously worked with architectural and/or engineering firms during the design process. 

o Positive References specifically relating to Fire Station design. 
o Qualifications of Firm to perform project as specified detailing personnel and project team 

led by a Project Manager. 
o Work plan and methodology 

Scoring criteria was as follows: 
 30 points – Approach to the Troy Fire Station #4 Project 
 35 points – Construction Manager at Risk Experience & Qualifications 
 20 points – Quality Assurance/Quality Control & Safety Programs/Procedures 

 15 points – Team Resources, Communication Plans & Schedules 
 

 Five (5) Committee Members reviewed and evaluated the proposals.  The Committee Members 
were as follows: 

o David Roberts, Fire Chief 
o Peter Hullinger, Fire Lieutenant 
o Steve Pallotta, Director of Building Operations 
o Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
o Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 

 

 Based on the Firms’ qualifying conditions and scores for proposals; the top three (3) Firms were 
interviewed by the committee on Friday, March 11, 2016.  The top three (3) rated Firms were: 
 

o George W. Auch Company 
o Clark Construction Company 
o The Dailey Company 
 

o Based on the top three (3) Firms’ scores for proposal, and interview; which were essentially a tie; 
final interview presentations were held for the top three (3) ranked Firms on Monday, March 28, 
2016. 
 

o George W. Auch Company 
o Clark Construction Company 
o The Dailey Company 

 

 The final interview gave the three (3) Firms the opportunity to present to the evaluation 
committee; addressing the following areas for clarification: The GMP & GMP timing, Estimating 
and Change Orders, Value Engineering, Project Completion, and Management Team. 

 Based on the scoring criteria, the committee unanimously recommended awarding the contract to 
the highest rated proposer, The Dailey Company of Lake Orion, MI.  The Scoring Summary is 
attached. 

 The Dailey Company is a recognized leader in Construction Management of Fire Stations and 
public safety facilities with over 27 years of experience in construction management specifically in 
Fire Station design.  The firm specializes in fire stations and municipal projects.   

 
 
 



 

 

4 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Purchasing (continued) 

 The Dailey Company’s resume is quite extensive. Some recent municipal projects include: 
 Lake Orion Fire Station #2 and #3 
 City of Detroit Fire Stations #9, 10, 46, 56, & 5 (5 total) 
 Three District Courts including 41-B in Clinton Township, 16th (Livonia) and 43rd in 
 Ferndale 

 The Dailey Company project team is solid, the Project Manager and Project Superintendent have 
over 15 years of experience.  The Chief Estimator has been with the Company for 20 years.  The 
Dailey Company Project Team was represented in all phases of the interview process. 

 Solid experience with Construction Management at Risk with GMP pricing. 

 The Dailey Company has never failed to complete a project on time, never exceeded a GMP and 
has never been involved in a claim/lawsuit with a client. 

 The Dailey Company is the “right size” company for this project; based on The Dailey Company’s 
annual project volume and average project cost. 

 The experience, wisdom, creativity and engineering skills of Redstone Architects, Inc. and The 
Dailey Company will be combined beginning in the planning phase in conjunction with the 
expertise and needs of the Fire Department.  The Dailey Company working together 
collaboratively with the Redstone Architectural team will minimize risk and ensure cost 
containment and provide opportunity for value engineering.  The collaboration of the design and 
construction team is critical to the construction of the Fire Station within budget. 

 The Project Team will be The Dailey Company and the Redstone Architects, Inc. design team 
working with consulting engineers: 

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. – Consulting Civil Engineers & Landscape Architecture 
DESAI/NASR Consulting Engineers, Inc. – Consulting Structural Engineers 
JRED Engineering Inc. – Consulting Mechanical Engineers 
ETS Engineers, Inc. – Consulting Electrical Engineers 

 Included with this memo is a detailed Tentative Project Timeline.  The Tentative Project Timeline 
indicates construction would begin October of 2016 and construction completion would be 
October, 2017.  Note that not only is the timeline tentative, but there has also been some positive 
discussion with The Dailey Company that there is opportunity to shorten the timeline which would 
also result in potential cost savings for the City. 

 A summary of the pricing is below.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

5 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 

  

The DAILEY 
Company 

Pre-Construction Services: $28,540.00 

Not to exceed CMR Fee   

Total Pre-Construction Hours 360 

    

Construction Services: $313,200.00 

Not to exceed CMR Fee   

Total Construction Services Hrs 4,900 

    

Fee for project additions that 3.00% 

might exceed the estimated   

construction cost of $3,350,000   

    

General Conditions:                              
Not to Exceed price 

$119,250.00 

    

Fixed CMR Not to Exceed Fee  $80,000.00 

based on an estimated    

$3,350,000 construction cost.   

    

Fixed CMR Not to Exceed Total 
Fee  $540,990.00 

 
 
Financial 
$4,000,000.00 is budgeted in the 2015/2016 Capital Fund Account for this project.  The Project# is 
20160018. 
 

Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a contract to perform the Construction Manager at Risk 
Services for the City of Troy Fire Station #4 to the highest rated proposer, The Dailey Company of Lake 
Orion, MI as a result of a best value evaluation process for a total not to exceed amount of $540,990.00 
at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened February 18, 2016.  The award is contingent upon the 
Firm’s submission of properly executed bid documents including insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 15-43 CMR Services Fire Station #4_Memo 





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-DRAFT March 21, 2016 
 

- 1 - 

Council Member Baker performed the Invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was 
given. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, March 21, 2016, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
 

a) Mayor Dane Slater 
Edna Abrahim 
Ethan Baker 
Jim Campbell 
Dave Henderson-Absent 
Ellen Hodorek-Absent 
Ed Pennington-Absent 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Resolution #2016-03-052 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Abrahim 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absences of Council Member 
Henderson, Council Member Hodorek and Mayor Pro Tem Pennington at the Regular City 
Council Meeting of March 21, 2016, due to being out of the county. 
 
Yes:  Slater, Abrahim, Baker, Campbell 
No:  None 
Absent:  Henderson, Hodorek, Pennington 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Proclamation in Recognition of the Athens High School Student Congress for 

Raising More than $84,000 During Their February 2016 Charity Week (Presented 
by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 

 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 No Public Hearings 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-DRAFT March 21, 2016 
 

- 2 - 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 
 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – None 
 

a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 

b) City Council Appointments:  None 
 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City 

Council Nominations – None 
 

a) Mayoral Nominations:   
 
City Council took no action on this item. 
 

b) City Council Nominations:  
 
City Council took no action on this item. 
 

I-3 No Closed Session Requested 
 

I-4 Proposed Amendments to Chapters 18 (City Water Utility), 19 (City Sewer Service) 

and 20 (Water and Sewer Rates) of the City Code (Introduced by:  Paul Trosper, 
Superintendent of Water and Sewer) 

 
Resolution #2016-03-053 
Moved by Baker 
Seconded by Campbell 
 

a) Amendments to Chapter 18 (City Water Utility) 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Chapter 18 of the Code of the City of 
Troy, as attached and recommended by City Administration; a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-DRAFT March 21, 2016 
 

- 3 - 

b) Amendments to Chapter 19 (City Sewer Service) 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Chapter 19 of the Code of the City of 
Troy, as attached and recommended by City Administration; a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 

c) Amendments to Chapter 20 (Water and Sewer Rates) 
 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Chapter 20 of the Code of the City of 
Troy, as attached and recommended by City Administration; a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes:  Abrahim, Baker, Campbell, Slater 
No:  None 
Absent:  Henderson, Hodorek, Pennington 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2016-03-054-J-1a 
Moved by Baker 
Seconded by Abrahim 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented. 
 
Yes:  Baker, Campbell, Slater, Abrahim 
No:  None 
Absent:  Henderson, Hodorek, Pennington 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2016-03-054-J-2 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) City Council Liquor Violation Hearings Minutes-Draft – March 14, 2016 
b) City Council Minutes-Draft – March 14, 2016  
 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-DRAFT March 21, 2016 
 

- 4 - 

Resolution #2016-03-054-J-3 
 

a) Athens High School 2015-2016 Student Congress  
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – 

Fertilizer/Herbicide Application Services 
 
Resolution #2016-03-054-J-4a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a three (3) year contract for 
Fertilizer/Herbicide Application Services to the low bidder meeting specifications: Green 
Meadows Lawnscape of Rochester Hills, MI, for Proposals A-B at unit prices contained on the 

bid tabulation for an estimated annual cost of $22,667.80, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring December 31, 2018. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Sole Bidder Meeting Specifications - 

Mosquito Control 
 
Resolution #2016-03-054-J-4b 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a three (3) year contract for Mosquito 
Control to the sole bidder meeting specifications; Custom Lawn Care of Flint, MI, for Proposals 
A-G at unit prices contained on the bid tabulation, which opened March 3, 2016, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring 
December 31, 2018 for an estimated total annual cost of $36,745.97; not to exceed budgetary 
limitations. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders - Aggregates 
 
Resolution #2016-03-054-J-4c 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one (1) year contracts to provide 
Aggregates with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the following low bidders;  
 
    Company       Items         Estimated Total Cost 

Bedrock Express, LTD., Ortonville, MI   1,3,6,7,8  $30,957.00 

Richmond Transport Inc., Lenox, MI     4,9      $2,925.00 

Glenn Eisenhardt Excavating, Inc., Metamora, MI   2, 5   $27,875.00 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-DRAFT March 21, 2016 
 

- 5 - 

Estimated Total Cost         $61,757.00 

 
All aggregates to be purchased on as-needed basis; at unit prices contained in the bid 

tabulation opened March 3, 2016, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting, with contracts expiring April 30, 2018. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon the contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Sole Bidder Meeting Specifications - Transit 

Mixed Concrete 
 
Resolution #2016-03-054-J-4d 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one (1) year contract to provide 
Transit Mixed Concrete with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the sole bidder, 
Superior Materials LLC of Farmington Hills, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 

opened March 10, 2016, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting and to be purchased on an as-needed basis as specified, with the contract expiring 
April 30, 2018. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid documents, insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidder Meeting Specifications - 

Abandoned Property Mowing 
 
Resolution #2016-03-054-J-4e 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a three (3) year contract with the option 
to renew for two (2) additional years to the low bidder meeting specifications, Fougnie Pro 
Lawn of Troy, MI, for an estimated total cost of $6,215.00 per year at unit prices contained in 

the bid tabulation opened February 18, 2016, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting; with the contract expiring December 31, 2018. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and proposal documents, including insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications - Pool 

HVAC Unit Replacement – Troy Community Center 
 
Resolution #2016-03-054-J-4f 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to complete the installation of 
a new Pool HVAC Unit for the Troy Community Center for an estimated cost of $290,837.00, 
not to exceed budgetary limitations, to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Tech 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-DRAFT March 21, 2016 
 

- 6 - 

Mechanical, Inc. of Pontiac, MI, at the base bid price contained in the bid tabulation opened 

February 25, 2016; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, 
performance, labor and material bonds, maintenance bonds and all other specified 
requirements. 
 

g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  TCPN Purchasing Cooperative – Boulan Park 

Playground Resurfacing 
 
Resolution #2016-03-054-J-4g 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract for materials and labor for 
the removal and installation of playground surfacing materials at Boulan Park as detailed in the 
attached quote #5998 from BCI Burke Company, LLC of Fond du Lac, WI, and Snider 
Recreation of N. Royalton, OH, the authorized Burke Dealer for the state of Michigan as per 
The Cooperative Purchasing Network (TCPN) proposal #R5199-MI-9432 for an estimated total 
cost of $89,363.80. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, 
and all other specified requirements. 
 

h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Library Upgrades (Skylights, Lintels, Masonry 

Work) 
 
Resolution #2016-03-054-J-4h 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to remediate existing lintel 
and skylight conditions at the Troy Public Library as detailed in the attached bid tabulation for 
an estimated total cost of $184,656.00 to the low bidder meeting all bid specifications, Unified 
Business Technologies, Inc., of Troy, MI, to be completed in this current Fiscal Year. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council also hereby AWARDS a contract to 
remediate the masonry conditions as detailed in the attached bid tabulation for an estimated 
total cost of $36,856.00 to the low bidder meeting all bid specifications, Bornor Restoration, Inc. 
of Lansing, MI, to be completed d in Fiscal Year 2016/2017 at unit prices contained in the bid 

tabulation opened March 3, 2016, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting.  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, 
performance, labor and material bonds, maintenance bonds and all other specified 
requirements. 
 

i) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option - Tree Maintenance 

Services 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-DRAFT March 21, 2016 
 

- 7 - 

Resolution #2016-03-054-J-4i 
 
WHEREAS, On June 7, 2010, Troy City Council awarded a three-year contract to provide tree 
maintenance services with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low total bidder, 
J. H. Hart Urban Forestry of Sterling Heights, MI (Resolution #2010-06-131-I-4a); and,  
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council awarded a one-year option to renew plus an additional one-year 
extension detailed in the value added section of the bid tabulation with an escalator factor of 
2.5% on April 8, 2013 (Resolution #2013-04-075-7-4g); and,  
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council awarded an additional one-year option to renew, which included 
an escalator of 2.5% on March 23, 2015 (Resolution #2013-04-075-7-4g); 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in 

the City’s best interest to EXERCISE the option to renew the contract with J. H. Urban Forestry 
of Sterling Heights, MI, to provide two-year requirements of tree maintenance services with the 
addition of a 3% escalator for the first year only, based on pricing established from Resolution 
#2015-03-047-J-4b on March 23, 2015, and conditions for an estimated total annual cost of 
$285,053 but not to exceed budgetary limitations for the extension, which will expire June 30, 
2018. 
 

J-5 Bid Waiver – Manhole Frames and Covers 
 
Resolution #2016-03-054-J-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one (1) year contract for manhole 
frames and covers, purchased directly from the manufacturer, EJ of East Jordan, MI, at a list 
price discount of 53%, for an estimated total amount of $100,000.00 on as-needed basis; not to 
exceed the Water and Sewer Division’s and Streets and Drains Division’s budgetary limitations; 
with the contract expiring April 30, 2017. 
 

J-6 Bid Waiver – Wayfinding Signage Phase 2 – Troy Public Library 
 
Resolution #2016-03-054-J-6 
 
WHEREAS, On February 10, 2014, Troy City Council approved a contract with KMA Design of 
Pittsburgh, PA to design a Wayfinding Signage Package for the Troy Public Library (Resolution 
# 2014-02-017-J-4f); and, 
 
WHEREAS, On May 11, 2015, Troy City Council approved a contract with Sign Concepts dba 
ASI Signage Innovations of Troy, MI in the amount of $38,452.00 to complete Phase 1 of the 
Wayfinding Signage Project for the Troy Public Library; (Resolution #2015-05-070-J-4g); and, 
 
WHEREAS, It is in the best interest of the City to maintain the high quality and detail of work on 
Phase 1 Wayfinding and ensure uniform color and sign standardization; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES the formal 

bidding procedure and AUTHORIZES the City of Troy to AWARD a contract to install the 
Phase 2 Wayfinding Signage package at the Troy Public Library as per all bid specifications 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-DRAFT March 21, 2016 
 

- 8 - 

and all bid pricing for an estimated total cost of $59,483.88 to Sign Concepts dba ASI Signage 
Innovations of Troy, MI. 
 

J-7 Bid Waiver – Phase One Replacement of Hallway and Office Area Lighting to LED 

Lamps – Troy City Hall 
 
Resolution #2016-03-054-J-7 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council DEEMS it is in the public’s best interest to WAIVE the 
competitive bid process. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City of Troy to 
purchase one thousand two hundred and twenty (1220) four-foot TOGGLED LED Lamps, one 
hundred ninety four (194) two-foot TOGGLED LED lamps and ninety seven (97) conversion kits 
for the Troy City Hall from the authorized manufacturer, Toggled of Troy, MI, as detailed in 
attached quote with the City of Troy Building Operations Department staff completing the 
installation process.  The total estimated cost of the project is $29,866.92. 
 

J-8 Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2015 
 
Resolution #2016-03-054-J-8 
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to furnish certain road information to the State of Michigan for the 
purpose of obtaining funds under Act 51, P.A. 1951, as amended; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Ashwood Drive, Ashwood Court, Oak Forest Drive, Bridle Path Drive, Chaps Drive, 
Rexedale Drive, Drake, Spring View, and Brooke View are located within the City of Troy; right 
of way is under the control of the City of Troy; said streets are public streets and are for public 
street purposes and were open to the public prior to December 31, 2015; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the following 
platted and non-platted streets: Ashwood Drive, Ashwood Court, Oak Forest Drive, Bridle Path 
Drive, Chaps Drive, Rexedale Drive, Drake, Spring View, and Brooke View into the City of Troy 
local street system. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy hereby DECERTIFIES the following street: 
Cecil, effective on December 31, 2015. 
 

J-9 Addendum #1 to Contract 15-8 – Mill and Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) Overlay – Wattles 

Road, Rochester to John R 
 
Resolution #2016-03-054-J-9 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Addendum #1 to Contract No. 15-8, 
Wattles Mill & HMA Overlay, to Pro-Line Asphalt Paving Corp.,  11797 29 Mile Road, 
Washington Twp., MI, 48095, for their low total bid of $696,697.50. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-DRAFT March 21, 2016 
 

- 9 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 

requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed the budgeted amount of $750,000.00. 
 

J-10 ICMA-RC Money Purchase Plan and Trust 401a Amendment 
 
Resolution #2016-03-054-J-10 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has employees rendering valuable services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy established a qualified retirement plan for such employees that 
serves the interest of the City by enabling it to provide reasonable retirement security for its 
employees, by providing increased flexibility in its personnel management system, and by 
assisting in the attraction and retention of competent personnel; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The City has determined that the continuance of the qualified retirement plan will 
serve these objectives; 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the City to AMENDS and RESTATES the 
qualified retirement plan (the “Plan”) in the form of The ICMA Retirement Corporation 
Governmental Money Purchase Plan & Trust. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the assets of the Plan SHALL BE HELD in trust, with the 
City serving as trustee (“Trustee”), for the exclusive benefit of Plan participants and their 

beneficiaries, and the assets SHALL NOT BE DIVERTED to any other purpose. The Trustee’s 
beneficial ownership of Plan assets held in VantageTrust shall be held for the further exclusive 
benefit of the Plan participants and their beneficiaries. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City hereby AGREES to serve as Trustee under the 
Plan. 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time):  None Submitted 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-DRAFT March 21, 2016 
 

- 10 - 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 

N-1  No Council Referrals  
 

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

O-1  Council Comments 
 
Mayor Slater noted the new televisions and sound system in Council Chambers and thanked 
City Staff for the improvements. 
 

P. REPORTS: 

P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final – December 15, 2015 
b) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final–February 10, 2016 

Noted and Filed 
 

P-2 Department Reports:   
a) Fire Department Annual Report 

Noted and Filed 
 

P-3 Letters of Appreciation:   
a) To Chief Dave Roberts from Lance Koch, General Manager, and Dawn Regan, Event 

Coordinator, Regarding the Fire Department Attending an Event at Granite City 
b) To Chief Mayer from Stephanie Zendler, Principal at Morse Elementary School 

Regarding Officer Gail Jasak’s Work with Students 
c) To the Troy Police Department from Den 4 Cub Scout Pack 1627 Regarding a Police 

Station Tour 
d) To Chief Mayer from Jarriel Koplin, Delphi, Regarding Officer Tour of the Campus 
e) To the Troy Police Department from Ken Carlson Regarding Officer Assistance 
f) To the Troy Police Department from Sue Vanderbrink Regarding Officer Assistance  

Noted and Filed 
 

P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF 

TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

 

Lorie Savin Introduced herself as a candidate for Circuit Court Judge to City 
Council and the residents of Troy 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-DRAFT March 21, 2016 
 

- 11 - 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  

R-1 No Closed Session Requested 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 

 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 7:50 PM. 
 

 

 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Dickson, MMC, CMMC 
City Clerk 

 

 



 
PROCLAMATION 

FAIR HOUSING MONTH 
APRIL 2016 

 
WHEREAS, The month of April, 2016 has been declared Fair Housing Month in the City of Troy, in recognition 
of the 48th anniversary of the signing of the Federal Fair Housing Law under the Civil Rights Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, This landmark law along with other federal and state legislation strictly prohibits housing 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, sex, national origin, age, marital status, religion, disability or family 
status; and 
 
WHEREAS, The National Fair Housing Alliance is the voice of fair housing.  NFHA works to eliminate housing
discrimination and to ensure equal housing opportunity for all people through leadership, education, outreach,
membership services, public policy initiatives, advocacy and enforcement; and 
 
WHEREAS, The National Fair Housing Alliance recognizes the importance of "home" as a component of the
American dream and envisions a country free of housing discrimination where every individual, group and
community enjoys equal housing opportunity and access in a bias free and open housing market where
integrated neighborhoods are the norm, and the private and public sector guarantees civil rights in an open,
and barrier free community committed to healing the history of discrimination in America; and  
  
WHEREAS, Fair Housing Month is designed to heighten people’s awareness of their rights under the law 
when pursuing the purchase or rental of housing; and  
 
WHEREAS, City of Troy residents are urged to contact Oakland County’s housing counselors in the 
Community & Home Improvement Division if they believe they have been the victims of housing discrimination;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby proclaims the month of April, 
2016 as Fair Housing Month in the City of Troy. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That we invite all Troy residents to join advocates and communities across the 
country in playing an active role to ensure equal housing opportunity for all people through leadership, 
education, outreach, membership services, public policy initiatives, advocacy and enforcement.  
 
 
Proclaimed this 4th day of April 2016. 
 
 
 
  
 
 
  
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-03a



 

 

1 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Date:  March 18, 2016 
 
To:   Honorable Mayor and City Council  
  
From:  Brian M. Kischnick, City Manager 

Thomas Darling, Director of Financial Services  
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
   
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for 

Membership Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 - Michigan Municipal League 
 
 

History 
 
The Michigan Municipal League (MML), a state association of cities and villages, is a nonpartisan, 
nonprofit association working cooperatively to strengthen the quality of municipal government and 
administration.   
 
Benefits of membership include advocacy of municipal issues and low-cost educational opportunities 
for municipal officials and employees regarding a multitude of areas for effective and efficient 
governance.   
 
Throughout the last 38 years of the City of Troy’s membership with the MML, City Council members 
and staff members have taken advantage of many continuing education opportunities, legislative 
updates, workshops, conferences and resource materials made available by the League.   
 
With our membership, we are also able to take advantage of the MML’s Workers’ Compensation 
Fund (MML WCF). The MML WCF provides Workers Compensation coverage to more than 880 
public entities throughout Michigan and provides legal expertise and defense loss control services, as 
well as claims handling services which are included in their premium.  The broker for the MML WCF 
takes competitive bids from re-insurers.  As of June 30, 2013, the re-insurer and the rating is:  Munich 
ReCAT.   
 
According to the MML, “The Michigan Municipal League Workers' Compensation Fund is the state's 
leading provider of municipal workers' compensation and risk management services.  The Fund has 
the lowest rates, the best claims service and the highest historical return of dividends of any insurer in 
Michigan.  The Fund has more than 880 members, $135 million in assets and more than $65 million 
in net member equity.  Efficient administration, effective loss control programs and proactive claims 
services have resulted in rates that are on average 50 percent lower than those of our nearest 
competitor.” 
 

The invoice reflects $1,115 for participation in the Michigan Municipal League’s Legal Defense 
Fund.  The Legal Defense Fund authorizes amicus briefs in cases that have a statewide impact for 
Michigan municipalities.   The Legal Defense Fund has recently weighed in on medical marijuana 

stewartc
Text Box
J-04a



 

 

2 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

cases, billboard cases, tax cases, governmental immunity cases, right to farm act cases, 
constitutional law cases, municipal employment law cases, telecommunications cases and zoning 
cases.  In addition to advocating on behalf of municipal interests throughout the State of Michigan, 
the Legal Defense Fund has also specifically provided amicus briefs in cases filed against the City of 
Troy. 
 

Financial 
 
Membership fees are currently available in the City Council budget account number 101.102.7958. In 
addition, it is anticipated that the City will renew and participate in the MML Workers Compensation 
Fund. Current cost for participation in the MML Workers Compensation Fund is $330,477. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Continued membership with the MML via payment of the attached invoice is recommended for annual 
dues in the amount of $12,269.  These dues cover the time period of May 1, 2016 through April 30, 
2017. 
 
 
Bt\AGENDA ITEMS\2016\04.041.16 - Standard Purchasing Resolution 9 - MML Dues 



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  March 30, 2016 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From: MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Manager 
    
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidder meeting Specifications – Asphalt 

Paving Materials – Hot Patch 
 

History 

 Hot asphalt material is used in the patching and maintenance of the City’s local and major roads, and 
drains. 

 Asphalt paving materials – hot patch is purchased on an as needed basis throughout the year. 

 The current contract expired on December 31, 2015. 
 
Purchasing 

 On March 24, 2016 a bid opening was conducted as required by the City Charter/Code for one (1) year 
requirements of asphalt paving materials – hot patch with an option to renew for one (1) additional year.  
The bid was posted on the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN); www.mitn.info.  Forty 
six (46) vendors were notified via the MITN website.  Two (2) bids were received.  Below is a detail 
summary of the vendor responses.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 Note that there was no bid response for items 7a and 7b.  If necessary these items will be ‘spot buy’ 
purchased utilizing the Request for Quote (RFQ) process. 

 
 
Purchasing (continued) 

 The award will include a primary and a secondary supplier in the event the primary supplier is unable to 
provide material as needed or if the proximity of the supplier is more advantageous for the specific 
patch job as approved and directed by the Public Works Manager. 

 The award is contingent upon contractors’ submission of properly executed bid documents, insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements. 

 
 
 
 

Companies notified via MITN 46 

Troy Companies notified via MITN 1 

Troy Companies - Active email Notification 1 

Troy Companies - Active Free 0 

Companies that viewed the bid  5 

Troy Companies that viewed the bid 1 

 

 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the 
procurement process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more 
transparent for vendors to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual 
dues receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant 
access to Bids, RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and 
check the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not 
renew their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be 
notified of solicitations or access any bid information. 

 

stewartc
Text Box
J-04b



 

 

2 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Financial 
Funds are available through the Public Works operating budgets. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a one (1) year contract to provide Asphalt Paving Materials – Hot 
Patch with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the lowest bidder, Ajax Materials Corporation of 
Troy, MI as the primary supplier and Cadillac Asphalt of Shelby Township, MI as the secondary supplier as per 
the unit prices listed in the bid tabulation opened March 24, 2016; to be ordered on an as needed basis and 
based on proximity; contracts expiring December 31, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT  16-13

Opening Date -- 03/24/2016 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 1

Date Reviewed - 03/24/2016 ASPHALT PAVING MATERIALS - HOT PATCH

VENDOR NAME:

Ajax Materials 

Corporation
Cadillac Asphalt

 Troy, MI Shelby Twp, MI

ITEM EST QTY

# (TONS) DESCRIPTION Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price

1 100 1100T  36A Wearing 55.00$                       60.00$                       

2 300 1100T 20AA Wearing 52.50$                       54.50$                       

3 200 1100L 20AA Leveling 51.50$                       54.00$                       

500 Bulk Tack Coat 53.25$                       54.50$                       

4 1200 Commercial Top 48.00$                       54.00$                       

5 125 Commercial Base 6.00$                         5.00$                         

6 100 gal Tack Coat 5-gal pail 60.00$                       60.00$                       

7a 100 gal NO BID NO BID

7b 165 gal NO BID NO BID

90,400.00$                104,575.00$              

HRS OF OPERATION: Hrs of Operation 7:30AM-4:00PM 7:00am - 3:30pm

Days of Operation M-F Not stated

Notice of Pick up M-F 24 Hours 2 Hours

Saturday Call for availability One Day

PROMIXITY: Location 6 miles 4.4 Miles

Troy, MI Troy, MI

TERMS: Net 30 Net 30

None None

EXCEPTIONS:

MSDS Y or N Y N

ALL OR NONE AWARD: Y or N N N

ATTEST:

Susan Riesterer

Emily Frontera

Enna Bachelor

___________________________

MaryBeth Murz

Purchasing Manager

G:\ Asphalt Paving Materials-Hot REBID ITB-COT 16-13

Biodiesel-Soybean Asphalt Release 

Agent 5-gallon pail

Biodiesel-Soybean Asphalt Release 

Agent 55-gallon drum

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS:

PROPOSAL:  One-Year Requirements of Asphalt Paving Materials - Hot Patch; with an option to renew for one (1) additional year.

Low Bidder shaded in gray.



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD - FINAL DECEMBER 2, 2015 

1 
 

Chair Saeger called the Animal Control Appeal Board meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. on December 2, 
2015 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Patrick Carolan 
Patrick Floch 
Al Petrulis 
Jayne Saeger 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Nicole MacMillan, Assistant City Attorney 
Sargent Michael Szuminski, Troy Police Animal Control Liaison 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
MOTION by Carolan 
SECOND by Petrulis 
 
RESOLVED, to approve the agenda as submitted. 
 

3. HEARING OF CASES 
 
WAIVER REQUEST, JAMIE AND RENEE MUTER, 5760 CLIFFSIDE – In order to keep 
3 chickens, a waiver from the requirement that the property be at least .75 of an acre in 
size. The property is approximately .193 acres in size.  Animal Ordinance Section:  
90.70.20 (f) Animal Ordinance Section 90.70.20 (f). 
 
Mr. Evans provided a brief overview of the request. Mr. Muter apprised the Board of the 
history of having chickens on the property, advised that there was adjacent neighbor 
support, indicated that the chickens were not a nuisance, and described how the 
chickens are kept. 
 
Chair Saeger opened the public hearing. A Cliffside resident spoke against the request. 
Mr. Evans summarized the written public comments received by the City. Four were in 
favor, one was conditionally in favor, and one was against. Chair Saeger closed the 
public hearing. 
 
The Board noted the following: 

 The .193 acres is not a sensibly-sized parcel for this request. 
 That the previous identical request from 2014 was granted partially to correct 

errors but should not set precedent. 
 That the Board was unable to have the same discussion prior to the chickens 

being established in 2010 when they first heard this matter in 2014. 

stewartc
Text Box
P-01a





stewartc
Text Box
P-01b













PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 8, 2016 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on March 8, 2016 in the Lower Level Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Ollie Apahidean 
Karen Crusse 
Donald Edmunds 
Carlton M. Faison 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Padma Kuppa 
Philip Sanzica 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle Wortman Associates 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-019 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To revise the Agenda by reversing the order of Agenda items 5 and 6. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-020 
Moved by: Crusse 
Seconded by: Kuppa 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 23, 2016 Regular meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: Apahidean, Crusse, Edmunds, Faison, Hutson, Krent, Kuppa, Sanzica 
Abstain: Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
P-01c



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 8, 2016 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 
REVIEW (File Number SU JPLN2016-0005) – Proposed K-9 Club, North side of Maple, 
West of Rochester between Eastport and Westwood, Section 27, Currently Zoned MR (Maple 
Road) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reported on the Special Use Request and Preliminary Site Plan application for 
the proposed kennel and dog day care facility. Mr. Carlisle recommended Preliminary Site 
Plan approval provided the applicant meets conditions as identified in his report dated 
February 18, 2016. He asked the applicant to address control and mitigation of noise and 
odor. 
 
Mr. Motzny confirmed the Board can place reasonable conditions that relate to the use of 
the land when granting a Special Use. 
 
Present were the applicant John Asselin of Asselin, McLane Architectural Group and 
Robert Cassidy, prospective purchaser of the property. 
 
Mr. Asselin addressed the dumpster screening, lighting in the dog play area and the City’s 
Master Plan. 
 
Mr. Cassidy addressed: 
 Capacity of dogs; day, evening; number of indoor kennels. 
 Traffic impact; low trafficked operation. 
 Noise control; management of barking. 
 Building insulation, limited windows, environmentally controlled. 
 Dog play areas. 

o Outdoor play time would be in shifts 
o Flexible with size of outdoor play area 
o 2000 square foot indoor play area 

 Distance to residential homes. 
 Fence height, structure and material. 
 Dogs screened for temperament and socialization skills. 
 Informational meeting held; invitations sent to those residents notified by City. 
 Disposal of solid and liquid waste. 
 Staff; training, on site 24-7. 
 
Mr. Carlisle announced a letter received today from O’Donnell Properties was distributed 
to Board members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 8, 2016 
  
 
 

3 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
The following spoke in opposition and all addressed concerns with noise. 
 Tim Ostler, 1842 Eastport 
 Jim Savoie, 1853 Eastport 
 Kim Savoie, 1853 Eastport 
 Elizabeth Ackerson, 1718 Eastport; addressed safety of children and traffic. 
 Denise Carter, 1751 Eastport. 
 John Dobrin, 1675 Eastport. 
 Vinod Menon, 1687 Westwood; addressed distance to residential. 
 Patricia O’Donnell, 505-513 E Maple and 507 E. Maple; addressed number of dogs, 

distance to existing business and floodplain. 
 Jeff Melin, 1660 Eastport; addressed loss of green space, fence and traffic. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Cassidy again addressed noise concerns and how barking would be managed. He 
offered to give consideration to a different layout of the building and outdoor play area 
and to plant additional trees for buffering. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Existing dog day care facilities. 
 City’s Code on noise control; code enforcement. 
 Number of public hearing notifications sent. 
 Building orientation; site layout. 
 
Mr. Savidant said there are a number of existing dog day care facilities in the City and 
he has not done any research on the facilities as relates to the distance to residential 
homes or code enforcement action. Mr. Savidant said the proposed dog day care facility 
might be closer to residential homes than any existing dog day care facility. Further, Mr. 
Savidant said anecdotally he is not aware of any code violations at any existing facility. 
 
Mr. Carlisle said orientation of a building is priority in the Maple Road form based zoning 
district. He further noted that access to the site would be a consideration should the 
applicant propose a different building orientation. 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-021 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Faison 
 
RESOLVED, To re-open the floor for public comment. 
 
Yes: Apahidean, Crusse, Edmunds, Faison, Krent, Kuppa, Sanzica, Tagle 
No: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 8, 2016 
  
 
 

4 
 

Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. 
 
 John Hillert, 1867 Westwood, asked if applicant is required to meet requirements of 

newly adopted tree ordinance. 
 Jim Savoie, 1853 Eastport, addressed soliciting comments from residents near 

existing dog day care facilities. 
 Matt West, 1741 Westwood, addressed flooding of subject property driveway. 
 Patricia O’Connell, 505-513 E Maple and 507 E. Maple, addressed applicant’s 

statement of compatibility and number of dogs. 
 Vinod Menon, 1687 Westwood, addressed distance to residential homes. 
 
Chair Edmunds closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Mr. Carlisle stated the application was submitted prior to the adoption of the Woodlands 
Protection ordinance; therefore, the ordinance is not applicable to the application. Mr. 
Carlisle shared with the audience the applicant states there are no landmark or 
woodland trees and the applicant intends to preserve the protected trees along the rear 
of the property. 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-022 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the item to give the applicant an opportunity to propose a 
different site plan, one that is less objectionable to the neighbors mainly because of the 
“sound” issue and to allow neighbors to do whatever research they would like to 
conduct so the Board has a more comprehensive view of the proposed development. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP JPLN2016-0004) – Proposed 

Eddie V’s Prime Seafood Restaurant, North side of Big Beaver, West of Crooks 
between Lakeview and Alpine, Section 20, Currently Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reported on the Preliminary Site Plan application for Eddie V’s Prime Seafood 
Restaurant. He specifically addressed the relationship of the patio area to Big Beaver, 
screening of the porte cochere and the request for parking deviation. Mr. Carlisle gave 
support of the development but said there are a number of minor issues as identified in his 
report dated March 1, 2016 that should be addressed prior to granting approval. 
 
Present were Todd Taylor, Vice President of Design, Darden Restaurants, and Thomas 
Dumond, Landscape Architect, Boss Engineering. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 8, 2016 
  
 
 

5 
 

Mr. Taylor gave an introduction to Eddie V’s restaurants and circulated sample building 
materials. He addressed: 
 Building materials and elevation. 

o EFIS; durability, four colors 
o Stone accents 
o ‘Fins’ penetration 
o Character 
o Restaurant prototype 

 Porte cochere. 
o Critical to have view of water element 
o Decorate, landscape during winter months 

 Transparency calculations. 
 Masonry wall; landscaping. 
 Screening transformer. 
 Amenable to bring patio within 30 feet of Big Beaver. 
 Complimentary valet service. 
 
Members discussed: 
 Porte cochere; screening of vehicular drop-off area. 
 Congested traffic area. 
 Pedestrian access to/from parking area. 
 Stormwater management. 
 EFIS material; gap in quality from stone to EFIS. 
 Pedestrian sidewalk lighting. 
 Transparency requirements. 
 
Mr. Dumond addressed the overall landscaping and said consideration would be given to 
bioswales. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. There was no one present; the floor 
was closed for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-023 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a parking space deviation of 
5 spaces, bringing the total spaces provided to 131 spaces when 136 spaces are 
required by Zoning Ordinance. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 
of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Eddie V’s Prime Seafood 
Restaurant, located on the north side of Big Beaver and west of Crooks, Section 20, 
within the BB (Big Beaver) District, be granted, subject to the following: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 8, 2016 
  
 
 

6 
 

1. Pull the patio and partial overhang over the patio to within 30 feet of Big Beaver. 
2. Provide an additional street tree along Alpine ROW. 
3. Screen transformer. 
4. Provide transparency calculation and reflect same on site plan. 
5. Consider alternative material than EFIS for primary exterior material along Alpine 

and Big Beaver. 
6. Provide detail of bollard fixtures. 
7. Provide details for additional pedestrian lighting along sidewalk on Big Beaver. 
8. Work with the Engineering Department to widen Alpine from northern most exit off 

Alpine all the way to Big Beaver. 
9. Review site for other best stormwater management practices. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
The Board deliberated whether to grant approval this evening with conditions or to ask 
the applicant to come back before the Board with a revised site plan that reflects the 
conditions. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

7. APPLICATION TO DE-LIST 3645 CROOKS 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a report on the history of 3645 Crooks and the Historic District Study 
Committee’s review of the Final Report and recommendation to de-list the property. 
 
Mr. Hutson said the final report indicates the home does not meet any of the three 
requirements for de-listing historical properties; therefore he would not vote in favor of 
de-listing the home. 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-024 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby supports the de-listing of 3645 Crooks 
Road, as per the recommendation of the Historic District Study Committee. 
 
Yes: Apahidean, Crusse, Edmunds, Faison, Krent, Kuppa, Sanzica, Tagle 
No: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 





ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING DRAFT March 15, 2016 

1 

On March 15, 2016, at 7:30 p.m., in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, Chairman Clark 
called the Zoning Board of Appeals meeting to order. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
Thomas Desmond 
David Eisenbacher 
Allen Kneale 
David Lambert 
Philip Sanzica 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Julie Q. Dufrane, Assistant City Attorney 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  December 15, 2015 
 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, to approve the December 15, 2015 meeting minutes. 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – No changes. 
 

4. HEARING OF CASE 
 

VARIANCE REQUEST, RICK AND JEANINE KACZMAREK, 6714 EMERALD LAKE – 
In order to construct an addition to the house, a 6.3 foot setback variance from the 
requirement that the combined total of both side yard setbacks equal 20 feet. 
 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Desmond 
 
RESOLVED, to grant the variance. 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 

stewartc
Text Box
P-01d



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING DRAFT March 15, 2016 

2 

5. COMMUNICATIONS – None 
 
6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

 
 Board Member Courtney advised he would not be renewing his appointment. 
 Planning Commission Liaison Sanzica reported on the Council/Staff 2016 Retreat. 
 Mr. Evans advised he would ask Planning Director Savidant to provide a Master 

Plan status update for the Board’s next meeting. 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT – The Zoning Board of Appeals meeting ADJOURNED at 8:08 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
        
Glenn Clark, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
        
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
 
G:\ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS\Minutes\2106\Draft\2016 03 15 ZBA Minutes Draft.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 22, 2016 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on March 22, 2016 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Ollie Apahidean Padma Kuppa 
Karen Crusse Philip Sanzica 
Donald Edmunds 
Carlton M. Faison 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle Wortman Associates 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-025 
Moved by: Apahidean 
Support by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Kuppa, Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-026 
Moved by: Krent 
Support by: Faison 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 8, 2016 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Kuppa, Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
P-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 22, 2016 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
Thomas Newkold, 1072 Bradley, spoke about the Bradley Square development in 
relation to his home. 
 

5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 
 
The March 15, 2016 Zoning Board of Appeals report was inclusive of the agenda 
packet. 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported there was no Downtown Development Authority (DDA) meeting in 
March. 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported City Council adopted a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment 
relating to Oil and Gas Extraction at their March 14, 2016 Regular meeting. 

 
SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 
8. SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 

JPLN2016-0005) – Proposed K-9 Club, North side of Maple, West of Rochester 
between Eastport and Westwood, Section 27, Currently Zoned MR (Maple Road) 
District 
 
Mr. Savidant stated the proposed K-9 Club application was postponed at the March 8, 
2016 Planning Commission Regular meeting, at which time a Public Hearing was 
opened and closed. Mr. Savidant said notifications of tonight’s public meeting were sent 
to the same 71 property owners notified of the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Carlisle reported in an effort to mitigate noise concerns expressed at the March 8th 
Public Hearing, the applicant submitted a revised site plan that relocates the outdoor 
play area to the east side of the building further away from residential. He said the 
applicant also reduced the size of the outdoor play area by 75% and surrounds it with a 
15-foot wall. Mr. Carlisle reported the application meets all Zoning Ordinance 
requirements and all Special Use standards and recommends Preliminary Site Plan and 
Special Use approval. 
 
Mr. Carlisle acknowledged public comment received on the item was either included in 
the agenda packet or distributed to Board members prior to the beginning of tonight’s 
meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 22, 2016 
  
 
 

3 
 

Mr. Carlisle said a noise assessment report prepared by Soundscape Engineering was 
also distributed to Board members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting. 
 
Present were the applicant John Asselin of Asselin, McLane Architectural Group, Robert 
Cassidy, prospective purchaser of the property, and Mandy Kachur of Soundscape 
Engineering. 
 
Mr. Cassidy addressed revisions to the outdoor play area and acoustical building 
materials. He circulated sample building materials. Mr. Cassidy said noise would be 
managed with a monitoring/recording device called a Yacker Tracker. 
 
Ms. Kachur reviewed in detail the noise assessment report prepared for the proposed 
K-9 Club and responded to questions posed by Board members. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. 
 
The following spoke in opposition. 
 N. Joseph Calarco, 1826 Eastport 
 Jeff Ullenbruch, 1663 Westwood 
 Jim Barnes, 1839 Eastport 
 Nicoleta Balan, 80 Stalwart; lives near existing dog day care facility 
 Tim Ostler, 1842 Eastport; delivered original list of names in opposition 
 Jim Savoie, 1853 Eastport 
 Denise Carter, 1751 Eastport 
 Renee Ullmann, 1825 Eastport 
 Shannon Fuhrman, 1780 Westwood 
 John Dobrin, 1675 Eastport 
 
Chair Edmunds closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Discussion followed on: 
 Potential uses of property; by right and special use. 
 Assessment of property values for homes near similar use. 
 Noise Assessment Report prepared by Soundscape Engineering. 

o Noise level as relates to elevation of home(s). 
o Noise level of Maple Road traffic. 

 Disposal of animal waste. 
 Applicant’s intent to seek LEED certification. 
 Applicant’s investment in development. 
 Conditions that can be placed on a Special Use approval. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 22, 2016 
  
 
 

4 
 

Resolution # PC-2016-03-027 
Moved by: Krent 
Support by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Request and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed K-9 Club, North side of Maple, West of Rochester between Eastport and 
Westwood, Section 27, Currently Zoned MR (Maple Road) District, be granted subject 
to the following conditions: 
 
1. That the applicant and owner of the business monitor sound levels on a continuous 

basis and record and log them. 
2. Limit hours of outdoor animal activity from 8:00 a.m to 4:30 p.m., Monday through 

Friday, and 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Saturday and Sunday. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Kuppa, Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Chair Edmunds requested a recess at 8:43 p.m.; the meeting reconvened at 8:55 p.m. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
9. POTENTIAL ENHANCED CLUSTER OPTION 

 
The following cluster option points were discussed: 
 Reduce required open space. 
 Incentivize clustering through density bonus. 
 Incentivize development that is not currently offered in the market. 
 Allow attached housing. 
 Permit greater design flexibility. 
 Eliminate extra requirements for density bonus. 
 
Mr. Carlisle said draft Zoning Ordinance language would be prepared for discussion at 
the April 12, 2016 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 

 
There were general Planning Commission comments. 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed a sustainable development project that was recently granted 
approval. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MARCH 22, 2016 
  
 
 

5 
 

The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:47 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Donald Edmunds, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2016 PC Minutes\Draft\2016 03 22 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD - DRAFT MARCH 23, 2016 

1 
 

Chair Saeger called the Animal Control Appeal Board meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. on March 23, 
2016 in the Troy City Hall Council Board Room. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Patrick Carolan 
Patrick Floch 
Jayne Saeger 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
Absent: 
Al Petrulis 
 
Motion by Carolan 
Second by Floch 
 
RESOLVED, to excuse Board Member Petrulis. 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
MOTION by Carolan 
SECOND by Floch 
 
RESOLVED, to approve the agenda as submitted. 
 

3. HEARING OF CASE 
 
WAIVER REQUEST, MATTHEW AND TERRI DAHMER, 5105 SOMERTON – In order 
to keep 8 hens, no roosters, a waiver from the requirement that the property be at least 
.75 of an acre in size. The property is approximately .478 acres in size.  Animal 
Ordinance Section:  90.70.20 (f). 
 
Mr. Evans provided a brief overview of the request. Mr. Dahmer summarized the 
request as presented in the application and indicated many of their neighbors 
supported the waiver request. In response to Mr. Carolan’s question, Mr. Dahmer 
advised the chickens have been on the property for about 2 years. 
 
Chair Saeger opened the public hearing. No member of the public spoke.  Mr. Evans 
read aloud the sole written comment received by the City. Chair Saeger closed the 
public hearing. 

stewartc
Text Box
P-01f



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD - DRAFT MARCH 23, 2016 

2 
 

Motion by Carolan 
Second by Floch 
 
RESOLVED, to deny the request. 
 
The Board members indicated the reasons for denial motion as 1) neighborhood 
density and property size, 2) that the subject property is significantly less than .75 acres 
and, 3) public comment did not support the request. 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Mr. Evans noted that the Board skipped over this item. 
 
Moved by Carolan 
Second by Floch 
 
RESOLVED, to approve the December 2, 2015 meeting minutes. 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 

 
5. OTHER BUSINESS – None  

 
6. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Animal Control Appeals Board meeting ADJOURNED at 7:22 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
  
Jayne Saeger, Chair 
 
 
 
  
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
 
G:\Animals\Animal Control Appeal Board\MINUTES\2016\Draft\2016 03 23 draft.doc 
 



 

 

1 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 
Date:  March 31, 2016 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  Mark Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 
From: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
  
Subject: ICCA Audit Report 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   
 
 
The City of Troy is a member of the Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority (ICCA).  This 11 
member consortium, authorized by its member communities (Auburn Hills, Berkley, Clawson, Ferndale, 
Huntington Woods, Oakland Township, Pleasant Ridge, Rochester, Rochester Hills, Royal Oak and Troy) 
has provided outstanding service for more than 30 years.  The ICCA has provided management oversight 
of our cable franchise agreements, as well as assuring our residents that payments and credits due to 
the member communities and customers are returned in a timely fashion.  
 
The ICCA monitors the administration of cable franchise contracts with Comcast, Wide Open West, 
AT&T, and our public access provider, Community Media Network (CMN).  The ICCA responds to 
complaints by our citizens with respect to cable television services.  We have been active with other 
municipal organizations in lobbying for changes to the Michigan Uniform Franchise Act as well as being 
responsive to the Michigan Public Service Commission with respect to the experiences of our member 
communities. 
 
The ICCA is charged with conducting audits of the signal strength, clarity and noise to signal ratios and 
other industry standards to insure the best practices are used in allowing the best quality picture to come 
to each individual household.  The ICCA was instrumental in the development and implementation of a 
(CPO) Consumer Protection Ordinance that helped define standards of customer service that were 
expected from our Cable Providers including standards for notifying our residents of changes in service 
or billing.  This ordinance was adopted by all 11 member communities and saved thousands of dollars in 
legal fees for its development.  Currently we are in the process of undertaking a franchise and PEG fee 
review by Plante Moran of the three (3) cable providers to check if there are any under-payments since 
the last review.   
 
Attached is the recent audit completed by Doeren Mayhew of the financial statements of the 
Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority for the year ended December 31, 2015. 
 

stewartc
Text Box
P-02a



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL CABLE 
COMMUNICATION AUTHORITY 

 
COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DECEMBER 31, 2015 
 



 

- 1 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 27, 2016 
 
 
 
Members 
Intergovernmental Cable 
      Communication Authority 
Huntington Woods, Michigan  48070 
 
Dear Members: 
 
We have recently completed an audit of the financial statements of the Intergovernmental Cable 
Communication Authority for the year ended December 31, 2015.  Our audit was made primarily for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on these statements and, accordingly, did not encompass a detailed review 
of systems, procedures and internal controls.  However, during our audit, we observed certain areas where 
we believe improvements can be effected, and we offer the enclosed comments and recommendations 
memorandum for your review. 
 
The accompanying memorandum is not based upon a complete survey of all phases of operating and 
executive controls; it does, however, direct attention to certain areas which we believe to be especially 
worthy of the Members’ consideration.  We appreciate that the ultimate objective of the Members is to 
achieve maximum control at a minimum cost.  We believe that consideration of the recommendations 
enumerated in this memorandum are compatible with that objective. 
 
After you have reviewed our recommendations, we will be pleased to discuss the contents with you and to 
assist in the implementation or correction of any items set forth herein. 
 
 
 
 DOEREN MAYHEW 
 

305 West Big Beaver Rd., Ste. 200 
Troy, Michigan 48084

248.244.3000
doeren.com

Insight. Oversight. Foresight.®

Known Internationally as Moore Stephens Doeren Mayhew, P.C. An Independent Firm Associated With Moore Stephens International Limited.

mf3195
DM - Fox



 

- 2 - 

PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATION 
 
 
I. FUTURE FUNDING SOURCES FOR THE ORGANIZATION 
 
 During our audit, we noted that the Organization has no sources of revenue while the fund balance 

continues to decrease as the Organization incurs expenses on an annual basis in excess of the revenue 
earned. 

 
 Recommendation 
 
 It is extremely important that the Intergovernmental Cable Communication Authority begin 

contemplating additional funding sources for the future as the fund balance of $13,551 does not appear 
to be at the appropriate level to cover future operations as expenses averaged approximately $15,000 
the last two years. 

 
 Status 
 

The Organization has adopted a bylaw amendment in which member cities began to pay an annual fee 
at the beginning of 2015.  The Organization collected member fees totaling $30,100 in 2015. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL CABLE 
COMMUNICATION AUTHORITY 

 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
DECEMBER 31, 2015 

(With Independent Auditor’s Report Thereon) 
 



INTERGOVERNMENTAL CABLE COMMUNICATION AUTHORITY 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS
 

DoerenMayhew  
 

 
 Page 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ..............................................................................................  1 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 Balance Sheet .......................................................................................................................................  3 
 
 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures and Fund Balance -  
  Budget vs. Actual .............................................................................................................................  4 
 
 Notes to Financial Statements ..............................................................................................................  5 
 



 

- 1 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
 
To the Members of the Intergovernmental 
      Cable Communication Authority 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Intergovernmental Cable Communication 
Authority as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Intergovernmental Cable Communication Authority’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
 

305 West Big Beaver Rd., Ste. 200 
Troy, Michigan 48084

248.244.3000
doeren.com

Insight. Oversight. Foresight.®

Known Internationally as Moore Stephens Doeren Mayhew, P.C. An Independent Firm Associated With Moore Stephens International Limited.



 

- 2 - 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued) 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the Intergovernmental Cable Communication Authority as of December 31, 2015, and the 
respective changes in financial position for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report under separate cover dated 
February 27, 2016 on our consideration of the Intergovernmental Cable Communication Authority’s internal 
control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Intergovernmental 
Cable Communication Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
Troy, Michigan 
February 27, 2016 

 

 

 
 
 

mf3195
DM - Fox



Assets

Cash (note 2) 46,294$            

Prepaid expenses 1,169                

Total assets 47,463$            

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities:

Accounts payable (note 3) 18,494$            

Fund balance:

Unappropriated 28,969              

Total liabilities and fund balance 47,463$            

INTERGOVERNMENTAL CABLE COMMUNICATION AUTHORITY

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2015 

DoerenMayhew

See accompanying notes to financial statements

 - 3 -



Over
(Under)

Budget Actual Budget

Revenues:
Interest income 50$                 112$               62$                 
Membership fee 30,000            30,100            100                 
Miscellaneous 250                 1,228              978                 

Total revenues 30,300            31,440            1,140              

Expenditures:
Administrative expenditures 14,408            728                 (13,680)           
Legal 11,500            9,000              (2,500)             
Conference dues 250                 100                 (150)                
Consultants 150                 200                 50                   
Audit 3,500              3,600              100                 
Insurance 3,000              2,394              (606)                

Total expenditures 32,808            16,022            (16,786)$         

Excess of revenues over expenditures (2,508)$           15,418            

Fund balance - January 1, 2015 13,551            

Fund balance - December 31, 2015 28,969$          

INTERGOVERNMENTAL CABLE COMMUNICATION AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET VS. ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

DoerenMayhew

See accompanying notes to financial statements

 - 4 -



INTERGOVERNMENTAL CABLE COMMUNICATION AUTHORITY 
 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2015 

 

DoerenMayhew - 5 - Continued
 

 
Note 1 - Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 Nature of Business 
 
 The Intergovernmental Cable Communication Authority (ICCA) is organized under Act 

138PA1982 of the State of Michigan.  This Act states that “two or more municipal corporations 
in a county with a population of one million or more are empowered to enter into a contractual 
relationship for the purpose of establishing an authority to select a single cable television 
franchise which shall serve those municipal corporations and to monitor activities and to propose 
model ordinances establishing fees, rates and other regulations.”  The ICCA is tax exempt as it is 
a governmental organization. 

 
 The ICCA was to receive annual grants of $125,000 from the Tribune/United Cable Company 

for a period of 15 years.  These grants were to help manage the cable system for the benefit of 
the cable users and the last grant was received in December 1997.  Beginning in 2015, the 
bylaws were amended to state that each of the member cities will begin to pay an annual 
franchise fee.  Currently, the ICCA continues to monitor cable franchise activities, including 
fees, rates and other regulations. 

 
 The ICCA acts as an intermediary between its member cities and the Community Media 

Network (CMN).  Funds received from the member cities by the ICCA are disbursed to CMN in 
a timely manner.  As of December 31, 2015, there is approximately $179,000 that is yet to be 
received from the member cities related to the third and fourth quarters of 2015.  Therefore, 
ICCA has not recorded these amounts as of December 31, 2015.  These funds are expected to be 
received in the first quarter of 2016 and will then be transferred to CMN accordingly. 

 
 Basis of Accounting 
 
 The Intergovernmental Cable Communication Authority uses the accrual method of accounting. 
 
 Budget Information 
 
 Budgeted amounts of the revenues and expenditures presented are a summarization of the 

budgeted amounts originally adopted, or as amended by the ICCA.  Individual amendments were 
not material in relation to the original appropriations, which were amended.  Budget 
appropriations lapse at year end and encumbrances are not included as expenditures.  A 
comparison of the budget with statements of actual revenues and expenditures, including budget 
variances is presented in the financial statements.  Budgets have been prepared on a basis 
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.  Expenditures at this level in excess of 
amounts budgeted are a violation of Michigan law. 



INTERGOVERNMENTAL CABLE COMMUNICATION AUTHORITY 
 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2015 

 

DoerenMayhew - 6 - 
 

 
Note 1 - Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
 Subsequent Events 
 
 The financial statements and related disclosures include evaluation of events up through and 

including February 27, 2016, which is the date the financial statements were available to be 
issued. 

 
Note 2 - Cash 
 
 The Organization maintains its cash accounts at high credit quality institutions.  At times, cash 

balances may be in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) limits.  The 
deposits as of December 31, 2015 amounted to $54,784, which was insured by the FDIC. 

 
Note 3 - Accounts Payable 
 
 Included in accounts payable as of December 31, 2015 is approximately $14,169 due to 

Community Media Network (CMN) which is collected from the member cities for franchise and 
public, educational and government (PEG) fees and subsequently paid to CMN. 

 
 
 

* * * End of Notes * * * 



stewartc
Text Box
P-03a



stewartc
Text Box
P-03b



stewartc
Text Box
P-03c


	April 4, 2016 Agenda
	Cover Letter
	Top 10 Strategies
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	INVOCATION:
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Legislative Update (Presented by:  State Representative Martin Howrylak)
	C-2 Presentation of the Avondale Youth Assistance Annual Report to Mayor Dane Slater and Troy City Council in Appreciation for City of Troy Supporting Avondale Youth Assistance (Presented by:  Board Chairperson Michael Kazyak)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	I. REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – Civil Service Commission (Act 78)
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Brownfield Redevelopment Authority,), Downtown Development Authority; b) City Council Nominations – Animal Control Appeal Board, Charter Revision Committee, Employees’ Retirement System Boa...
	I-3 No Closed Session Requested
	I-4 Establishment of the Global Troy Advisory Committee (Introduced by:  Eleanor Yoon, Management Assistant)
	I-5 Application to De-List 3645 Crooks Road (Introduced by:  Brent Savidant, Planning Director)
	I-6 Resolution to Approve Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan and Trust and to Transfer Available Funding to the Trust  (Introduced by: Thomas Darling, Director of Financial Services) (Presented by:  Michael Van Overbeke, Special Counsel)
	I-7 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Construction Manager at Risk Services – Fire Station #4  (Introduced by:  David Roberts, Fire Chief, Steve Pallotta, Director of Building Operations, and MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager)

	J. CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) City Council Minutes-Draft – March 21, 2016

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	a) Fair Housing Month – April 2016

	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9:  Approval to Expend Funds for Membership Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 – Michigan Municipal League
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Asphalt Paving Materials - Hot Patch

	J-5 Suggested Resolution to Schedule a Closed Session on May 9, 2016 for the Annual Evaluation of the City Manager

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time):  None Submitted

	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	N-1  No Council Referrals

	O. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	O-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	P. REPORTS:
	P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Animal Control Appeal Board-Final – December 2, 2015
	b) Traffic Committee-Final – January 20, 2016
	c) Planning Commission-Final – March 8, 2016
	d) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft – March 15, 2016
	e) Planning Commission-Draft – March 22, 2016
	f) Animal Control Appeal Board-Draft – March 23, 2016

	P-2 Department Reports:
	a) ICCA Annual Report

	P-3 Letters of Appreciation:
	a) To Assistant Chief Riesterer from John Runyan, Sach Waldman, Regarding Fire Department Participation in the Boy Scout and Cub Scout Annual First Aid Rally
	b) To Chief Mayer from Laura Scharfenkamp Regarding Outstanding Service by PSA Jerilyn Sievers and Officer Adam Sinutko
	c) To Chief Mayer from Daniel Cojanu, Canine Advocacy Program Director, Regarding Outstanding Service by Officer Kristine Shuler

	P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted

	Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES):
	R. CLOSED SESSION:
	R-1 No Closed Session Requested

	S. ADJOURNMENT:
	Attachments.pdf
	20160404 Agenda - C-02  Avondale Youth Assistance Annual Report.pdf
	20160404 Agenda - I-04  Establishment of the Global Troy Advisory Committee
	20160404 Agenda - I-05  Application to De-List 3645 Crooks Road
	20160404 Agenda - I-06  Resolution to Approve Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan and Trust
	Cover memo
	Trust-Clean
	Trust-Red Line
	Plan-Clean
	Plan-Red Line

	20160404 Agenda - I-07  SPR8 Construction Manager at Risk - Fire Station No 4
	20160404 Agenda - J-02a  City Council Minutes-Draft - March 21, 2016
	20160404 Agenda - J-03a   Fair Housing Month - April 2016
	20160404 Agenda - J-04a  SPR9 Approval to Expend Funds for Membership Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 - Michigan Municipal League
	20160404 Agenda - J-04b  SPR2 Award to Low Bidder Meeting Specifications - Asphalt Paving Materials - Hot Patch
	20160404 Agenda - P-01a  Animal Control Appeal Board-Final - December 2, 2015
	20160404 Agenda - P-01b  Traffic Committee-Final - January 20, 2016
	20160404 Agenda - P-01c  Planning Commission-Final - March 8, 2016
	20160404 Agenda - P-01d  Zoning Board of Appeal-Draft - March 15, 2016
	20160404 Agenda - P-01e  Planning Commission-Draft - March 22, 2016
	20160404 Agenda - P-01f  Animal Control Appeal Board-Draft - March 23, 2016
	20160404 Agenda - P-02a  ICCA Audit Report
	ICCA Audit Report April 4 2016
	12-31-15 Mgmt. Ltr.
	ICCA Audit_123115

	20160404 Agenda - P-03a  LoA to Assistant Chief Riesterer from John Runyan, Sach Waldman, Regarding Fire Department Participation in the Boy Scout and Cub Scout Annual First Aid Rally
	20160404 Agenda - P-03b LoA to Chief Mayer from Laura Scharfenkamp Regarding Jerilyn Sievers and Officer Adams Sinutko’s Outstanding Service
	20160404 Agenda - P-03c  LoA to Chief Mayer from Daniel Cojanu, Canine Advocacy Program Director, Regarding Officer Kristine Shuler’s Outstanding Service


